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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission file number 1-4224

Avnet, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cégrt

New York 11-1890605
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation orgainization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
2211 South 47th Street,
Phoenix, Arizona 85034
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area cod@80) 643-2000
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢ifie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vielbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e0B#turities Act. Ye’! No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. YeEl No ™

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordoch shorter period that the registrant was reduivefile such reports), and (2) has t
subject to such filing requirements for the past@@s. Yesd NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hiwnitted electronically and posted on its corpol&feb site, if any, every Interacti
Data File required to be submitted and posted @untsto Rule 405 of RegulationSeuring the preceding 12 months (or for such shrqrerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and pash files). Ye NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquélers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkKSs not contained herein, and will not
contained, to the best of registranknowledge, in definitive proxy or information ments incorporated by reference in Part Ill @ #orm
10-K or any amendment to this Form 108&.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a smaller repon
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdiied,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingpmpany” in Rule 12t2 of the Exchanc
Act.

Large accelerated file¥ Accelerated fileid Non-accelerated filell (Do not check if a smaller Smaller reporting comparid
reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExrgje Act). Yedd No M

The aggregate market value (approximate) of thistragt’s common equity held by neaifiliates based on the closing price of a sha
the registrans common stock for New York Stock Exchange composiinsactions on December 31, 2011 (the last bssiday of tF
registrant’'s most recently completed second figcalrter) was $4,476,318,054 .

As of July 27, 2012, the total number of sharestantding of the registrant's Common Stock was 138, 1shares, net of treast
shares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy staent (to be filed pursuant to Reg. 14A) relatingh® Annual Meeting of Shareholders
anticipated to be held on November 2, 2012 arerpuarated herein by reference in Part 11l of thigBe.




Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I

Item 1. Business

Item 1A.

Risk Factors

Item 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments

Item 2. Properties

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Registrars Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, asddr Purchases of Equity Securities

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

Iltem 7. Managemetd Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations

Iltem 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurdsofit Market Risk

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accousiam Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Item 9B. Other Information
PART 1l
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corper@pvernance
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial@@rs and Management and Related Stockholder Matter
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Traiwmastand Director Independence
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Page

lw

I~




Table of Contents

PART |

Item 1. Business

Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, ttiger with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Comgaor “Avnet”), is one of th
world’s largest industrial distributors, based on satéselectronic components, enterprise computer g@nctage products and embed
subsystems. Avnet creates a vital link in the tedtgy supply chain that connects the wosldéading electronic component and comg
product manufacturers and software developers witglobal customer base of original equipment mastufars (“OEMSs”), electroni
manufacturing services (“EMS”) providers, origirddsign manufacturers (“ODMs”), and value-added ll@se(“VARS”). Avnet distribute
electronic components, computer products and softves received from its suppliers or with assendnlyother value added by Avn
Additionally, Avnet provides engineering design,terals management and logistics services, systagration and configuration, and suf
chain services that can be customized to meeetignements of both customers and suppliers.

Organizational Structure

Avnet has two primary operating groups — Electreritarketing (“EM”) and Technology Solutions (“TSBoth operating groups ha
operations in each of the three major economicoregiof the world: the Americas; Europe, the Mid&last and Africa (“"EMEA");anc
Asia/Pacific, consisting of Asia, Australia and Néealand (“Asia” or “Asia/Pac”)Each operating group has its own management tecy
a group president and includes regional presicemdssenior executives within the operating group wianage the various functions within
businesses. Each operating group also has digitmactcial reporting that is evaluated at the coap@idevel on which operating decisions
strategic planning for the Company as a whole aadanDivisions exist within each operating grougt erve primarily as sales and marke
units to further streamline the sales and marketiffigrts within each operating group and enhanod eperating grou’ ability to work witt
its customers and suppliers, generally along mpeeific product lines or geographies. However, ediefsion relies heavily on the supp
services provided by the operating group as wetlesralized support at the corporate level.

Avnet’s operating groups and their sales are dsvist

Fiscal 2012 Percentage of
Region Sales Sales
(Millions)
EM Americas $ 5,678.° 22.1%
EM EMEA 4,203.1 16.4
EM Asia 5,051.: 19.€
Total EM 14,933.: 58.1
TS Americas 5,820.¢ 22.¢
TS EMEA 3,205.¢ 12.t
TS Asia 1,748.: 6.8
Total TS 10,774.. 41.¢
Total Avnet $ 25,707.! 100.(%

A description of each operating group and its besses is presented below. Further financial inftomaby operating group a
geography is provided in Note 16 to the consolidditgancial statements appearing in Item 15 of Report.

Electronics Marketing

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercanpessive and electromechanical devices (“IP&&i)l embedded products for
world’s leading electronic component manufacturers. ENkaia and sells its products and services to arsliveustomer base serving m
endmarkets including automotive, communications, cotepinardware and peripheral, industrial and manufaw, medical equipmel
military and aerospace. EM also offers an arrayvalue-added services that help customers evalggsignin and procure electror
components throughout the lifecycle of their tedbgy products and systems. By working with EM, omsérs and suppliers can accele
their time to market and realize cost efficiendreboth the design and manufacturing process.
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EM Design Chain Services

EM design chain services offers engineers a hoseafnical design solutions in support of the saglexess of complex products
technologies. With access to a suite of designstaold engineering services from any point in theigiecycle, customers can get prou
specifications along with evaluation kits and refere designs that enable a broad range of applisafrom concept through detailed de:
including new product introduction. EM also offesgineering and technical resources deployed diobalsupport product design, bill
materials development, design services and techediacation and training. By utilizing EM’design chain services, customers can opt
their component selection and accelerate their tonrearket.

EM Supply Chain Services

EM supply chain services provides endetad solutions focused on OEMs, EMS providers ardtelnic component manufactur
enabling them to optimize supply chains on a locadional or global basis. By combining internaimmetencies in global warehousing
logistics, finance, information technology, andeasaanagement with its global footprint and exteagiartner relationships, EBl'supply chai
services develops a deeper level of engagementitgitustomers. These customers can continuoushageatheir supply chains to meet
demands of a competitive environment globally witha commensurate investment in physical assetth oprietary planning tools ant
variety of inventory management solutions, EM caovjgle unique solutions that meet a customer's-ijusime requirements in a variety
scenarios including lean manufacturing, demand #od outsourcing.

Embedded Solutions

In the Americas, Avnet Embedded provides embeddedpating solutions including technical design, graion and assembly
developers of application-specific computing saof in the norRC market. Customers include OEMs targeting the icag
telecommunications, industrial and digital editmgrkets.

EM Sales and Marketing Divisions

Each of EM5 regions has sales and marketing divisions thaergdly focus on a specific customer segment, @agi product lines or
specific geography. The divisions offer one of thdustry’s broadest line cards and convenient stoe- shopping with an emphasis
responsiveness, engineering supporttiore delivery and quality. Certain specialty seedcare made available to the individual divis
through common support service units. Customersuatieer supported by a sophisticatedeenmerce platform, Avnet Express, which inclt
a host of powerful functions such as parametri¢spsgarches, bill of material optimization and paross-referencing. The site enables end-to
end online service from part and inventory searchese checking and ordering to online payment. BMericas addresses the needs ¢
customers and suppliers through focused channetendgce small- to mediursized customers, global customers, defense andszen
customers and contract manufacturers. In EMEA séivis, which are organized by semiconductors, IP&dlucts and supply chain servic
address customers on both a [famepean and regional basis. EM EMEA does busiimegger 40 European countries, and over 10 cousir
the Middle East and Africa. EM Asia goes to mankéth sales and marketing divisions within ChinauBoAsia, Australia, New Zealar
Taiwan and Japan. All regions within EM provide tfesign chain services and supply chain servicssritbed above.

Technology Solutions

As a global IT solutions distributor, TS collab@siwith its customers and suppliers to create afidedt services, software and hardw
solutions that address the business needs of erdzustomers locally and around the world. TS fesusn the global valuadded distributio
of enterprise computing servers and systems, sodfwstorage, services and complex solutions from whorld’s foremost technoloy
manufacturers, marketing and selling them to andutfh the VAR channel. TS also serves the worldw@eM market for computir
technology, system integrators and rfe@-OEMs that require embedded systems and solutimhsding engineering, product prototypi
integration and other valusdded services. The operating group has sales arietimg divisions dedicated to these customer sedsras we
as independent software vendors.

TS enables VARs to grow faster by helping them wstded their customersinique business requirements so that they carr te
complete IT solution spanning supplier lines antivdeng a higher return on investment. Avnet SimnsPath® offers a proven methodolo
comprising business analysis and planning, traiind enablement, and ongoing support to help partmpeickly and cost effectively att:
solution-selling expertise they can use to devedod deploy an array of data center solutions fghdgrowth market segments. Avi
SolutionsPatl includes practices dedicated to vertical marketh s healthcare, government, energy, bankingetad, ras well as technolo
practices focused on virtualization, storage, netimg, security, unified communications, mobilithéa cloud computing. TS also provi
logistics, sales, marketing, financial and techinseavices, including engineering support, systartegration and configurations.
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In EMEA and Asia/Pacific, TS also provides the $atieard disk drives, microprocessor, motherboatdi@RAM module technologies
manufacturers of general-purpose computers andmystilders.
Foreign Operations

As noted in the operating group discussions, Auret significant operations in all three major ecoitoregions of the world: tl
Americas, EMEA and Asia/Pacific. The percentagéwifiet’s consolidated sales by region is presentdtie following table:

Percentage of Sales for Fiscal Year

Region 2012 2011 2010
Americas 45% 43% 44%
EMEA 29 32 31
Asia/Pac 26 25 25
100% 100% 100%

Avnet'’s foreign operations are subject to a varigtyisks. These risks are discussed further uiigk Factorsin Item 1A and und:
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MetrRiskin Item 7A of this Report. Additionally, the specitranslation impacts of forei
currency fluctuations, most notably the Euro, o tompany’s consolidated financial statements arthdér discussed iManagement
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition @esults of Operatiorin Item 7 of this Report.

Acquisitions

Avnet has historically pursued a strategic acgoisiprogram to grow its geographic and market cagerin world markets for electro
components and computer products, services antiawuThis program was a significant factor in Avbecoming one of the largest indus
distributors of such products and services worléwidlvnet expects to continue to pursue strategipiations as part of its overall grov
strategy, with its focus likely directed primarit smaller targets in markets where the Comparseéking to expand its market prese
increase its scale and scope and/or increaseoitiipr or service offerings.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed elevequisitions with aggregate annualized revenue of@pmately $900 million. Se
Item 7.Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operationis Part Il of this Form 10k for additiona
information on acquisitions completed during fise@ll2, 2011 and 2010.

Major Products

One of Avnets competitive strengths is the breadth and quefithe suppliers whose products it distributes. IBMducts accounted |
approximately 11%, 12% and 15% of the Compamyonsolidated sales during fiscal 2012, 2011 aiD2respectively, and was the ¢
supplier from which sales of its products exceetg of consolidated sales. Listed in the table wedoe the major product categories anc
Company’s approximate sales of each during thetpest fiscal years:

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Millions)

Semiconductors $ 13,461.( $ 14,149.: $ 10,098.
Computer products 9,984.« 10,284. 7,302.¢
Connectors 667.t 1,041.. 841.¢
Passives, electromechanical and other 1,594.( 1,059.: 917.:
$ 25,707.! % 26,534.: % 19,160..
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Competition & Markets

Avnet is one of the world’ largest industrial distributors, based on saléglectronic components and computer productssandices
The Company has more than 300 locations worldwideell as a limited number of instances where Asavethed product is stored in custor
facilities. Some of these locations contain salegehousing and administrative functions for midtipales and marketing units.

The electronic components and computer productssinigés continue to be extremely competitive arelsabject to rapid technologi
advances. The Compamsymajor competitors include Arrow Electronics, |rfeuture Electronics and World Peace Group, and,l&sser exter
Ingram Micro, Inc. and Tech Data Corp. There as®o alertain smaller, specialized competitors whoegaly focus on narrower marke
products or particular sectors. As a result of¢Hfastors, Avnet must remain competitive in itsjpry of goods and services.

Another key competitive factor in the electronicmgmnent and computer product distribution indugryhe need to carry a suffici
amount of inventory to meet customerapid delivery requirements. However, to minimie éxposure related to valuation of inventon
hand, the majority of the Company’s products arecipased pursuant to naxclusive distributor agreements. These agreentgptsally
provide certain protections for product obsoleseestd price erosion and are generally cancelale 3P to 180 daysiotice. In most cas¢
these agreements provide for inventory return lagés upon cancellation. In addition, the Companlgaaeces its competitive position
offering a variety of valuadded services which entail the performance of isesvand/or processes tailored to individual cust
specifications and business needs such as poirseofeplenishment, testing, assembly, supply anaimagement and materials management.

Another competitive advantage is the size of thgpber base. Because of the number of Avmetippliers, many customers can sim,
their procurement process and make all of theinired purchases from Avnet, rather than purchaBmg several different vendors.

Seasonality

Historically, Avnets business has not been materially impacted byosahty, with the exception of a relatively minanpact ol
consolidated results from the growth in revenuetha Technology Solutions business during the Déeznguarter primarily driven by t
fiscal year end of a key supplier.

Number of Employees
At June 30, 2012, Avnet had approximately 19,10plegees.
Available Information

The Company files its annual report on Form 10-anterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports om#8XK, proxy statements a
other documents with the U.S. Securities and Exgga@ommission (“SEC”under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. A copymy
document the Company files with the SEC is avadldbl review at the SEG’public reference room, 100 F Street, N.E., Waghim D.C
20549. The public may obtain information on thelputeference room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SE30. The Companyg’SEC filings ar
also available to the public on the SEC’s webditetip://www.sec.goand through the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE0,Broad Stree
New York, New York 10005, on which the Comp’s common stock is listed.

A copy of any of the Compangfilings with the SEC, or any of the agreementstber documents that constitute exhibits to tHiisgs,
can be obtained by request directed to the Comatthe following address and telephone number:

Avnet, Inc.
2211 South 47 Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85034
(480) 643-2000
Attention: Corporate Secretary

The Company also makes these filings available, éfecharge, through its website (see “Avnet Welidielow).
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Avnet Website

In addition to the information about Avnet containgn this Report, extensive information about thenfpany can be found
www.avnet.com including information about its management teproducts and services and corporate governanciqasc

The corporate governance information on the welisiieides the Company'Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Code of @uirah(
the charters for each of the committees of AwBoard of Directors. In addition, amendments ®@wvde of Conduct, committee charters
waivers granted to directors and executive officerder the Code of Conduct, if any, will be posdtethis area of the website. These docurr
can be accessed at www.avnet.cander the “Investor Relations — Corporate Govereargaption. Printed versions of the Corpo
Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduct and chaofetise Board committees can be obtained, freehafge, by writing to the Company
the address listed above in “Available Information.

In addition, the Company’s Annual Report on FormKL,0Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Repants Form 8K anc
amendments to those reports, if any, filed or &hed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of SeesrikExchange Act of 1934, as well
Section 16 filings made by any of the Compangkecutive officers or directors with respect ten8t common stock, are available on
Company’s website ( www.avnet.caimder the “Investor Relations — SEC Filingsiption) as soon as reasonably practicable aféerepor
is electronically filed with, or furnished to, tisecurities and Exchange Commission.

These details about Avnet’'s website and its cordembnly for information. The contents of the Camyps website are not, nor shall ti
be deemed to be, incorporated by reference irR@fsort.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Forward-Looking Statements And Risk Factors

This Report contains forwarddoking statements with respect to the financialdition, results of operations and business of Avikes:
statements are generally identified by words likeelieves,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “should,” “Wil “may,” “estimates” or similal
expressions. Forward-looking statements are sutjguimerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties.

Except as required by law, Avnet does not underéakeobligation to update any forwalkabking statements, whether as a result of
information, future events or otherwise. Factoat tinay cause actual results to differ materialbnfrthose contained in the forwalabking
statements include the following:

Economic weakness and uncertainty could adversdfget our results and prospects.

The Company's results, operations and prospecendegignificantly on worldwide economic conditiotise demand for its products ¢
services, and the financial condition of its custosnand suppliers. Economic weakness and uncertaictuding the ongoing macroeconol
issues in many countries globally and the debisciis Europe and the United States, have in thé gasilted, and may result in the future
decreased revenues, margins and earnings. Econwedkness and uncertainty also make it more diffift the Company to mana
inventory levels and collect customer receivabisch may result in reduced access to liquidity higher financing costs.

The electronics component and computer industrie® dighly competitive and if the Company fails t@mpete effectively, its revenu
gross profit margins and prospects may decli

The market for the Company's products and senicesry competitive and subject to rapid technatagjadvances, changes in indu
standards and changes in customer needs. Not oely tthe Company compete with other global distotsytit also competes for custorr
with regional distributors and some of the Compsmyvn suppliers. The Company's failure to maintaid enhance its competitive posil
could adversely affect its business and prosp€&ctshermore, the Company's efforts to compete @énntlarketplace could cause deterioratic
gross profit margins and, thus, overall profitaili

The size of the Company's competitors vary acroasket sectors, as do the resources the Compangllogated to the sectors ¢
geographic areas in which it does business. Thexefpbme of the competitors may have greater fiahnpersonnel, capacity and ot
resources or a more extensive customer base thaDdmpany has in one or more of its market seetodsgeographic areas, which may re
in the Company not being able to effectively coregatcertain markets which could impact the Compmpyofitability and prospects.
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An industry dowr-cycle in semiconductors could significantly affettie Company's operating results as a large portiohrevenues corr
from sales of semiconductors, which is a highly tgal industry.

The semiconductor industry historically has experés periodic fluctuations in product supply andndad, often associated w
changes in technology and manufacturing capaaityl,is generally considered to be highly cyclicaliridg each of the last three fiscal ye
sales of semiconductors represented over 50% o€Ctmpany's consolidated sales, and the Companyésues, particularly those of E
closely follow the strength or weakness of the semiductor market. Future downturns in the technploglustry, particularly in tt
semiconductor sector, could negatively affect th@m@any's operating results and negatively impaetGompany's ability to maintain
current profitability levels.

Failure to maintain its relationships with key sufiprs could adversely affect the Company’s sales.

One of the Company's competitive strengths is teadth and quality of the suppliers whose prodtresCompany distributes. Howe
sales of products and services from one of the Gmyip suppliers, IBM, accounted for approximatel§alof the Company's consolidated s
in fiscal year 2012. Management expects IBM proslactd services to continue to account for roughdyndlar percentage of the Compai
consolidated sales in fiscal year 2013. The Compatontracts with its suppliers, including thos¢twiBM, vary in duration and are gener:
terminable by either party at will upon notice. the extent IBM or other primary suppliers signifitlg reduce their volume of business v
the Company in the future, because of a produatafe, an unwillingness to do business with Avoeptherwise, the Company's business
relationships with its customers could be materialhd adversely affected because its customersndepe the Company's distribution
electronic components and computer products fraeniridustry's leading suppliers. In addition, to gheent that any of the Company's
suppliers modify the terms of their contracts iwldhg, without limitation, the terms regarding prigetection, rights of return, rebates or o
terms that protect or enhance the Company's gr@sging, it could materially and adversely affect @Bompany's results of operatic
financial condition or liquidity.

Declines in the value of the Company's inventory onexpected order cancellations by the Company'stomers could materially ar
adversely affect its business, results of operasipfinancial condition and liquidity.

The electronic components and computer productesinés are subject to rapid technological chamgey and enhanced produ
changes in customer needs and changes in industngasds, which can contribute to a decline in @atu obsolescence of inventc
Regardless of the general economic environmeigt possible that prices will decline due to a daseein demand or an oversupply of proc
and, as a result of the price declines, there neagrbater risk of declines in inventory value. Altigh it is the policy of many of the Compa
suppliers to offer distributors like Avnet certginotections from the loss in value of inventoryqswas price protection and limited rights
return), the Company cannot be assured that sulatigsowill fully compensate for the loss in valua, that the vendors will choose to, ol
able to, honor such agreements, some of which areloacumented and, therefore, subject to the discreof the vendor. In addition, t
Company's sales are typically made pursuant toviehgial purchase orders, and the Company generals chot have longerm suppl
arrangements with its customers. Generally, the [@my's customers may cancel orders 30 days prishippnent with minimal penalties. T
Company cannot be assured that unforeseen new girdduelopments, declines in the value of the Campgainventory or unforeseen or
cancellations by its customers will not materiadlyd adversely affect the Company's business, sesiilbperations, financial condition
liquidity.

Substantial defaults by the Company's customersitmaccounts receivable or the loss of significacistomers could have a significe
negative impact on the Company's business, resoftsperations, financial condition or liquidity.

A significant portion of the Company's working dapiconsists of accounts receivable from customérsustomers responsible fo
significant amount of accounts receivable were @odme insolvent or otherwise unable to pay the aitowes the Company, or were
become unwilling or unable to make such paymenis fimely manner, the Company's business, restiltgperations, financial condition
liquidity could be adversely affected. An econonaicindustry downturn could adversely and materiaftiect the servicing of these accot
receivable, which could result in longer paymentley, increased collection costs and defaults tegx of management's expectation
significant deterioration in the Company's abititycollect on accounts receivable could also imgfaetcost or availability of financing under
accounts receivable securitization program @Eaancing Transactionappearing in Item 7 of this Report).
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The Company's nord.S. locations represent a significant portion dgirevenue, and consequently, the Company is insiegly exposed
risks associated with operating internationally.

During fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010, approxityedé&%, 62% and 60%, respectively, of the Compasgles came from its operatis
outside the United States. As a result of the Camigdoreign sales and locations, in particularsthin emerging and developing econon
the Company's operations are subject to a varfatigks that are specific to international openasipincluding, but not limited to, the followin

» potential restrictions on the Company's abilitygpatriate funds from its foreign subsidiar
» foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations tradimpact on the Company's reported results efaifpns
* import and export duties and valadded taxe

» compliance with foreign and domestic import angbort regulations, business licensing requiremants antieorruption laws, th
failure of which could result in severe penaltiasliiding monetary fines, criminal proceedings aunspgnsion of import or exp:
privileges;

» changing tax laws and regulatic
» regulatory requirements and prohibitions that difetween jurisdiction
» economic and political instability, terrorism anatg@ntial military conflicts or civilian unre

« fluctuations in freight costs, limitations on shipgp and receiving capacity, and other disruptianshie transportation and shipp
infrastructure;

e natural disasters and health conce

» differing environmental regulations and employmeraictices and labor issues; .

the risk of norcompliance with local law

In addition to the cost of compliance, the potdntiaminal penalties for violations of export regtibns and anttorruption laws
particularly antibribery, data privacy laws and environmental lawsl aegulations in many jurisdictions, create hesgled risks for tr
Company's international operations. In the eveat ¢ghgoverning regulatory body determined thatGbenpany had violated applicable img
or export regulations or antBrruption laws, the Company could be fined siguaifit sums, incur sizable legal defense costs aitd/onport o
export capabilities could be restricted, which dolve a material and adverse effect on the Con'pamginess. While the Company has
will continue to adopt measures designed to ensamepliance with these laws, the Company cannotdserrad that such measures wil
adequate or that its business will not be matgreaiid adversely impacted in the event of an allegeldtion.

The Company's acquisition strategy may not prodube expected benefits, which may adversely affaet€ompany’s results of operations.

Avnet has made, and expects to continue to maka&tegic acquisitions or investments in companiesigd the world to further i
strategic objectives and support key businessatiiis. Acquisitions and investments involve riaksl uncertainties, some of which may d
from those associated with Avnet's historical opens. The risks relating to such transactionsude| but are not limited to, risks relating
expanding into emerging markets and business aaglaling additional product lines and services, linnog unanticipated costs or liabiliti
associated with the companies acquired and digertianagement's attention from existing businessatipaes. As a result, the Compar
profitability may be negatively impacted. In additj the Company may not be successful in integyatire acquired businesses or
integration may be more difficult, costly or tinsensuming than anticipated. Further, any litigatielating to a potential acquisition will res
in an increase in the expenses associated withdyeisition or cause a delay in completing the gitipn, thereby impacting the Compar
profitability. The Company may experience disrupsicdhat could, depending on the size of the adipisihave a material adverse effect o
business, especially where an acquisition target ha@e pre-existing non-compliance or gpasting deficiencies or material weaknesse
those terms are defined under relevant SEC ruldsegulations. Furthermore, the Company may ndizesall of the anticipated benefits frt
its acquisitions, which could materially and adedysaffect the Company's financial performance.
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If the Company fails to maintain effective internalontrols, it may not be able to report its fina@atiresults accurately or timely or dete
fraud, which could have a material adverse effect the Compan’s business or the market price of the Company'sigdties.

Effective internal controls are necessary for ttmmPany to provide reasonable assurance with regpeits financial reports and
effectively prevent fraud. If the Company cannaiide reasonable assurance with respect to itadinareports and effectively prevent fra
its brand and operating results could be harmedsudnt to the Sarban@xley Act of 2002, the Company is required to fema report k
management on internal control over financial répgr including management's assessment of thetafémess of such control. Inter
control over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements because of its inherentdfioits, including the possibility of hurr
error, the circumvention or overriding of contraots, fraud. Therefore, even effective internal colstrcannot provide absolute assurance
respect to the preparation and fair presentatiofinahcial statements. In addition, projectionsaofy evaluation of effectiveness of intei
control over financial reporting to future perical® subject to the risk that the control may becoradequate because of changes in condi
or that the degree of compliance with the polidegrocedures may deteriorate. If the Company failmaintain the adequacy of its intel
controls, including any failure to implement reqar new or improved controls, or if the Company egmees difficulties in the
implementation, the Company's business and opgragisults could be harmed, and the Company coilldofaneet its reporting obligatior
which could have a material adverse effect onutsress or the market price of the Company's desiri

If the Company's internal information systems fail to function pperly, or if the Company is unsuccessful in the égiration or upgrade ¢
information systems, its business operations cosidfer.

The Company's expanding operations put increasiegspre on the Company's information systems tditéde the day- to-day
operations of the business and to produce timelgurate and reliable reports on financial and dpmral results. Currently, the Compar
global operations are tracked with multiple infotima systems, some of which are subject togomg IT projects designed to streamlina
optimize its global information systems. There ésguarantee that the Company will be successfall éitmes in these efforts or that there
not be integration difficulties that will adversed§fect the Company's operations or the accuraletiarely recording and reporting of financ
data. In addition, the Company's information tedbgy is subject to security breaches, computer imackr other general system failui
Maintaining and operating these systems requiresiramous investments. A data privacy breach maye @osisk that sensitive data may
exposed to unauthorized persons or to the publi@ilAre of any of these information systems inawlescribed above or material difficul
in upgrading these information systems could hawenal adverse effects on the Company's businedsita compliance with reportil
obligations under federal securities laws.

Major disruptions to the Compar’s logistics capability could have a material adgerimpact on the Company’s operations.

The Company's global logistics services are opérétteough specialized and centralized distributt@mters around the globe. ~
Company also depends almost entirely on tpiadky transportation service providers for the \d&ly of products to its customers. A mi
interruption or disruption in service at one or mof its distribution centers for any reason (sasmatural disasters, pandemics, or signif
disruptions of services from our thighrty providers) could cause cancellations or delaya significant number of shipments to custonaaic
as a result, could have a severe impact on the @oytgpbusiness, operations and financial perforemanc

The Company may not have adequate or cost-effedtipgdity or capital resources.

The Company's ability to satisfy its cash needseddp on its ability to generate cash from operatanmd to access the financial mart
both of which are subject to general economic,aia, competitive, legislative, regulatory and extiactors that are beyond the Compe
control.

The Company may need to satisfy its cash needsighr@xternal financing. However, external financimgy not be available
acceptable terms or at all. As of June 30, 2012)eA\nad total debt outstanding of $2.144 billiordeinvarious notes and committed
uncommitted lines of credit with financial instimhs. The Company needs cash to make interest pdagnun, and to refinance, t
indebtedness and for general corporate purposel,asifunding its ongoing working capital and capéixpenditure needs. Under the terrr
any external financing, the Company may incur higitean expected financing expenses and become csubjeadditional restrictions a
covenants. Any material increase in the Compaiys€ing costs could have a material adverse effeds profitability.
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Under certain of its credit facilities, the Compasyrequired to maintain certain specified finahc&ios and meet certain tests. If
Company fails to meet these financial ratios antksts, it may be unable to continue to utilizesthéacilities. If the Company is unable
utilize these facilities, it may not have sufficietash available to make interest payments on afidance indebtedness and for ger
corporate needs. General economic or business tmmmgji domestic and foreign, may be less favoréide management expects and ¢
adversely impact the Company's sales or its abiftitycollect receivables from its customers, whichynimpact access to the Compa
securitization program.

The agreements governing some of the Company's fiiciags contain various covenantand restrictions that limit the discretion
management in operating its business and could mm®vus from engaging in some activities that may beneficial to theCompany"
business.

The agreements governing the Company's financirayiding its credit facility and the indentures gaving the Company's outstanc
notes, contain various covenants and restrictibat in certain circumstances, limit the Compaapiity, and the ability of certain subsidiari
to:

e grantliens on asse

* make restricted payments (including paying divideod capital stock or redeeming or repurchasingalagiock)
* make investment

* merge, consolidate or transfer all or substéptédl of the Companys asset:

* incur additional debt; «

* engage in certain transactions with affilia

As a result of these covenants and restrictiomsCthmpany may be limited in the future in how ihdocts its business and may be un
to raise additional debt, compete effectively oke&urther investments.

The Company may become involved in intellectual jpecty disputes that could cause it to incur subdiah costs, divert the efforts
management or require it to pay substantial damagedicensing fees.

From time to time, the Company receives notifiaasialleging infringements of intellectual properights allegedly held by othe
relating to the Company's business or the prodorctservices it sells. Litigation with respect tagras or other intellectual property mat
could result in substantial costs and diversiomahagement and other resources and could havevarsacffect on the Company's operati
Further, the Company may be obligated to indemaifg defend its customers if the products or sesvibe Company sells are allege:
infringe any thirdparty's intellectual property rights. While the Queny may be able to seek indemnification from utspdiers for itself and i
customers against such claims, there is no assithatit will be successful in obtaining such imufefication or that the Company will be fu
protected against such claims. If an infringemdaint is successful, the Company may be requireplatp damages or seek royalty or lice
arrangements, which may not be available on comairaeasonable terms. The Company may have tp s#ling certain products
services, which could affect its ability to compeftectively.

Failure to comply with the requirements of envirorental regulations could adversely affect its busése

The Company is subject to various federal, statsglland foreign laws and regulations addressimy@mmental and other impacts fri
product disposal, use of hazardous materials idyms, recycling of products at the end of thegfuklife and other related matters. While
Company strives to ensure it is in full compliarveith all applicable regulations, certain of thegsgulations impose liability without fat
Additionally, the Company may be held responsildethe prior activities of an entity it acquiredaikire to comply with these regulatic
could result in substantial costs, fines and avilcriminal sanctions, as well as thipadsty claims for property damage or personal in
Further, environmental laws may become more strih@wer time, imposing greater compliance costs medeasing risks and penali
associated with violation.
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Tax legislation initiatives or challenges to the @pany's tax positions could impact the Company'sulis of operations and financi
condition.

As a multinational corporation, the Company is sabjto the tax laws and regulations of the Unitedtes federal, state and Ic
governments and of many international jurisdictiofiom time-totime, legislation may be enacted that could ad¥esiect the Company
tax positions. There can be no assurance thatffagtige tax rate and the resulting cash flow witit be adversely affected by these chang
regulations. The tax laws and regulations of thous countries where the Company has

operations are extremely complex and subject tgingrinterpretations. Although the Company beliettest its historical tax positions
sound and consistent with applicable laws, regotatiand existing precedent, there can be no agsuthat these tax positions will not
challenged by relevant tax authorities or thatGloenpany would be successful in any such challenge.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

The Company owns and leases approximately 1,143000,387,000 square feet of space, respectigklyhich approximately 43%
located in the United States. The following tahlengnarizes certain of the Company’s key facilities.

Leased

Sq. or
Location Footage = Owned Primary Use
Poing, Germany 427,000 Leased EM warehousing, value-added operations and offices
Chandler, Arizona 399,00 Owned EM warehousing and value-added operations
Tongeren, Belgium 388,000 Owned EM and TS warehousing and value-added operations
Grove City, Ohio 297,00 Leased EM warehousing, integration and value-added opmmati
Poing, Germany 296,00( Owned EM warehousing, value-added operations and offices
Atlanta, Georgia 258,00( Leased EM warehousing, integration and value-added opmmati
Chandler, Arizona 231,000 Leased TS warehousing, integration and value-added opmersiti
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong 181,000 Leased EM warehousing and value-added operations
Phoenix, Arizona 176,000 Leased Corporate and EM headquarters
Coppell, Texas 174,00 Leased EM warehousing, integration and value-added opmrati
Groveport, Ohio 139,00( Leased EM warehousing, integration and value-added oparati
Tempe, Arizona 132,000 Leased TS headquarters
Nogales, Mexico 124,000 Leased EM warehousing and value-added operations
Doral, Florida 120,00 Leased TS warehousing and value-added operations
Loyang, Singapore 116,00( Leased TS warehousing and value-added operations

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As a result primarily of certain former manufachgrioperations, Avnet has incurred and may havedutability under various feder.
state and local environmental laws and regulatiorcdiiding those governing pollution and exposureand the handling, storage and disg
of, hazardous substances. For example, under tmep@bensive Environmental Response, CompensatidnLability Act of 1980, a
amended (“CERCLA™and similar state laws, Avnet is and may be lidbtethe costs of cleaning up environmental contatiém on or fror
certain of its current or former properties, anafftsite locations where the Company disposed of wastédse past. Such laws may imp
joint and several liabily. Typically, however, the costs for cleanup athssites are allocated among potentially respongiaiéies based up
each party’s relative contribution to the contartiora and other factors.

Pursuant to SEC regulations, including but not timito Item 103 of Regulation -the Company regularly assesses the status ¢
developments in pending environmental legal procgsdto determine whether any such proceedingsldhmiidentified specifically in th
discussion of legal proceedings, and has concltittdno particular pending environmental legal pexing requires public disclosure. Be
on the information known to date, management besig¢hat the Company has appropriately accrued iooisolidated financial statements
its share of the estimated costs of environmentdters.
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The Company is also party to various other lawsuimms, investigations and other legal proceesliagsing from time to time in t
normal course of business. While litigation is gajto inherent uncertainties, management currémigves that the ultimate outcome of tt

proceedings, individually and in the aggregatel mot have a material adverse effect on the Comigafityancial position, liquidity or results
operations.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Market price per share

The Companys common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exage under the symbol AVT. Quarterly high and la@akes closin
prices (as reported for the New York Stock Excharmeposite transactions) for the last two fiscalrgevere:

2012 2011
Fiscal Quarters High Low High Low
1st $ 328t $ 24.1¢ % 27.0¢ $ 22.8¢
2nd 31.7¢ 24.7 33.3¢ 26.61
3rd 36.8¢ 31.02 36.97 31.8¢
4th 36.6¢ 29.2¢ 37.81 29.97

The Company did not pay any dividends on its commsimek during the last two fiscal years. Any fetutecision to declare or
dividends will be at the discretion of the Boardfectors and will be dependent upon the Compdimescial condition, results of operatio
capital requirements, and such other factors asBtterd of Directors deems relevant. In additiorrtaia of the Company's debt facilit
contain restrictions on the declaration and paymédividends.

Record Holders
As of July 27, 2012, there were 3,443 registerddérs of record of Avnet's common stock.

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of June 302012

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Number of Future Issuance
Securities Under Equity
to be Issued Upon  Weighted-Average Compensation Plans
Exercise of Exercise Price of
Outstanding Outstanding (Excluding
Options, Warrants ~ Options, Warrants  Securities Reflected
Plan Category and Rights and Rights in Column (a))
(@) (b) (€)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsld 5,596,297 $23.78 4,956,183?

(1) Includes 2,881,918 shares subject to options adstg and 1,749,519 stock incentive shares and8864performance shares awar
but not yet delivered. Included in the performasbares is the number of shares anticipated tosbedsin the first quarter of fiscal 2(
relating to the level of achievement reached unkler2010 performance share program, which endee 30n2012 (see Note 12 in
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeincluded in Item 15 of this Report)

(2) Does notinclude 494,520 shares availabléutmre issuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Wwhich is a nowompensatory pla
Stock Performance Graphs and Cumulative Total Retuns

The graph below compares the cumulative 5-yeat tetarn of holders of Avnet, Ins’common stock with the cumulative total returr
the S&P 500 index and certain of Avreepeer companies in the electronics distributiatustry. The graph tracks the performance of a
investment in Avnes common stock, in the peer group, and the indéth (e reinvestment of all dividends) from June 2007 to June 3
2012. The companies comprising the peer group sbokiAgilysys, Inc., Anixter International, Ind\rrow Electronics, Inc., Brightpoint, In
Ingram Micro, Inc., Insight Enterprises, Inc., Ssanrce, Inc., Synnex Corp. and Tech Data Corp.
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Avnet, Inc.
S&P 500
Peer Group

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®
AmongAvnet, Inc., the S&P 500 Index, and a Peer Group
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*F00invested on 6307 in stock or index, including reinvestment o f dividends.
Index calculated on month-end basis.

Copyight@ 2012 2&8P, adivizionof The MoGrawHill Companiesine, Al rightzreserved.

06/30/07 06/28/08 06/27/09 07/03/10 07/02/11 06/30/12
100.00 69.50 54.29 60.49 82.11 77.85
100.00 86.88 64.10 73.35 95.87 101.09
100.00 78.82 65.03 66.56 98.74 87.34

The stock price performance included in this gregphot necessarily indicative of future stock pnieformance. The Company does
make or endorse any predictions as to future gpecformance. The performance graph is furnisheelysobd accompany this Report and is
being filed for purposes of the Securities ExchaAgeof 1934, as amended, and is not to be incatedrby reference into any filing of -

Company, whether made before or after the dateoheegardless of any general incorporation languaguch filing.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In August 2011, the Company’s Board of Directorpraped the repurchase of up to $500 million of @@mpanys common stoc
through a share repurchase program. The follovabtetincludes the Comparsymonthly purchases of Avnet's common stock duttiegfourtt
qguarter ended June 30, 2012 under the share regqaarg@rogram, which is part of a publicly announglkeah, and purchases made on the
market to obtain shares for the Company’s Empl@&teek Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which is not pag pfiblicly announced plan:

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Average Price as Part of Publicly

Total Number

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That
May Yet Be Purchased

_ of Shares Paid per Announced Plans Under the Plans
Period Purchased (1) Share or Programs or Programs
April 5,80(C $35.57 — —
May 615,30( $31.4¢ 610,00( $231,964,000
June 1,894,901 $30.61 1,890,001 $174,074,000
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@ Includes purchases of Avnet's common stock assetiaith the Compang’ ESPP as follows: 5,800 shares in April, 5,300eshin Ma)
and 4,900 shares in June.

In August 2012, the Board of Directors approvedirgé$250 million to the share repurchase prograrih\tis increase, the Compe
may repurchase up to a total of $750 million of @@npany's common stock under the share repurgrageam.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3, June 27, June 28,
2012 2011 2010 2009 (a) 2008 (a)
(Millions, except for per share and ratio data)
Income:
Sales $ 25,707 $ 26,534 $ 19,160.: $ 16,229. $ 17,952
Gross profit 3,050.¢ 3,107.¢ 2,280.: 2,023.( 2,313."
Operating income (loss) 884.2 (b) 930.C (c) 635.¢ (d) (1,019.0 (e) 710.6 ()
Income tax provision 223.¢ (b) 201.¢ (c) 174.5 (d) 34.7 (e) 203.¢ ()
Net income (loss) 567.C (b) 669.1 (c) 410.2 (d) (1,129.) (e) 489.¢ (f)
Financial Position:
Working capital (g) 3,455.7 3,749.! 3,190.¢ 2,688.¢ 3,191.
Total assets 10,167.¢ 9,905.¢ 7,782.. 6,273.t 8,195.;
Long-term debt 1,272.( 1,273t 1,243 946.¢ 1,169.:
Shareholders’ equity 3,905.7 4,056.: 3,009.: 2,760.¢ 4,141.¢
Per Share:
Basic earnings (loss) 3.8 (b) 4.3¢ (c) 271 (d) (7.49 (e) 3.2¢ (f)
Diluted earnings (loss) 3.7¢ (b) 4.34 (c) 2.6¢ (d) (7.49 (e) 3.21 ()
Book value per diluted share 26.12 26.2¢ 19.6¢ 18.3( 27.15
Ratios:
Operating income (loss) margi
on sales 3.4% (b) 3.5% (c) 3.2% (d) (6.9)% (e) 4.C% (f)
Net income (loss) margin on
sales 2.2% (b) 2.5% (c) 2.1% (d) (7.0)% (e) 2.7% ()
Return on capital 12.%% (b) 15.2% (c) 14.0% (d) (26.6% (e) 11.(% (f)
Quick 1.2:1 1.2:1 1.4:1 1.5:1 1.4:1
Working capital 1.7:1 1.8:1 1.9:1 2.1:1 2.1:1
Total debt to capital 35.4% 27.2% 29.8% 26.C% 22.1%

(@) As adjusted for the retrospective application ofa@eounting standard. The Financial Accounting &aths Board issued authorital
guidance which requires the issuer of certain cdible debt instruments that may be settled in dashother assets) on conversiol
separately account for the debt and equity (cowergption) components of the instrument. The statidequires the convertible deb
be recognized at the present value of its cashsfldiscounted using the n@envertible debt borrowing rate at the date ofasme. Th
resulting debt discount from this present valuecwation is to be recognized as the value of thaitgqcomponent and recorded
additional paid in capital. The discounted convgetidebt is then required to be accreted up téaite value and recorded as nuast
interest expense over the expected life of the edilble debt. In addition, deferred financing cas$sociated with the convertible debt
required to be allocated between the debt andyegoinponents based upon relative values. Durinditbequarter of fiscal 2010, t
Company adopted this standard; however, there wasmpact to the fiscal 2010 consolidated finanstaktements because the Company’
2% Convertible Senior Debentures, to which thisdéséad applied, were extinguished in fiscal 2009e Do the required retrospect
application of this standard to prior periods, ®empany adjusted the prior period comparative cafeted financial statements. 1
following table summarizes the adjustments to iasee(decrease) previously reported balances.
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June 27, June 28,
Adjustments-increase (decrease) 2009 2008

(Millions, except per share

data)

Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 0.3 $ (0.9
Interest expense 12.2 15.¢
Income tax provision (4.6) (6.0
Net income (7.3 (9.5)
Basic EPS $ 0.0 $ (0.0€)
Diluted EPS $ (0.05) % (0.0¢6)
Prepaid and other current assets $ — 3 (0.9)
Other assets — 4.6
Long term debt — (12.2)
Shareholders’ equity $ — % 7.3
(b) Includes the impact of (i) restructuring, igitation and other charges which totaled $73.6 omilppretax, $53.0 million after tax and $0.

()

(d)

()

(f)

(9)

per share on a diluted basis; (ii) a gain on bargairchase and other, which totaled $2.9 millioetpx, $3.5 million after tax and $0.
per share on a diluted basis; and (iii) a tax biewéf$8.6 million and $0.06 per share on a dilubebis primarily due to the release
certain tax valuation allowances net of additidaalreserves (see Note 18 in tiietes to the Consolidated Financial Statementgaine:
in Item 15 of this Report for further discussiortioése items).

Includes the impact of (i) restructuring, igtation and other items which totaled $77.2 millnetax, $56.2 million after tax and $0.
per share on a diluted basis; (ii) a gain on bargarchase and other which totaled $22.7 milliostpk, $25.7 million after tax and $0.
per share on a diluted basis; (i) and a tax hiewéf$32.9 million and $0.21 per share on a diubasis primarily due to the releas:
certain tax valuation allowances net of additidaalreserves (see Note 18 in thietes to the Consolidated Financial Statementgaine:
in Item 15 of this Report for further discussiortioése items).

Includes the impact of restructuring, integmatand other items which totaled $25.4 million-pa, $18.8 million after tax and $0.12
share on a diluted basis, and a gain on sale etasshich totaled $8.8 million ptex, $5.4 million after tax and $0.03 per sharea
diluted basis (see Note 18 in tNetes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeotstained in Item 15 of this Report for furtheratissiol
of these items).

Includes goodwill and intangible asset impa&nincharges of $1.41 billion ptax, $1.38 billion after tax and $9.13 per sharg] the
impact of restructuring, integration and other igerwhich totaled $99.3 million preax, $34.9 million after tax and $0.23 per shaex
Note 18 in theNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statementgained in Iltem 15 of this Report for furtheraldission of these items).

Includes the impact of restructuring, integratiomd aother items, gain on sale of assets and otkersit which totaled to a gain
$11.0 million pre-tax, $14.7 million after tax afid.09 per share on a diluted basis.

This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabilit
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

For an understanding of Avnet and the significactdrs that influenced the Compasyerformance during the past three fiscal yehe
following discussion should be read in conjunctwith the description of the business appearingéml1 of this Report and the consolid:
financial statements, including the related notas$ schedule, and other information appearing im [1& of this Report. The Company oper
on a “52/53 weekfiscal year. Fiscal 2012 and 2011 contained 52 weehkile fiscal 2010 contained 53 weeks. This ewtezk, which occurre
in the first quarter of fiscal 2010, impacts theever-year analysis in this MD&A.

There are references to the impact of foreign cuyreranslation in the discussion of the Compamngsults of operations. When
stronger U.S. Dollar exchange rates of the curyeatr are used to translate the results of opeatidrAvnets subsidiaries denominatec
foreign currencies, the resulting impact is a deseein U.S. Dollars of reported results as compasigdthe prior period. When the U.S. Do
weakens, the resulting impact is an increase in Ddars of reported results as compared withpher period. In the discussion that follo
this is referred to as the “translation impact ledugges in foreign currency exchange rates.”

In addition to disclosing financial results tha¢ aletermined in accordance with U.S. generally gieckaccounting principles (“GAARR”
the Company also discloses certain non-GAAP firenoformation, including:

* Income or expense items as adjusted for the trdmslenpact of changes in foreign currency excharages, as discussed abc

» Sales adjusted for certain items that impactydar-over-year analysis, which included the immdicicquisitions by adjusting Avnet’
prior periods to include the sales of businessgsieed as if the acquisitions had occurred at #grining of the period presented
addition, for fiscal 2011 sales are adjusted fjra divestiture by adjusting Avnatiprior periods to exclude the sales of the bus
divested as if the divestiture had occurred abéginning of the period presented; (ii) the impzfdhe extra week of sales in the p
year first quarter due to tt*52/53 week"fiscal year; and (iii) the transfer of the existiegbedded business from TS Americas tc
Americas that occurred in the first quarter ofdils2011. Sales taking into account the combinadioihhese adjustments are referre
as “pro forma sales” or “organic sales.”

» Operating income excluding restructuring, integnatand other charges incurred in fiscal 2012, 28id 2010. The reconciliation
GAAP is presented in the following table:

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Thousands)
GAAP operating income (loss) $ 884,16! $ 929,97¢ $ 635,60(
Restructuring, integration and other 73,58¢ 77,17¢ 25,41¢
$ 957,75( $ 1,007,15! $ 661,01¢

Adjusted operating income

Management believes that providing this additiomdbrmation is useful for the reader to better assand understand opera
performance, especially when comparing results pitlvious periods or forecasting performance fourii periods. Furthermore, manager
typically monitors the business both including @axdluding these items and uses these @AW measures to establish operational goals
in some cases, for measuring performance for cosgtem purposes. However, analysis of results aidak on a norsAAP basis should |
used as a complement to, and in conjunction wilka gresented in accordance with GAAP.

Results of Operations
Executive Summary

Revenue for fiscal 2012 was $25.71 billion, a daseeof 3.1% from fiscal 2011 revenue of $26.53dri|l and revenue on an orge
basis was down 4.4% year over year. Fiscal 201 lanssticularly strong year as the economic envirent seemed to have hit a peak in the V-
shaped recovery in the technology markets followtimg global financial and economic crisis that ictpd the Company's business in fi
2009 and 2010. In comparison to the record revendiscal 2011, the Company experienced a year-gear decrease in revenue in fi
2012 primarily due to double-digit declines in fB&IEA region in both
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operating groups. The global macroeconomic envienmtrontinued to be a challenge, most notably irof®iand, to a lesser extent, elsewl
EM revenue of $14.93 billion declined 0.9% over ghi®r year and organic revenue decreased 6.0%aoragaryear in constant currency. T
decline was primarily a result of the comparisonthie particularly strong prior year and economiaditions in Europe, as previou
mentioned. TS revenue of $10.77 billion decling@?6.over the prior year and its organic revenueided!1.4% in constant currency over
prior year. The double-digit organic revenue dexiim EMEA was mostly offset by the double-digit eeue growth in Asia and the low single-
digit growth in the Americas. Despite the TS rewemecline, TS increased gross profit margin andaipegy income margin year over y
driven primarily by the combination of a focus @mproving the overall performance within the EMEAi@n, including avoiding lower marc
sales together with the benefit from restructurimgatives.

Gross profit margin of 11.9% improved 16 basis foiver the prior year. EM gross profit margin vaéasvn 38 basis points year o
year, with all three regions experiencing declindse Americas region was impacted by the transfeh® lower gross margin Latin Amer
computing components business from TS AmericasMoMnericas at the beginning of fiscal 2012. In digati, the regional mix of busine
was slightly more skewed to the lower margin regionthe current fiscal year as the higher grosggym&MEA region represented 28% of
overall EM revenue mix as compared with 32% ingher year. TS gross profit margin improved 73 ba®ints year over year. The year-over-
year improvement was driven by the western regipagjcularly EMEA. The Americas region's grossfiinmargin benefited from the trans
of the Latin America business to EM as mentioneavab

Consolidated operating income margin was 3.4% agpaoed with 3.5% in the prior year, which includedtructuring, integration a
other charges in both periods. Excluding thesegd®groperating income margin was 3.7% as compaited3v8% in the prior year as a dec
at EM offset improvement at TS. TS operating incomergin increased 46 basis points year over yed&.@8. Although EM's operati
income margin declined to 5.0% due to the overaltmeconomic conditions mentioned above, it is withanagement's target range for EM.

Given the level of uncertainty surrounding the gllobconomic environment and considering managempatformance expectations
the first quarter of fiscal 2013, the Company islaating additional cost reduction actions to farthlign expenses in the business with cu

market conditions.

Sales by Operating
Group:

EM Americas

EM EMEA

EM Asia
Total EM

TS Americas
TS EMEA
TS Asia
Total TS
Total Avnet, Inc.

Sales by Geographic
Area:

Americas
EMEA
Asia/Pacific

Three-Year Analysis of Sales: By Operating Group ad Geography

Years Ended

Percent Change

19

June 30, % of July 2, % of July 3, % of 2012 to 2011 to
2012 Total 2011 Total 2010 Total 2011 2010
(Dollars in millions)
$ 5,678. 22.1% $ 5,113.¢ 19.3% $ 3,434.¢ 17.9% 11.C% 48.%
4,203.1 16.4 4,816.: 18.1 3,651.: 19.0 (22.9) 31.¢
5,051.: 19.6 5,136.: 194 3,881.: 20.3 1.7 32.2
14,933.: 58.1 15,066.: 56.8 10,966.! 57.2 (0.9 37.4
5,820.¢ 22.6 6,404." 24.1 4,932.° 25.8 (9.1 29.¢
3,205.¢ 12.5 3,577.: 13.5 2,297.: 12.0 (10.9) 55.7
1,748.. 6.8 1,486.¢ 5.6 963.t 5.0 17.€ 54.%
10,774.. 41.9 11,468.. 43.2 8,193. 42.8 (6.0) 40.C
$ 25,707 $ 26,534. $ 19,160.. (3.1)% 38.5%
$ 11,499. 44.8 $ 11,518 43.4% $ 8,367.: 43.7% (0.2% 37. %
7,408.¢ 28.8 8,393. 31.6 5,948.: 31.0 (21.9) 41.1
6,799.: 26.4 6,622. 25.0 4,844.¢ 25.3 2.7 36.7
$ 25,707. $ 26,534. $ 19,160..
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Sales

Iltems Impacting Year-over-Year Sales Comparisons

During the past three fiscal years, the Companyiaed several businesses impacting both operatiogps, as presented in the follow
table. To facilitate easier and more meaningfukymeeryear comparisons, the discussions that follow ikelsales on a pro forma basis as

as on a reported basis.

Approximate

Annualized
Acquired Business Group & Region Revenues? Acquisition Date
(Millions)
Fiscal 2012
Ascendant Technology TS Americas & TS $ 86 April 2012
EMEA
Nexicore Services EM Americas 85 April 2012
Controlling interest in a non-wholly owned entity EM Americas 62 January 2012
Pinnacle Data Systems EM Americas 27 January 2012
Canvas Systems TS Americas & TS 11€ January 2012
EMEA
Unidux Electronics Limited (Singapore) EM Asia/Pac 14E January 2012
Round 2 Tech EM Americas 54 January 2012
DE2 SAS EM EMEA 11 November 2011
JC Tally Trading Co. & Shanghai FR Internationahding EM Asia/Pac 99 August 2011
Prospect Technology EM Asia/Pac 14z August 2011
Amosdec SAS TS EMEA 83 July 2011
Fiscal 2011
itX Group Ltd. TS Asia/Pac 16C January 2011
Center Cell EM Americas 5 November 2010
Eurotone EM Asia/Pac 30 October 2010
Broadband EM Americas 8 October 2010
Unidux EM Asia/Pac 37C July 2010
Tallard Technologies TS Americas 25C July 2010
Bell Microproducts Inc. EM & TS Americas 3,021 July 2010
TS EMEA
Fiscal 2010
Servodata HP Division TS EMEA 20 April 2010
PT Datamation TS Asia/Pac 90 April 2010
Sunshine Joint Stock Company TS Asia/Pac 30 November 2009
Vanda Group TS Asia/Pac 30 October 2009

@ Represents the approximate annual revenue foraheirad businesseshost recent fiscal year prior to acquisition by Avmand base
upon average foreign currency exchange rates ésetperiods.

20




Table of Contents

Fiscal 2012 Comparison to Fiscal 2011

The table below provides the comparison of repdiitezhl 2012 and 2011 sales for the Company angpiésating groups to pro forma
organic) sales (as defined previously) to allondera to better assess and understand the Compangisue performance by operating group.

2012 to 2011
Salesas  Acquisition/Divested  Pro Forma Pro Forma

Reported Revenue Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)

EM $ 14,933.. $ 211z $ 15,144. (6.9%
TS 10,774 137.¢ 10,912.. .7

Fiscal 2012 $ 25,707.! $ 349.( $ 26,056. (4.9
EM $ 15,066.. $ 1,092.: $ 16,158.!
TS 11,468.: (365.9) 11,102.

Fiscal 2011 $ 26,534 $ 726.¢ $ 27,261.

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2012 were $25.710nilla decrease of 3.1%, or $826.9 million, frora grior year consolidated sales
$26.53 billion. Organic sales (as defined earliethis MD&A) decreased 4.4%, which was primarilyedo a doubledigit decline in the EME.
region in both operating groups.

EM sales of $14.93 billion for fiscal 2012 decreh€e9% from the prior year sales of $15.07 billi@M organic revenue in const
currency decreased 6.0% year over year due toaimbioation of exceptionally high growth in fiscd@d?L driven by the \&haped recovery
electronic components, which led to negative orggnowth in EM for fiscal 2012. On a regional ba&iMEA experienced double-digit, year-
overyear revenue declines for both organic and reposednue, as a result of weaker demand amid comsamnounding economic conditic
in Europe. Asia organic revenue declined 7.5%, arity due to slowing growth in China, and the Ances was flat as compared with fis
2011.

TS sales of $10.77 billion for fiscal 2012 decreh6€el% from the prior year sales of $11.47 billidhe year-ovegear revenue decre:
was due primarily to the Americas and EMEA regiomkjch were down 9.1% and 10.4%, respectively,ipiiyrtoffset by growth of 17.6%
Asia. Organic revenue decreased 1.7% year overpraarily due to EMEA, which decreased 12.7% ad4% in constant currency. T
doubledigit decline in EMEA was due to weaker demand indpe due primarily to the macroeconomic environhprviously mentione
The organic decline in EMEA was mostly offset byiaarease of 11.5% in Asia and 1.7% in the Ameri€as a product level, software ¢
services experienced strong double-digit growthr year year and storage, processors and other haedalso grew year over year.

Fiscal 2011 Comparison to Fiscal 2010

The table below provides the comparison of repdiitezhl 2011 and 2010 sales for the Company angpiésating groups to pro forma
organic) sales (as defined previously) to allondera to better assess and understand the Compangisue performance by operating group.

2011 to 2010

Sales as Acquisition Extra Week Pro Forma Pro Forma
Reported Sales in Q1 FY10 Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $ 15,066.0 $ 44¢ % — $ 15111 21.9%
TS 11,468.: (188.5) — 11,279, 11.2
Fiscal 2011 $ 26534 $ (143.¢) $ — $ 26,390. 17.1
EM $ 10,966.8 $ 1,605.! $ (1749 $  12,398.(
TS 8,193. 2,188.( (243.5) 10,137.¢
Fiscal 2010 $ 19,160.. $ 3,793t $ (4178 $ 22,535
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Consolidated sales in fiscal 2011 were $26.53dnijlian increase of 38.5%, or $7.37 billion, frorecéil 2010 consolidated sales
$19.16 billion. This increase was due to the comfigm of growth through acquisitions and organiovgh of 17.1%. EM sales
$15.07 billion in fiscal 2011 increased 37.4% ofiscal 2010 sales of $10.97 billion. The year-oyear comparisons were impacted
acquisitions and the transfer of the TS Americabeided business to EM Americas. Organic salesaserk21.9% year over year and all t
regions contributed with organic growth of 14.2%,4% and 19.5% in the Americas, EMEA and Asia, eetipely, largely attributable to t
continued strong end demand across the technotaipsiry. TS sales of $11.47 billion in fiscal 20htreased 40.0% over fiscal 2010 sale
$8.19 billion. The year-oveyear comparisons were positively impacted by reeeguisitions, and partially offset by the transbéérthe T¢
Americas embedded business to EM and a divestiturganic sales increased 11.3% year over yearrdiiyethe Americas and Asia regit
with increased organic sales of 13.0% and 31.4%peetively. In the EMEA region, organic sales iased 1.7%. On a product level, year-
over-year sales growth was driven primarily by dechéor storage and servers.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins

Consolidated gross profit in fiscal 2012 was $D0kon, a decrease of $57.2 million, or 1.8%, froine prior year and decreased 4.09
a pro forma basis in constant currency. Gross fpnadirgin of 11.9% improved 16 basis points overgher year. EM gross profit margin w
down 38 basis points year over year, with all threggons experiencing declines. The Americas regias impacted by the transfer of the lo
gross margin Latin America computing componentsriass from TS Americas to EM Americas at the beigipof fiscal 2012. In addition, tl
regional mix of business was slightly more skewedhe lower margin regions in the current fiscaftyas the higher gross margin EM
region represented 28% of the overall EM revenueanicompared with 32% in the prior year. TS gmsdit margin improved 73 basis poi
year over year. The ye-overyear improvement was driven by the western regipasticularly EMEA. The Americas region's gross fit
margin benefited from the transfer of the Latin Aio& business to EM as mentioned previously.

Consolidated gross profit in fiscal 2011 was $dillion, an increase of $827.6 million, or 36.3%orh fiscal 2010 due primarily
strong organic sales growth and the increase @ssalated to acquisitions. Gross profit margid bf7% declined 19 basis points year over
due primarily to the impact of businesses acquinddch had product lines with lower gross margimsnt Avnets other product lines. EM grc
profit margin increased 10 basis points where tiditeon of the lower margin embedded business aeduirom Bell Microproducts In
("Bell") and the embedded business transferred fitBnmostly offset the margin increase that occuiredhe legacy EM business ¢
geographic mix shift. TS gross profit margin deetirb2 basis points year over year primarily attable to the EMEA region and the impac
the integration of the Bell business, which haswelr gross profit margin profile than the other EBIEA product lines. Although the B
business had a lower gross profit margin profile thuits product mix, the Company estimates itizedl the full impact of over $60 million
annualized synergies in the first quarter of fix@l12.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&fenses”were $2.09 billion in fiscal 2012, essentially flabm the prior yea
decreasing only $7.8 million. This $7.8 million dease consisted of (i) approximately $51 milliolated to both a decrease in expenses fc
existing business due primarily to cost reductictioms taken and a decrease in variable expens&tedeto the revenue decline, and
approximately $6 million related to a decrease tduhe translation impact of changes in foreignmency exchange rates, partially offset by
an increase of approximately $49 million relatecefpenses from businesses acquired. Metrics thaagesment monitors with respect tc
operating expenses are SG&A expenses as a pereeotegples and as a percentage of gross profifistal 2012, SG&A expenses a
percentage of sales were 8.1% and were 68.6% ascarpage of gross profit as compared with 7.9%Gh68%, respectively, in fiscal 20:
SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profit adeicBeased over 250 basis points year over yearSEMIA expenses as a percentag
gross profit increased approximately 250 basistpdiom the prior year near record low, which wtslautable to the strong operating lever
in a particularly high growth environment in theqgpryear.

SG&A expenses were $2.10 billion in fiscal 2011,ehhwas an increase of $481.5 million, or 29.7%nfrfiscal 2010. The increase
SG&A expenses was primarily a result of approxinya$304 million of additional SG&A expenses asstibwith acquisitions, $170 millic
of incremental costs necessary to support the 1%#&&6-overyear organic sales growth, net of incremental sastings from integratic
activity and the additional week of expenses indi2010 and $7 million due to the translation ictpaf changes in foreign currency exche
rates. In fiscal 2011, SG&A expenses were 7.9%atdssand 67.6% of gross profit as compared witke8ahd 71.0%, respectively, in fis
2010. This continued year-ovgear improvement reflects the operating leveraghénbusiness model realized from recent revenothrant
effective expense management.
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Restructuring, Integration and Other Charges
Fiscal 2012

During fiscal 2012, the Company continued to taketain actions to reduce costs in both operatingugs in response to mar
conditions and incurred acquisition and integratiosts associated with acquired businesses dummdidcal year. As a result, the Comp
recorded restructuring, integration and other chamgf $73.6 million préax, $53.0 million after tax and $0.35 per shareadfiluted basis ft
fiscal 2012. Restructuring charges of $50.3 millipatax consisted of $33.2 million for severance, $18illion for facility exit costs and fixe
asset write-downs and $5.1 million for other restiiting charges, primarily other lease obligatidhat have no omgoing benefit to th
Company. Préax integration costs and acquisition transactimstwere $9.4 million and $10.6 million, respeelyy The Company recorde:
credit of $3.3 million preax to adjust reserves related to prior year resiring activity that were no longer required. bidéion, the Compar
recorded $6.7 million préax for (i) a legal claim associated with an acedibusiness and a potential royalty claim relateperiods prior t
acquisition by Avnet and (ii) a legal claim asstethwith an indemnification of a prior divested imess.

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2012 relatestd@r 800 employees in sales, administrative arah€e functions in connection w
the cost reduction actions taken in all three negim both operating groups with employee redustiohapproximately 480 in EM and 32(
TS. Facility exit costs for vacated facilities tteld to 12 facilities in the Americas, 5 in EMEA ahd in Asia and consisted of reserves
remaining lease liabilities and the wridewn of leasehold improvements and other fixed tas#es a result of the restructuring initiati
implemented during fiscal 2012, the Company expectgenerate approximately $40 million to $50 roifliin annualized savings by the en
fiscal 2012 with the full benefit of the cost sayénto be realized in the first quarter of fiscal20The total amounts utilized against the rest
established during fiscal 2012 included $29.3 wrillin cash payments and $4.7 million in non-casetagritedowns. As of June 30, 20:
management expects the majority of the remainingra@ce reserves to be utilized by the end of f@8&5 and the remaining facility exit ¢
reserves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2016.

Integration costs incurred related to the integratf acquired businesses and incremental costsrett as part of the consolidation
closure of certain office and warehouse locatidngegration costs included IT consulting costs $gstem integration assistance, fac
moving costs, legal fees, travel, meeting, marketind communication costs that were incrementaityiired as a result of the integra
activity. Also included in integration costs arer@mental salary costs associated with the coreg@iul and closure activities as well as ¢
associated with acquisition activity, primarily ag#d to the acquired businesses' personnel who netamed by Avnet for extended peri
following the close of the acquisitions solely st in the integration of the acquired businéd3esystems and administrative and logis
operations into those of Avnet. These identifiedspanel have no other meaningful daydfmy operational responsibilities outside of
integration effort. Transaction costs consistednprily of professional fees for brokering the asifions, due diligence work and other le
costs.

Fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011, the Company recognized restmigtj, integration and other charges of $77.2 oillpretax, $56.2 million after te
and $0.36 per share on a diluted basis associsitedndy with the integration of the acquired Bblisiness. Restructuring costs included ¢
million pre-tax for severance and $17.3 million qe for facility exit costs for lease liabilitieixed asset writedowns and other relat
charges associated with vacated facilities and @dll®n for other charges. Integration costs wé&25.1 million pretax and acquisitic
transactions costs were $15.6 million pre-tax.ddigion, the Company recorded a reversal of $11ilBom pre-tax related to (i) the reversal
restructuring reserves established in prior yehet were deemed no longer required, (ii) acquisittmljustments for which the purch
allocation period had closed and (iii) exittated reserves originally established throughdgalb in prior years that were deemed no lor
required and were credited to the consolidatecstaint of operations rather than to goodwill becabseassociated goodwill was impaire:
fiscal 2009.

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2011 relatquetsonnel reductions of over 550 employees inigidtrative, finance and sa
functions primarily in connection with the integoat of the acquired Bell business into the existidd Americas, TS Americas and TS EME
regions and, to a lesser extent, other cost restuctctions in other regions. Facility exit costsigisted of lease liabilities, fixed asset write-
downs and other related charges associated witra8éted facilities: 23 in the Americas, 25 in EMBAd two in the Asia/Pac region. T¢
amounts utilized during fiscal 2012 consisted 02.31million in cash payments and $3.2 million rethto adjustments to reserves and for
currency translation. As of June 30, 2012, managereepects the majority of the remaining severamserves to be utilized by the enc
fiscal 2013 and the remaining facility exit costeeves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2015.
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Fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2010, the Company recognized restmitj, integration and other charges of $25.4 onillpretax, $18.8 million after te
and $0.12 per share on a diluted basis. The Compaognized restructuring charges of $16.0 miljioetax for the remaining cost reduct
actions announced during fiscal 2009 which includederance costs, facility exit costs and otherggsarelated to contract termination ¢
and fixed asset write-downs. The Company also mneiced integration costs of $2.9 million ptaex for professional fees, facility moving cc
and travel, meeting, marketing and communicatiostcthat were incrementally incurred as a resuthefintegration efforts of the recer
acquired businesses, $6.5 million pre-tax for ai@added tax exposure in Europe related to an afigitior years, and $3.2 million ptex of
other charges including acquisitioelated costs which would have been capitalizedeuride prior accounting rules. The Company
recorded a credit of $3.2 million pre-tax to adjieterves related to prior restructuring activityiehh were determined no longer required.

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2010 of $8libmrelated to personnel reductions of over Esfployees in administrative, final
and sales functions in connection with the costicddn actions in all three regions. Facility egidsts of $3.7 million consisted of le
liabilities and fixed asset writdewns associated with seven vacated facilitiehéAmericas, one in EMEA and four in the Asia/Pegion
Other charges of $2.6 million consisted primarifycontractual obligations with no agwing benefit to the Company. The total amountizat
during fiscal 2012 consisted of $1.2 million in kapayments, and $0.2 million related to adjustmeatseserves and foreign curre
translation. As of June 30, 2012, the remainingmess totaled $0.8 million, which are expecteddaiblized by the end of fiscal 2013.

Operating Income

During fiscal 2012, the Company generated operatiogme of $884.2 million, down 4.9%, as comparéith $930.0 million in the pric
year. Consolidated operating income margin was 3ag%ompared with 3.5% in the prior year. Bothgmsiincluded restructuring, integrat
and other charges as describeRestructuring, Integration and Other Chargalsove. Excluding these charges from both periodsrading
income was $957.8 million, or 3.7% of sales, irdis2012 as compared with $1.01 billion, or 3.8%sales, in the prior year. EM operal
income of $751.4 million was down 9.7% year oveary&Vhile EM's operating income margin remainechimitmanagement's target rang
5.0% to 5.5%, it declined 50 basis points year gear to 5.0%. This decline in EM operating incom&rgin was primarily due to the nega
operating leverage, particularly in EMEA relatedtite year-ovegear decline in sales in fiscal 2012 due to maanemic conditions in tt
region as compared with the positive operatingriege last year due to the particularly strong sgtesvth in fiscal 2011. In addition, low
operating income margin in EM Asia, due to econoshdwing in China, also contributed to EM's ovedskline in operating income marg
The decline at EM was somewhat mitigated by theefisnfrom cost reduction actions taken in respaunskbusiness conditions. TS opera
income of $319.3 million increased 11.4% year oyear and operating income margin increased 46 kpadigs to 3.0% primarily due
improvement in the western regions, which was drileg the combination of higher gross profit margaml the benefits from restructur
initiatives. Corporate operating expenses were Rlldsllion in fiscal 2012 as compared with $112.0ion in fiscal 2011.

During fiscal 2011, the Company generated operatingme of $930.0 million, an increase of 46.3%¢ampared with operating incol
of $635.6 million in fiscal 2010. The increase ipeoating income was attributable to the impactazfudsitions and the growth in gross pr
dollars associated with the 17.1% organic salesvtiroConsolidated operating income margin was 3&% 3.3% in fiscal 2011 and 20
respectively. Both periods included restructuriimgegration and other charges as describeRdntructuring, Integration and Other Char
above. Excluding these charges, operating incoméstal 2011 was $1.01 billion, or 3.8% of condalied sales, as compared with oper:
income of $661.0 million, or 3.5% of consolidatedes, for fiscal 2010. EM operating income of $83aillion increased 69.3% year over y
and operating income margin increased 105 basigptn 5.5%. All three regions within EM contribdtéut the improvement was prima
driven by the operating leverage in the EMEA regidth its 31.9% year-oveyear revenue growth. TS operating income of $2&tlifon
increased 13.9% year over year while operatingnreaonargin declined 57 basis points year over ye&.5% due primarily to lower grc
profit margins in the EMEA region which includesmer operating margins of the acquired businessesoapared with the other -
businesses. Corporate operating expenses were0btillion in fiscal 2011 as compared with $82.3liail in fiscal 2010 primarily due to r
periodic pension expense recognized in fiscal 20 tbmpared with pension income recognized in fi264/0.

Interest Expense and Other Income (Expense), net

Interest expense for fiscal 2012 was $90.9 millidown $1.6 million, or 1.7%, compared with the pnye@ar. The decrease in inte
expense was primarily due to (i) the pay off of £#0million of 3.75% convertible debt in March 2044d (i) lower interest expense incur
under foreign bank credit facilities as comparedhvihe prior year. Se€inancing Transactiongor further discussion of the Compar
outstanding debt.
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Interest expense for fiscal 2011 was $92.5 milligm,$30.7 million, or 49.7% from interest expen$&®@l.7 million in fiscal 2010. Tt
year-overyear increase in interest expense was due to agaise in debt used to fund the acquisitions ofrfassies and the increase in wor
capital to support the significant growth in sales.

During fiscal 2012, the Company recognized $5.4ionilof other expense as compared with other incofm®10.7 million in the pric
year. The yei-overyear increase in other expense was due primarifgrigign exchange losses in fiscal 2012 compareld fereign currenc
exchange gains in the prior year.

Other income was $10.7 million in fiscal 2011 asnpared with other expense of $2.5 million in fis2@ll0 due primarily to foreig
currency exchange gains compared with losses ipribeyear and higher interest income earned agened with the prior year.

Gain on Bargain Purchase and Other

During fiscal 2012, the Company recognized a gaifargain purchase of $4.3 million p@d after tax and $0.03 per share on a di
basis. In January 2012, the Company acquired Uniflegtronics Limited, a Singapore publicly trademnpany, through a tender offer. Al
assessing the assets acquired and liabilities askutme consideration paid was below the fair valuthe acquired net assets and, as a r
the Company recognized the gain.

In addition to the gain on bargain purchase mestioabove, during fiscal 2012, the Company recoghatber charges of $1.4 milli
pre-tax, $0.9 million after tax and $0.01 per shamea diluted basis related to the writewn of an investment in a small technology com,
and the write-off of certain deferred financing tsoassociated with the early termination of a dréatility (seeFinancing Transactiongor
further discussion).

During fiscal 2011, the Company acquired Unidudapanese publicly traded company, through a teoftkr. After reassessing all ass
acquired and liabilities assumed, the considerapiaid was below the fair value of the acquired astets and, as a result, the Com
recognized a gain on bargain purchase of $31.0omilbre-and after tax and $0.20 per share on a dilutecsbsiaddition, the Compa
recognized other charges of $2.0 million pag; $1.4 million after tax and $0.01 per shareaddiluted basis primarily related to an impairn
of buildings in EMEA and recognized a loss of $6illion pretax, $3.9 million after tax and $0.02 per shareaatiluted basis related to
write-down of prior investments in smaller techrgjisstart-up companies.

Gain on Sale of Assets

During fiscal 2010, the Company recognized a gairsale of assets as a result of certain eatrprovisions associated with the sal
the Company’s equity investment in Calence LLC. §ae amounted to $8.8 million ptax, $5.4 million after tax and $0.03 per shares
diluted basis in fiscal 2010.

Income Tax Provision

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before incames was 28.3% in fiscal 2012 as compared witA%3n fiscal 2011. Included in t
fiscal 2012 effective tax rate is a net tax benefi$8.6 million, which is comprised of (i) a taerefit of $30.8 million for the release of
reserves (valuation allowance) against deferredatmets that were determined to be realizable,gpilynrelated to a legal entity in EME
(discussed further below), partially offset by @i)tax provision of $22.2 million related to chasgde existing tax positions, withholding
related to legal entity reorganizations, the estabient of tax reserves against certain defernredsaets and U.S. tax expense associatec
the release of the valuation allowance, partiaffgei by net favorable audit settlements. The fig@d 2 effective tax rate is higher than
fiscal 2011 effective tax rate primarily due tocaver amount of tax reserve released in fiscal 284 2ompared with the amount release
fiscal 2011, as discussed further below, and, tesaer extent, a more favorable impact from auelitesnents and changes to existing
positions in fiscal 2012 as compared with fiscal ROThese favorable impacts were partially offsetiz withholding tax mentioned above.

Prior to fiscal 2011, the Company had a full resesgainst significant tax assets related to a legtdy in EMEA due to, among seve
other factors, a history of losses in that enfityeach of fiscal 2012 and 2011, the Company detextha portion of the tax reserve relate
this entity was no longer required due to the etgmbcontinuation of improved earnings in the foesdsde future and, as a result, the Comp:
effective tax rate was positively impacted (decegupon the release of the tax reserves. In fi284R and 2011, the tax reserves rele
associated with this EMEA legal entity were $22.lliom and $64.2 million, respectively, net of théS. tax expense associated with
release. The Company will continue to evaluatentbed for a reserve against the tax assets assbuidtethis legal entity and will adjust t
reserve as deemed appropriate which, when adjustdesult in an impact to the effective tax rakxcluding the benefit in both fiscal ye
related to the release of the tax reserve assdcigitt the EMEA legal entity, the effective taxedbr fiscal 2012 would have been 31.19
compared
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with 30.6% for fiscal 2011.

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before incdmes was 23.2% in fiscal 2011 as compared witB%dn fiscal 2010. The fiscal 20
effective tax rate was impacted by a net tax beméf632.9 million primarily related to the EMEAdal entity release of a tax reserve
previously mentioned, and, to a lesser extentfangtrable tax audit settlements, partially offsgtdhanges to existing tax positions. The fi
2010 effective tax rate was impacted primarily inarges to estimates for existing tax positions ragtdfavorable tax audit settlements, of
by a reserve established against certain defesreddsets.

Avnet's effective tax rate is primarily a functiohthe tax rates in the numerous jurisdictions mch it does business applied to the
of pretax book income. The effective tax rate may vargryever year as a result of changes in tax req@nesin these jurisdictior
management's evaluation of its ability to genesafficient taxable income to offset net operatiogsl carryforwards and the establishmen
reserves for unfavorable outcomes of tax posittaken on certain matters that are common to mtitinal enterprises and the actual outc
of those matters.

The Company is in the final stages of two auditshgyU.S. Internal Revenue Service, one of whitdites to the Company and one rel
to the preacquisition period of an acquired entity. As a lestiis reasonably possible that within the naxelve months, the Company n
record a tax benefit of $30.0 million to $35.0 moil, which would favorably impact the effective teate in the period in which the matte
effectively settled. This estimated benefit is coisgd primarily of the recognition of additionaltreperating losses as well as the relea
related reserves, partially offset by unfavorahldibadjustments.

Net Income

As a result of the factors described in the praggdiections of this MD&A, the Comparsyhet income in fiscal 2012 was $567.0 mill
or $3.79 per share on a diluted basis, as compaitednet income of $669.1 million, or $4.34 per ghan a diluted basis, in fiscal 2011
$410.4 million, or $2.68 per share on a dilutedidas fiscal 2010. Fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010 lteswere impacted by certain items
presented in the following tables:

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Income (Loss) EPS
(Thousands, except per share data)
Restructuring, integration and other charges $ (73,58%) $ (73,58%) $ (52,969 $ (0.35)
Gain on bargain purchase and other — 2,91¢ 3,46: 0.0z
Net tax benefit — — 8,61¢ 0.0¢
Total $ (73,585 $ (70,667 $ (40,889 $ (0.279)
Year Ended July 2, 2011
Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Income (Loss) EPS
(Thousands, except per share data)
Restructuring, integration and other charges $ (77,17¢) $ (77,17¢) $ (56,169 $ (0.3¢)
Gain on bargain purchase and other — 22,71 25,72( 0.17
Release of tax valuation allowance, net of taxmese
adjustments — — 32,90: 0.21
Total $ 77,17¢) 3 (54,46) $ 2,452 % 0.0z
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Year Ended July 3, 2010

Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Income (Loss) EPS *
(Thousands, except per share data)
Restructuring, integration and other charges $ (25,419 $ (25,419 $ (18,789 $ (0.12)
Gain on sale of assets — 8,751 5,37(C 0.0
Net increase in tax reserves — — (842) (0.01)
Total $ (25,419 $ (16,668 $ (14,267 $ (0.09)

* EPS does not foot due to rounding
Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys consolidated financial statements have been prdpm accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparatidnthest
consolidated financial statements requires the Gompo make estimates and assumptions that affeaeported amounts of assets, liabili
revenues and expenses during the reporting pefioelse estimates and assumptions are based up@othpany$ continuous evaluation
historical results and anticipated future eventsuAl results may differ from these estimates unliféerent assumptions or conditions.

The Securities and Exchange Commission defineisariiccounting policies as those that are, in gameents view, most important
the portrayal of the Comparg/financial condition and results of operations #rat require significant judgments and estimaltésnagemer
believes the Company’s most critical accountinggies relate to:

Valuation of Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaots for estimated losses resulting from custodedaults. Bad debt reserves
recorded based upon historic default averages bhasvthe Compang regular assessment of the financial conditioitsafustomers. Therefo
if collection experience or the financial conditiaf specific customers were to change, managemenidvevaluate whether additio
adjustments are required.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of costt(fins— first out) or estimated market value. Then@pany’s inventories include high-
technology components, embedded systems and cargpethnologies sold into rapidly changing, cydliaad competitive markets wher
such inventories may be subject to technologicabtdscence.

The Company regularly evaluates inventories foreeggcobsolescence or other factors that may rémademtories less marketable. Write-
downs are recorded so that inventories reflectafhroximate net realizable value and take into ametthe Company contractual provisiol
with its suppliers, which may provide certain patens to the Company for product obsolescencepaing erosion in the form of rights
return and price protection. Because of the langmbyer of transactions and the complexity of mamgglre process around price protect
and stock rotations, estimates are made regardipgtanents to the carrying amount of inventorieddifionally, assumptions about fut
demand, market conditions and decisions to discoattertain product lines can impact the decisiowrite-down inventories. If assumptic
about future demand change or actual market camditare less favorable than those projected by gesmant, management would evall
whether additional write-downs of inventories agquired. In any case, actual values could be @iffiefrom those currently estimated.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Management's judgment is required in determining phovision for income taxes, deferred tax assatb l@mbilities and the valuatit
allowance recorded against net deferred tax asBe¢scarrying value of the Company's net operdtisg carryforwards is dependent upon
ability to generate sufficient future taxable in@im certain tax jurisdictions. In addition, the r@many considers historic levels of inco
expectations and risk associated with estimatdstofe taxable income and ongoing prudent and iié&asax planning strategies in assessi
tax valuation allowance. Should the Company deteenihat it is not able to realize all or part of deferred tax assets in the future
additional valuation allowance may be recorded reggaihe deferred tax assets with a correspondirggehto income in the period si
determination is made. Similarly, should the Compdatermine that it is able to realize all or pafrtits deferred tax assets that have |
reserved for, the Company may release a valuatiowance with a corresponding benefit to incoméhia period such determination is made.
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The Company establishes reserves for potentiafiguamable outcomes of positions taken on certaimmatters. These reserves are base
management's assessment of whether a tax benefibris likely than not to be sustained upon exarignaby tax authorities. There may
differences between the anticipated and actualoowts of these matters that may result in reverdfaleserves or additional tax liabilities
excess of the reserved amounts. To the extent adicistments are warranted, the Company's effetéiveate may potentially fluctuate a
result.

In determining the Company's effective tax ratenaggement considers current tax regulations in thmaemous jurisdictions in which
operates, and requires management's judgment tienpietation and application. Changes to such ¢gulations or disagreements with
Company's interpretation or application by tax atthes in any of the Company's major jurisdictiamgy have a significant impact on
Company's provision for income taxes.

Restructuring, Integration and Impairment Charges

The Company has been subject to the financial ilglaintegrating acquired businesses and chardatedeto business reorganizatic
In connection with such events, management is requio make estimates about the financial impacsuwfh matters that are inhere
uncertain. Accrued liabilities and reserves araldisthed to cover the cost of severance, facildgsolidation and closure, lease termine
fees, inventory adjustments based upon acquisitated termination of supplier agreements andierreevaluation of the acquired worki
capital assets (inventory and accounts receivahie) writedown of other acquired assets including goodwitdtual amounts incurred could
different from those estimated.

Additionally, in assessing goodwill for impairmetiie Company is required to make significant asgiong about the future cash flo
and overall performance of its reporting units. TB@mpany is also required to make judgments reggrtiie evaluation of changes in even
circumstances that would more likely than not redthe fair value of any of its reporting units helits carrying value, the results of wh
would determine whether an interim impairment tegst be performed. Should these assumptions omjadts change in the future based t
market conditions or should the structure of thenPany’s reporting units change based upon changes indsssstrategy, the Company r
be required to perform an interim impairment tebtol may result in a goodwill impairment charge.

During fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Companyqgueréd its annual goodwill impairment test and dateed there was no goodv
impairment in any of its reporting units. The Compaloes not believe there were any reporting uh#swere at risk of failing "step 1" of 1
goodwill impairment test. However, there were tveparting units for which the estimated fair valuaswnot substantially in excess of
carrying value of the reporting unit, specificall§p Asia and TS EMEA. The percentage by which thenesed fair value exceeded carry
value was approximately 15% and 20% for TS Asia BBEMEA, respectively. In addition, as of June 2012, TS Asia and TS EMEA h
approximately $58 million and $121 million, respeely, of allocated goodwiill.

In order to estimate the fair value of its repagtimits, the Company uses a combination of an ircapproach, specifically a discour
cash flow methodology, and a market approach. Tikeodnted cash flow methodology includes assumstion, among others, forecas
revenues, gross profit margins, operating profitgimes, working capital cash flow, perpetual growdites and londgerm discount rates, all
which require significant judgments and estimatgsnanagement which are inherently uncertain. Tkasemptions, judgments and estim
may change in the future based upon market comditiw other events and could result in a goodwipairment charge, in particular, in the
Asia and TS EMEA reporting units.

Contingencies and Litigation

From time to time, the Company may become a partprt otherwise involved in, various lawsuits, pigj investigations and other le
proceedings in the ordinary course of conductisghitisiness. While litigation is subject to inheraemicertainties, management does
anticipate that any current matters will have aemat adverse impact on the Company’s financialditbion, liquidity or results of operations.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company does not consider revenue recognitidseta critical accounting policy due to the natofréts business because rever
are generally recognized when persuasive evideheam arrangement exists, delivery has occurredeorices have been rendered, the :
price is fixed or determinable and collectabilgyréasonably assured. Generally, these criterinataipon the actual shipment of product tc
customer. Accordingly, other than for estimatesiteal to possible returns of products from customdiszounts or rebates, the recordin
revenue does not require significant judgmentsstmates.

Provisions for returns are estimated based onrsiosales returns, credit memo analysis and dthewn factors. Provisions are made
discounts and rebates, which are primarily volurased, and are generally based on historical trendsanticipated customer buying patte
Finally, revenues from maintenance contracts, whiehdeferred and recognized in income over teeolifthe agreement, are not material tc
consolidated results of operations of the Company.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 in th&lotes to Consolidated Financial Statemettsitained in Item 15 of this Report for the disémissof recently issue
accounting pronouncements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Company generated $528.7 million of cash frgrarating activities in fiscal 2012 as compared V#i#t¥8.1 million in fiscal 201
These results are comprised of: (1) cash flow gaadrfrom net income excluding nocash and other reconciling items, which includes
add-back of depreciation and amortization, defeinedme taxes, stock-based compensation and otimecash items (primarily the provisi
for doubtful accounts and periodic pension costg)] &) cash flow used for working capital, excluginash and cash equivalents. C
generated by working capital in fiscal 2012 reslilfeom a decrease in receivables and inventory #.3 million and $133.2 millio
respectively, offset by a decrease in payables3@®d million and in accrued expenses and oth&186.9 million. EM drove the decreas:
receivables and inventory which more than offsetiticrease in receivables at TS. TS inventory veagmially flat year over year. Net d
outstanding, in particular, receivable days, hasat@anged significantly as there has not been #@mjificant change in terms provided
customers nor are customers changing their paypatarns.

During fiscal 2011, the Company generated $278lliomiof cash from operating activities as compavéth cash used for operati
activities of $30.4 million in fiscal 2010. Cashedsfor working capital in fiscal 2011 consistedgodwth in accounts receivable and inven
of $421.5 million and $321.9 million, respectivepartially offset by an increase in payables of %26énillion. Cash used for working cap
during fiscal 2010 consisted of growth in accouetzivable and inventory of $1.07 billion and $46illion, respectively, partially offset
an increase in accounts payable of $963.3 millior. fiscal 2010, sales increased 18.1%; however Gbmpany used only $30.4 million
cash from operating activities to fund that growatha result of the significant improvement in wagkicapital velocity which increased t
record 7.8 times.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During fiscal 2012, the Company received net prdseef $595.8 million, primarily from borrowings uedthe accounts receiva
securitization program and bank credit facilitiés.addition, during fiscal 2012, the Company us&1&3 million of cash to repurch:
common stock under the $500 million share repurehmegram authorized by the Board in August 20EE [em 5. Market for Registrant
Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters ancelsBurchases of Equity Securitiesthis Form 10-K).

During fiscal 2011, the Company received proceeid$160.0 million from borrowings under the accounéseivable securitizatit
program and repaid $109.6 million for the 3.75% é¢oacquired in the Bell acquisition which were &med during fiscal 2011. The Compi
also received proceeds of $8.9 million, net of y@pants, related to bank credit facilities and otthelot.

During fiscal 2010, the Company received proceddd281.9 million from the issuance of notes, nereayments for bank and ot
debt. In June 2010, the Company issued $300.00mibi.875% Notes due June 2020 and received procdekiz06.5 million, net of discou
and underwriting fees.
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Other financing activities, net, in fiscal 2012,120and 2010 were primarily a result of cash reakfoe the exercise of stock options .
the associated excess tax benefit.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

During fiscal 2012, the Company used $313.2 millafncash for acquisitions, net of cash acquiredl &428.7 million for capiti
expenditures primarily related to system developneests and computer hardware and software purshase

During fiscal 2011, the Company used $691.0 millmincash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired] &t448.7 million for capiti
expenditures primarily related to system developnuaists and computer hardware and software expeedit Also during fiscal 2011, t
Company received $19.1 million of proceeds assediatith a divestiture and $10.6 million of proceéusn the sale of fixed assets.

During fiscal 2010, the Company used $112.4 millagrcash for investing activities, of which $69.3lion related to acquisitions a
investments. The Company also received proceed&ldf8 million related to earodt provisions from the prior sale of an equity hoe
investment as well as the sale of a small cost atethvestment. The Company used $66.9 million i@l expenditures related to build
and leasehold improvements, system developmens,costputer hardware and software and receivedd$ailion in proceeds primari
related to the sale of properties.

Capital Structure

The Company uses a variety of financing arrangespdamtth short-term and lortggrm, to fund its operations in addition to fu
generated from cash flow from operations. The Camifadso uses diversified sources of funding soithddes not become overly depender
one source and to achieve lower cost of fundingubh these different alternatives. These finaneimgngements include public bonds, short-
term and long-term bank loans and an accountsva&ule securitization program. For a detailed desiom of the Companyg external financir
arrangements outstanding at June 30, 2012, refdot® 7 to the consolidated financial statemengeagng in Item 15 of this Report.

The following table summarizes the Compangapital structure as of the end of fiscal 201thvai comparison with the end of fis
2011:

June 30, % of Total July 2, % of Total
2012 Capitalization 2011 Capitalization
(Dollars in thousands)
Short-term debt $ 872,40: 14.4% $ 243,07¢ 4.4%
Long-term debt 1,271,98! 21.0 1,273,50! 22.8
Total debt 2,144,38! 354 1,516,58: 27.2
Shareholders’ equity 3,905,73. 64.6 4,056,07! 72.8
Total capitalization $ 6,050,12; 100.0 $ 5,572,65i 100.0

Financing Transactions

During fiscal 2012, the Company entered into a-frear $1.0 billion senior unsecured revolving créalility (the "2012 Credit Facility'
with a syndicate of banks, which expires in Noverm®@16. In connection with the 2012 Credit Facjlitye Company terminated its exist
unsecured $500.0 million credit facility (the "20@8edit Facility") which was to expire in Septem2&12. Under the 2012 Credit Facility,
Company may elect from various interest rate optiaurrencies and maturities. As of the end ofafif012, there were $110.1 million
borrowings outstanding under the 2012 Credit Rgciticluded in “long-term debtih the consolidated financial statements. In additither:
were $17.2 million in letters of credit issued unttee 2012 Credit Facility, which represents aization of the 2012 Credit Facility capacity
are not recorded in the consolidated balance shedhe letters of credit are not debt. As of Jylp@11, there were $122.1 million
borrowings outstanding included in “long-term deist'the consolidated financial statements and $i@lon in letters of credit issued unc
the 2008 Credit Facility.
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During fiscal 2012, the Company amended its accoveteivable securitization program (the "Secwiton Program” or “Program”
with a group of financial institutions to allow th@ompany to sell, on a revolving basis, an undiideterest of up to $750.0 milli
($600.0 million prior to the amendment) in eligibleceivables while retaining a subordinated inteiesa portion of the receivables. 1
Program does not qualify for sale treatment an@, assult, any borrowings under the Program arerdec! as debt on the consolidated bal
sheet. The Program contains certain covenantsf athich the Company was in compliance with aswfe)30, 2012. The Program has a
year term that expires at the end of August 2018ichivis expected to be renewed for another yeatasnparable terms. There were $6°
million in borrowings outstanding under the Prograindune 30, 2012 and $160.0 million outstandiniubt 2, 2011.

Notes outstanding at June 30, 2012 consisted of:
*  $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due March 15, 2
e $250.0 million of 6.00% Notes due September 1, .
e $300.0 million of 6.625% Notes due September 156
e $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due June 15, %

In addition to its primary financing arrangemenktge Company has several small lines of credit niows locations to fund the shdgrnr
working capital, foreign exchange, overdraft antiefeof credit needs of its wholly owned subsiddarin Europe, Asia and Canada. A
generally guarantees its subsidiaries’ obligatiorder these facilities.

Covenants and Conditions

The Securitization Program discussed previouslyireg the Company to maintain certain minimum iesecoverage and leverage re
in order to continue utilizing the Program. The gteon also contains certain covenants relating ¢oqnality of the receivables sold. If th
conditions are not met, the Company may not be &blborrow any additional funds and the financiadtitutions may consider this
amortization event, as defined in the agreemenigtwivould permit the financial institutions to ligiate the accounts receivables sold to ¢
any outstanding borrowings. Circumstances thatccaffect the Companyg’ ability to meet the required covenants and candit of the
Program include the Compasybngoing profitability and various other econonm@rket and industry factors. Management does alit\z
that the covenants under the Program limit the Gomls ability to pursue its intended business stratagits future financing needs. T
Company was in compliance with all covenants ofRhegram as of June 30, 2012.

The 2012 Credit Facility, discussed kinancing Transactionsgontains certain covenants with various limitatiams debt incurrenc
dividends, investments and capital expenditures a@sd includes financial covenants requiring then@any to maintain minimum inter:
coverage and leverage ratios. Management doesefiet/é that the covenants in the Credit Facilityilithe Companys ability to pursue i
intended business strategy or its future financiegds. The Company was in compliance with all caméenof the Credit Facility as of June
2012.

SeelLiquidity below for further discussion of the Company’s aafaility under these various facilities.
Liquidity

As mentioned previously, the Company amended itswts receivable securitization program in Audst1 to increase the borrow
capacity from $600.0 million to $750.0 million. Alduring fiscal 2012, the Company entered intova¥iear $1.0 billion senior unsecu
revolving credit facility and terminated its exiggi $500 million facility. As of June 30, 2012, t®mpany had total borrowing capacity
$1.75 billion under the 2012 Credit Facility ande tiSecuritization Program. There were $110.1 millionborrowings outstanding a
$17.2 million in letters of credit issued under g2 Credit Facility and $670.0 million outstarglinder the Securitization Program resu
in $952.7 million of net availability at the end fi$cal 2012. During fiscal 2012, the Company hachaerage daily balance outstanding u
the 2012 Credit Facility of approximately $115 ioifi and $620 million under the Securitization Peogr During fiscal 2011, the Company
an average daily balance outstanding under the 2068it Facility of approximately $140 million ar#d05 million under the Securitizati
Program.
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The Company had cash and cash equivalents of $llli@h as of June 30, 2012, of which $874.0 millivas held outside the U.S. As
July 2, 2011, the Company had cash and cash egquigabf $675.3 million, of which $613.2 million wheld outside of the U.S. Liquidity
subject to many factors, such as normal businessatipns as well as general economic, financiampetitive, legislative, and regulat:
factors that are beyond the Company’s control. Gadhnces generated and held in foreign locatioasused for orgoing working capita
capital expenditures and to support acquisitiorieese balances are currently expected to be perriameimvested outside the U.S. If th
funds were needed in the U.S., the Company wouwdrigignificant income taxes to repatriate casld refforeign locations to the extent ti
are in excess of outstanding intercompany loanstauernet, Inc. from the foreign subsidiaries. biddion, local government regulations n
restrict the Compang’ ability to move funds among various locations arndertain circumstances. Management does notvieekecl
restrictions would limit the Company’s ability tasue its intended business strategy.

During fiscal 2012, the Company utilized $313.2limil of cash, net of cash acquired, for acquisitiortee Tompany has been mak
and expects to continue to make strategic invegsrthnough acquisition activity to the extent thedstments strengthen Avnetompetitiv:
position and meet management’s return on capitastiolds.

In addition to continuing to make investments imuisitions, the Company may repurchase up to ameggte of $500 million of tt
Companys common stock through a share repurchase progspnovged by the Board of Directors in August 20¥1August 2012, the Boa
of Directors approved adding $250 million to thewghrepurchase program. With this increase, thep@osn may repurchase up to a tote
$750 million of the Company's common stock underghare purchase program. The Company plans toctegse stock from time to time
the discretion of management, subject to strategitsiderations, market conditions and other factbine Company may terminate or limit
stock repurchase program at any time without pragice. The timing and actual number of sharesimased will depend on a variety of fac
such as price, corporate and regulatory requiresnamid prevailing market conditions. Since inceptié the program in August 2011 throt
the end of fiscal 2012, the Company repurchase8l million shares at average market price of $2@&80share for total cost of $325.9 milli
This amount differs from the cash used for repusebaof common stock on the consolidated statenfezash flows to the extent repurche
were not settled at the end of the fiscal yearr&heepurchased were retired.

During periods of weakening demand in the electraximponent and enterprise computer solutions tnguthe Company typical
generates cash from operating activities. Conwerslet Company is more likely to use operating déshs for working capital requiremel
during periods of higher growth. During fiscal 2018e Company generated $528.7 milliam cash from operations as revenue decline:
over the prior year. Management believes that Asn@trrowing capacity, its current cash availapiind the Compang’expected ability -
generate operating cash flows are sufficient totrte@rojected financing needs.

The following table highlights the Company’s ligitidand related ratios for the past two fiscal year
COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS — LIQUIDITY

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, Percentage
2012 2011 Change
(Dollars in millions)

Current Assets $ 8254.. % 8,227.. 0.3%
Quick Assets 5,614.. 5,439.¢ 3.2
Current Liabilities 4,798." 4,477 7.2
Working Capital? 3,455, 3,749t (7.9
Total Debt 2,144.. 1,516.¢ 41.4
Total Capital (total debt plus total shareholdeity) 6,050.: 5,572 8.6
Quick Ratio 1.2:1 1.2:1
Working Capital Ratio 1.7:1 1.8:1
Debt to Total Capital 35.2% 27.2%

(1) This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabilit
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The Company'’s quick assets (consisting of cashcastl equivalents and receivables) increased @%b July 2, 2011 to June 30, 2(
primarily due to an increase in cash and cash etpnts over the prior year, which was partiallyseff by a decrease in receivables
primarily to the impact of the change in foreignremcy exchange spot rates at July 2, 2011 angle¢heoveryear decline in revenue. Curr
assets remained flat as the increase in cash afderpivalents were offset by a decrease in relleisaand inventory, also a result of
impact of the change in foreign currency exchanuet sates and the decline in sales. Current ligdsliincreased 7.2% primarily due ta
increase in shorerm borrowings, which was partially offset by acisase in payables. As a result of the factorschatove, total workir
capital decreased by 7.8% during fiscal 2012. Taéhlt increased by 41.4%, primarily due to thegase in shorterm borrowings, total capi
increased 8.6% and the debt to capital ratio irsgedo 35.4%.

Long-Term Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligagioutstanding as of June 30, 2012 (in millions):

Due in Less Due in Due in Due After
Total Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt, including amounts due
within one year (1) $ 2,146.¢ $ 872.. % 314.C $ 660.E $ 300.(
Interest expense on long-term notes (2) $ 3222 % 854 $ 120.¢ % 63.€ $ 52.2
Operating leases $ 294t % 95.¢ $ 110.C % 522 % 36.5

(1) Excludes discount on lortgrm notes
(2) Represents interest expense due on termg-notes with fixed interest rates and varialg@btdissuming the same interest rate as at Ju
2012.

At June 30, 2012, the Company had a liability fosdme tax contingencies of $146.6 millipwhich is not included in the above ta
Cash payments associated with the settlement setligbilities that are expected to be paid witlie next 12 months is $12.9 million. ~
Company does not currently have any material comanits for capital expenditures.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarkRisk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and cashvbiatility associated with changes in interest sad@d foreign currency exchai
rates by entering into financial arrangements, ftome to time, which are intended to provide a hedgainst all or a portion of the ri
associated with such volatility. The Company camgto have exposure to such risks to the extegtale not hedged.

The following table sets forth the scheduled méiesiof the Company’s debt outstanding at Jun€802 (dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total
Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt (1) $ 1¢C $ 301t % 03 $ 250.C $ 300.C % 300.C $ 1,152
Floating rate debt $ 871« $ 117  $ 0t $ 1102 $ 01 $ — 994.1

(1) Excludes discounts on lotgrm notes

The following table sets forth the carrying valu dair value of the Company’s debt at June 3022@bllars in millions):

Carrying Value Carrying Value
at Fair Value at at Fair Value at

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011 July 2, 2011
Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt (1) $ 1,152.¢ $ 1,285.¢ $ 1,154 % 1,261.:
Average interest rate 6.1% 6.1%
Floating rate debt $ 994.1 % 994.1 % 365.5 % 365.¢
Average interest rate 1.5% 2.2%

(1) Excludes discounts on longrm notes

Many of the Company subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and selluptedn currencies other than their functional endies. Thi
subjects the Company to the risks associated Witliuiations in foreign currency exchange rates. Thenpany reduces this risk by utiliz
natural hedging (offsetting receivables and paygbks well as by creating offsetting positions tigto the use of derivative financ
instruments, primarily forward foreign exchange tcacts with maturities of less than sixty days. TB@npany continues to have exposul
foreign currency risks to the extent they are redded. The Company adjusts all foreign denominhtddnces and any outstanding fort
exchange contracts to fair market value througlctresolidated statements of operations. Therefbeemarket risk related to foreign excha
contracts is offset by changes in valuation of uheerlying items being hedged. The asset or lighikpresenting the fair value of fore
exchange contracts is classified in the captiorteéiocurrent assets” or “accrued expenses and,bthsrapplicable, in the accompany
consolidated balance sheets. A hypothetical 109hgdhdn currency exchange rates under the contmtttanding at June 30, 2012 wc
result in an increase or decrease of approximéibB.4 million to the fair value of the forward faya exchange contracts, which wao
generally be offset by an opposite effect on thated hedged positions.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary dathséed under Item 15 of this Report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys management, including its Chief Executive Offiead Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated tHeativeness of tt
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures (as &rm is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
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under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the taxge Act”)) as of the end of the reporting perdodered by this report on Form X0-
Based on such evaluation, the Chief Executive @ffand Chief Financial Officer have concluded thatof the end of the period coverec
this report on Form 10-K, the Compasaydisclosure controls and procedures are effestich that material information required to be diset
by the Company in the reports that it files or sitbrander the Exchange Act is recorded, processgdmarized and reported, within the t
periods specified by the Securities and Exchangmr@issions rules and forms and is accumulated and commugicet manageme
including the Company’ principal executive officer and principal finaalcofficer, as appropriate to allow timely decisargarding require
disclosure.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, there &v@no changes to the Compasiyhternal control over financial reporting (asidedl ir
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that have niallgraffected, or are reasonably likely to mathyiaffect, the Company internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management, including its Chief Executive Offieerd Chief Financial Officer, is responsible fotaddishing an
maintaining adequate internal control over finaheceporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 18(6(f) under the Exchange Act. 1
Companys internal control over financial reporting is dggd to provide reasonable assurance regardinceliadility of financial reportin
and the preparation of financial statements foeml purposes in accordance with generally acdegateounting principles in the United St:
of America. Because of inherent limitations, intdrnontrol over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements. Also, cont
may become inadequate because of changes in anyjitor the degree of compliance with the polidesprocedures may deterior:
Management conducted an evaluation of the effentise of the Comparg/’internal control over financial reporting as ahd 30, 2012. |
making this assessment, management used the fralest@ablished innternal Control — Integrated Framewortsued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commissioth concluded that the Company maintained effedtiternal control over financ
reporting as of June 30, 2012.

The Company’s independent registered public acdogrftrm, KPMG LLP, has audited the effectivenedstlte Companys interna
controls over financial reporting as of June 30, 2s stated in its audit report which is inclutiedein.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governze

The information called for by Item 10 is incorpaatin this Report by reference to the Compargéfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipatededileld on November 2, 2012.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information called for by Item 11 is incorpa@tin this Report by reference to the Comparggfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipatededield on November 2, 2012.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahMbBnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information called for by Item 12 is incorpa@tin this Report by reference to the Comparggfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipatededield on November 2, 2012.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abiatector Independence

The information called for by Item 13 is incorpaatin this Report by reference to the Compargéfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders anticipatededéld on November 2, 2012.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information called for by Iltem 14 is incorpaatin this Report by reference to the Compargéfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipatedédleld on November 2, 2012.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

1.

3.

a. The following documents are filed as part of fReport:

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounimm

Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Firdrtatements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2012 un@&,2011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeadsd June 30, 2012, July 2, 2011 and July 3, 2010

Consolidated Statements of ShareholdEruity for the years ended June 30, 2012, Julp21nd July 3, 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradsd June 30, 2012, July 2, 2011 and July 3, 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule 1l (Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) the years ended June 30, 2012, July 2, 2011 dn@®JR010

Schedules other than that above have been omitealibe they are not applicable or the requiredrmdton is shown in the
financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&6{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regdthas duly caused this Repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Date: August 10, 2012

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personos# signature appears below hereby authorizes ppairss each «
Richard Hamada and Raymond Sadowski his or hematys-infact, for him or her in any and all capacitiesstgn any amendments to t
Report, and to file the same, with exhibits theratod other documents in connection therewith, withSecurities and Exchange Commis:
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said atteys-in-fact, or their substitute, may do or caosiee done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bblothe following persons on bet
of the Registrant and in the capacities indicatedogust 10, 2012 .

Signature Title
/s/ RICHARD HAMADA Chief Executive Officer and Director
Richard Hamada (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl ROY VALLEE . .
Chairman of the Board and Director
Roy Vallee
/s/ ELEANOR BAUM .
Director
Eleanor Baum
/s/ J. VERONICA BIGGINS .
- — Director
J. Veronica Biggins
/s/ R. KERRY CLARK .
Director
R. Kerry Clark
/sl EHUD HOUMINER .
- Director
Ehud Houminer
/sl JAMES A. LAWRENCE .
Director
James A. Lawrence
/s/ FRANK R. NOONAN .
Director
Frank R. Noonan
/s/ RAY M. ROBINSON .
- Director
Ray M. Robinson
/s/ WILLIAM H. SCHUMANN, III .
Director

William H. Schumann, Il



/s/ WILLIAM P. SULLIVAN

— - Director
William P. Sullivan
/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Raymond Sadowski (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Goypas of June 30, 2012 and Jul
2011, and the related consolidated statements erfatipns, shareholders' equity, and cash flowsémh of the years in the thrgear perio
ended June 30, 2012. In connection with our audfitthe consolidated financial statements, we hdge audited the financial statem
schedule for each of the years in the thyear period ended June 30, 2012, as listed in ¢henapanying index. We also have auditec
Company's internal control over financial reportagyof June 30, 2012, based on criteria establishiediernal Control -Integrated Framewol
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compangaagement is responsible
these consolidated financial statements, for maimg effective internal control over financial ating, and for its assessment of
effectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting, included in the accompanyifdanagement's Report on Internal Control ¢
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion oesth consolidated financial statements, an opiniorthe financie
statement schedule and an opinion on the Compemgfmal control over financial reporting basedoam audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlaUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to iobteasonable assurance about whether the finastéé¢ments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal conteér financial reporting was maintained in all evél respects. Our audits of
consolidated financial statements included exarginion a test basis, evidence supporting the amoamds disclosures in the financ
statements, assessing the accounting principled ard significant estimates made by management,exatiiating the overall financ
statement presentation. Our audit of internal @dndwver financial reporting included obtaining anderstanding of internal control o
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a melteveakness exists, and testing and evaluatiegdiisign and operating effectivenes
internal control based on the assessed risk. Oditsaalso included performing such other procedwgsve considered necessary in
circumstances. We believe that our audits proviceaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repagtiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeacepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (dtajmeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseoEdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assu
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgr@paration of financial statements in accor@amdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dcompany are being made only in accordance withogéizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanasisurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could bawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @tteisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, the financial position of the Av
Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2012 and2uB011, and the results of their operations aed ttash flows for each of the years in
threeyear period ended June 30, 2012, in conformity Witls. generally accepted accounting principles.0Ats our opinion, the relat
financial statement schedule for each of the y@arthe threeyear period ended June 30, 2012, when consideredlation to the bas
consolidated financial statements taken as a wipoésents fairly, in all material respects, th@infation set forth therein. Furthermore, in
opinion, Avnet, Inc. maintained, in all materiapects, effective internal control over financigorting as of June 30, 2012, based on cr
established itnternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatitee Treadway Commission.

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 10, 2012
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, July 2,
2012 2011
(Thousands, except share amounts)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,006,86. $ 675,33«
Receivables, less allowances of $106,319 and $297réspectively (Note 3) 4,607,32. 4,764,29:
Inventories 2,388,64. 2,596,47!
Prepaid and other current assets 251,60¢ 191,11(
Total current assets 8,254,43! 8,227,20
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 5) 461,23( 419,17:
Goodwill (Notes 2 and 6) 1,100,62. 885,07
Other assets 351,57¢ 374,11
Total assets $ 10,167,86 $ 9,905,56!

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Borrowings due within one year (Note 3 and 7) $ 872,40: $ 243,07¢
Accounts payable 3,230,76! 3,561,63.
Accrued expenses and other (Note 8) 695,48 673,01t

Total current liabilities 4,798,65: 4,477,772
Long-term debt (Note 7) 1,271,98! 1,273,50!
Other long-term liabilities (Notes 9 and 10) 191,49 98,26:

Total liabilities 6,262,13 5,849,49

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 and 13)
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 4, 12 and 14):
Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,000eshé&sued 142,586,000 shares and 152,835,0

shares, respectively 142,58t 152,83!
Additional paid-in capital 1,263,81 1,233,20!
Retained earnings 2,545,85! 2,293,511
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (Mpte (45,832 377,21
Treasury stock at cost, 37,872 shares and 37,802shrespectively (697) (695)

Total shareholders’ equity 3,905,73. 4,056,071

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1016786 ¢ 9,905,56

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Thousands, except share amounts)

Sales $ 2570752 $ 26,53441 $ 19,160,17
Cost of sales 22,656,96 23,426,60 16,879,95
Gross profit 3,050,55 3,107,80! 2,280,21°
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,092,80 2,100,65! 1,619,19
Restructuring, integration and other charges (N@de 73,58¢ 77,17¢ 25,41¢
Operating income 884,16! 929,97¢ 635,60(
Other income (expense), net (5,447 10,72« 2,48(
Interest expense (90,859 (92,457 (61,749
Gain on bargain purchase and other (Note 2) 2,91¢ 22,71 —
Gain on sale of assets (Note 2) — — 8,751
Income before income taxes 790,78: 870,96¢ 585,08:
Income tax provision (Note 9) 223,76: 201,89 174,71
Net income $ 567,01¢ $ 669,06¢ $ 410,37(
Net earnings per share (Note 14):

Basic $ 3.8t $ 43¢ $ 2.71
Diluted $ 3.7¢  $ 43.  $ 2.6¢
Shares used to compute earnings per share (Nate 14)

Basic 147,27¢ 152,48: 151,62¢
Diluted 149,55: 154,33 153,09:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended June 30, 2012, July 2, 2011 and JulyZ&)10

Balance, June 27, 2009
(as adjusted —see Note 1)
Net income

Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $19,48/btes 4, 10
and 15)

Comprehensive income (Note 4)

Stock option and incentive programs, including tedaax
benefits of $2,100

Balance, July 3, 2010
Net income

Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $12,qRtes 4, 10
and 15)

Comprehensive income (Note 4)

Stock option and incentive programs, including tedatax
benefits of $4,689

Balance, July 2, 2011
Net income

Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $32,38tes 4, 10
and 15)

Comprehensive income (Note 4)

Repurchases of common stock (Note 4)

Stock option and incentive programs, including tedatax
benefits of $4,442

Balance, June 30, 2012

Accumulated

Additional Other Total

Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders’

Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Equity

(Thousands)

$ 151,09¢ $ 1,178,520 $ 1,214,07. $ 218,09 $ 931) $ 2,760,85
— — 410,37( — — 410,37(
— — — (159,51 — (159,51
— — — (31,219 — (31,219
219,63¢

77t 27,60¢ — — 23¢ 28,62:
151,87« 1,206,13: 1,624,44. 27,36 (692) 3,009,11
— — 669,06¢ — — 669,06¢

— — — 329,88 — 329,88

= = — 19,96¢ — 19,96¢
1,018,91

961 27,077 — — 3) 28,03t
152,83! 1,233,20! 2,293,510 377,21: (695) 4,056,071
— — 567,01¢ — — 567,01¢
— — — (370,41)) — (370,41))
= = — (52,62 — (52,62%)
143,97t
(11,270 (314,67)) (325,94
1,021 30,60¢ — — 2 31,627
$ 142,58« $ 1,263,81 $ 254585 $ (45,83) $ 697) $ 3,905,73:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Non-cash and other reconciling items:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes (Note 9)
Stock-based compensation (Note 12)
Gain on sale of assets (Note 2)
Gain on bargain purchase and other (Note 2)
Other, net (Note 15)
Changes in (net of effects from businesses acquired
Receivables
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other, net
Net cash flows provided by (used for) operatingvé@s
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under accounts receivable securitizgtiamgram, net (Note 3)
Issuance of notes in a public offering, net of &we costs (Note 7)
Repayment of notes (Note 7)
Proceeds from (repayments of) bank debt, net (WMpte
Proceeds from (repayments of) other debt, net (Mpte
Repurchases of common stock (Note 4)
Other, net (Note 12)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Cash proceeds from sales of property, plant angpeoant
Acquisitions of operations and investments, netash acquired (Note 2)
Cash proceeds from divestiture activities (Note 2)
Net cash flows used for investing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvasnts
Cash and cash equivalents:
— increase (decrease)
— at beginning of year
— at end of year

Additional cash flow information (Note 15)

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Thousands)

$ 567,01¢ $ 669,06¢ $ 410,37(
101,33 81,38¢ 60,64
11,78: 15,96¢ 46,42«
35,73% 28,93: 28,361
— — (8,759
(2,919 (22,71%) —
66,26 56,84¢ 15,38¢
72,26’ (421,45 (1,070,30)
133,17¢ (321,939 (459,91)
(319,099 165,18! 963,33:
(136,85) 26,80« (15,967
528,71t 278,07¢ (30,41Y)
510,00( 160,00( —
— — 296,46¢

— (109,600 —
86,82! 1,64¢ (1,737)
(1,007 7,23¢ (2,809
(318,33) — —
5,59( 3,93( 4,83¢
283,07: 63,21: 296,77.
(128,659 (148,70 (66,889
1,04¢ 10,62: 12,01t
(313,219 (690,99 (69,339
— 19,10¢ 11,78¢
(440,829 (809,979 (112,42)
(39,43) 51,91¢ (5,755
331,53( (416,769 148,18:
675,33: 1,092,10: 943,92:
$ 1,006,86- $ 675,33« $ 1,092,10:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidation— The accompanying consolidated financial statemigriside the accounts of the Company and all ¢
majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries. Allirdtompany accounts and transactions have beematigai.

Cash and cash equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith an original maturity of three months or leésde
cash equivalents.

Inventories— Inventories, comprised principally of finishedagls, are stated at cost (first-in, first-out) omkes, whichever is lower.

Investments— Investments in joint ventures and entities inakhihe Company has an ownership interest greater 30%and exercise
control over the venture are consolidated in thmapanying consolidated financial statements. Bomtrolling interests in the years prese
are not material and, as a result, are includethéncaption “accrued expenses and otlierthe accompanying consolidated balance st
Investments in joint ventures and entities in whiod Company exercises significant influence batoomtrol are accounted for using the ec
method. The Company invests from time to time intuges in which the Company’s ownership interedess than 20%nd over which tt
Company does not exercise significant influenceehSavestments are accounted for using the codtadefThe fair values for investments
traded on a quoted exchange are estimated basedhgpdistorical performance of the ventures, thietwres’forecasted financial performar
and management’s evaluation of the ventuveility and business models. To the extent thekbealue of an investment exceeds its asst
fair value, the Company will record an appropriatpairment charge. Thus, the carrying value of@oenpanys investments approximates
value.

Depreciation and amortizatior~ Depreciation and amortization is generally preddor by the straighine method over the estima
useful lives of the assets. The estimated usef@slifor depreciation and amortization are typically follows: buildings — 30years
machinery, fixtures and equipment — 2 - 10 years] leasehold improvements — over the applicadeaining lease term or useful life
shorter .

Long-lived assets— Longdived assets are reviewed for impairment whenewan&s or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverdsl impairment is recognized when the estimatediscounted cash flows expecte:
result from the use of the asset and its eventispbdition is less than its carrying amount. An &inment is measured as the amount by w
an asses net book value exceeds its estimated fair valbe. Company continually evaluates the carrying &aad the remaining econor
useful life of all longlived assets and will adjust the carrying value tiredrelated depreciation and amortization peri@hd when appropriat

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of net assets acquired. Ahtesis for goodwi
impairment are performed by applying a fair-valwesdxd test to Avnet's six reporting units, definedeach of the threegional businesse
which are the Americas, EMEA (Europe, Middle Eastl #frica), and Asia, within each of the Companyperating groups. The Comp.
conducts its periodic test for goodwill impairmemmnually , on the first day of the fiscal fourthagier. A twostep process is used to evall
goodwill for impairment. The first step is to detene if there is an indication of impairment by queming the estimated fair value of e
reporting unit to its carrying value including etitig) goodwill. Goodwill is considered impaired ife carrying value of a reporting unit exce
the estimated fair value. The second step, whicheidormed only if there is an indication of impa@nt, determines the amount of
impairment by comparing the implied fair value bétreporting unig goodwill with its carrying value. To estimaterfaalue of each reportil
unit, the Company uses a combination of presenievaind market valuation techniques that utilizesel &8 criteria under the fair val
measurement standards. The estimated fair valudd change in the future due to changes in mankéttaisiness conditions that could af
the assumptions and estimates used in these \@itatihniques.

Foreign currency translatior— The assets and liabilities of foreign operations taanslated into U.S. Dollars at the exchangesra
effect at the balance sheet date, with the relatadslation adjustments reported as a separate aenp of shareholdersquity ani
comprehensive income. Results of operations areslated using the average exchange rates prevdilnogighout the period. Transacti
denominated in currencies other than the functianatency of the Avnet business unit that is padythe transaction (primarily tra
receivables and payables) are translated at exehags in effect at the balance sheet date or sptitement of the transaction. Gains
losses from such translation are recorded in tnsaalated statements of operations as a compafiénther income (expense), netri fisca
2012, 2011 and 2010, gains or losses on foraigrercy translation were not material.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Income taxes— The Company follows the asset and liability metldcaccounting for income taxes. Deferred income dagets ar
liabilities are recognized for the estimated futte® impact of differences between the financialtesnent carrying amounts of assets
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Def¢lireome tax assets and liabilities are measured) nacted tax rates in effect for the yei
which those temporary differences are expecteatebovered or settled. The effect on deferrednmectax assets and liabilities of a chang
tax rates is recognized in earnings in the penodiich the new rate is enacted. Based upon histiogind projected levels of taxable inc«
and analysis of other key factors, the Company reagrd a valuation allowance against its defereedassets, as deemed necessary, tc
such assets at their estimated net realizable value

The Company establishes reserves for potentialiguanable outcomes of positions taken on certaimiatters. These reserves are b
on managemerg’assessment of whether a tax benefit is moreyltkeln not to be sustained upon examination byatdkorities. There may
differences between the anticipated and actualoowts of these matters that may result in reverdaleserves or additional tax liabilities
excess of the reserved amounts. To the extent adicistments are warranted, the Compareffective tax rate may potentially fluctuate .
result.

No provision for U.S. income taxes has been madeafproximately $2.5 billionof cumulative unremitted earnings of fore
subsidiaries at June 30, 20i€cause those earnings are expected to be perryars@miested outside the U.S. A hypothetical cktian of the
deferred tax liability, assuming those earningsesremitted, is not practicable.

Self-insurance— The Company is primarily self-insured for workermmpensation, medical, and general, product andnzalile
liability costs; however, the Company also hasop4tss insurance policy in place to limit the Camnyp's exposure to individual and aggret
claims made. Liabilities for these programs ar@vesied based upon outstanding claims and clainms&sd to have been incurred but not
reported based upon historical loss experiences& bstimates are subject to variability due to gharnn trends of losses for outstanding cli
and incurred but not recorded claims, includingeenxdl factors such as future inflation rates, biéil@fel changes and claim settlement patte

Revenue recognitior—Revenue from product sales is recognized when psigl evidence of an arrangement exists, deliver
occurred or services have been rendered, the padesis fixed or determinable and collectibilityrieasonably assured. Generally, these ci
are met upon shipment to customers. Most of the g2myis product sales come from product Avnet purchases & supplier and holds
inventory. A portion of the Comparg/sales are shipments of product directly fronsitgpliers to its customers. In such circumstangesgt
negotiates the price with the customer, pays thpplger directly for the product shipped and beaedit risk of collecting payment from
customers. Furthermore, in such dgippment arrangements, Avnet bears responsibifityatcepting returns of product from the custc
even if Avnet, in turn, has a right to return thhequct to the original supplier if the product sfective. Under these terms, the Company s
as the principal with the customer and, therefarepgnizes the sale and cost of sale of the praguan receiving notification from the supp
that the product has shipped.

In addition, the Company has more limited contraktalationships with certain of its customers angpliers whereby Avnet assume:
agency relationship in the transaction. In suchregements, the Company recognizes the fee assbuidgteserving as an agent in sales witl
associated cost of sales.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recograzably over the life of the contracts, generadlgging from one to three years.

Revenues are recorded net of discounts, rebatesstimdlated returns. Provisions are made for digsoaimd rebates, which are prima
volumebased, and are based on historical trends andipgatéd customer buying patterns. Provisions fourret are estimated based
historical sales returns, credit memo analysisathdr known factors.

Comprehensive income (loss} Comprehensive income (loss) represents net incdoss)(for the year adjusted for change
shareholders’ equity from nahareholder sources. Accumulated comprehensivenieadtems typically include currency translation ahe
impact of the Company’s pension liability adjustieret of tax (see Note 4).

Stock-based compensatieAThe Company measures shagsed payments, including grants of employee stptions, at fair value al
recognizes the associated expense in the consalidedtement of operations over the requisite seperiod (see Note 12).
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Concentration of credit risk— Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to a concentration of credit risk prindig
consist of cash and cash equivalents and tradeiatsceeceivable. The Company invests its exceds masarily in overnight Eurodollar tin
deposits and institutional money market funds wgthality financial institutions. The Company selleatronic components and compi
products primarily to original equipment and contrenanufacturers, including the military and mifjtacontractors, throughout the world.
reduce credit risk, management performs ongoinditcevaluations of its customerhancial condition and, in some instances, hasiobt
insurance coverage to reduce such risk. The Compeaiytains reserves for potential credit losses hlas not experienced any material lo
related to individual customers or groups of cugimsin any particular industry or geographic area.

Fair value of financial instruments— The Company measures financial assets and liailiit fair value based upon exit pi
representing the amount that would be receivecherstle of an asset or paid to transfer a liabilityan orderly transaction between ma
participants. Accounting standards require inpsisduin valuation techniques for measuring fair @aa a recurring or norecurring basis t
assigned to a hierarchical level as follows: Leliedre observable inputs that reflect quoted prfoesdentical assets or liabilities in act
markets. Level 2 are observable markased inputs or unobservable inputs that are coratdéd by market data and Level 3 are unobser
inputs that are not corroborated by market datae Tarrying amounts of the Compasyfinancial instruments, including cash and
equivalents, receivables and accounts payable rippaite their fair values at June 30, 2012 due ¢ostiortterm nature of these instruments
June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011 , the Company h&d,435,000 and $164,157,000espectively, of cash equivalents which were et
based upon Level 1 criteria. See Note 7 for furttiscussion of the fair value of the Company'’s dixate longterm debt instruments and
Investmentin this Note 1 for further discussion of the faawe of the Company’s investments in unconsolidatgdies.

Derivative financial instruments- Many of the Companyg’ subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and seluptedh currencies other tr
their functional currencies. This subjects the Canmypto the risks associated with fluctuations irefgn currency exchange rates. The Com
reduces this risk by utilizing natural hedging éeffting receivables and payables) as well as tatiogeoffsetting positions through the us:
derivative financial instruments, primarily forwafwreign exchange contracts with maturities of ks sixty days. The Company continue
have exposure to foreign currency risks to therdxteey are not hedged. The Company adjusts aligordenominated balances and
outstanding foreign exchange contracts to fair miavialue through the consolidated statements ofatipas. Therefore, the market risk relz
to the foreign exchange contracts is offset byd@nges in valuation of the underlying items bdiedged. The asset or liability represer
the fair value of foreignh exchange contracts, bageth Level 2 criteria under the fair value measwets standards, is classified in the cap
“other current assets” or “accrued expenses angr this applicable, in the accompanying consolidatednua sheets and were not materie
addition, the Company did not have material gan®sses related to the forward contracts whichrecerded in “other income (expense), net”
in the accompanying consolidated statements ofatipais.

The Company has, from time to time, entered intgleearansactions that convert certain fixed rat# tievariable rate debt. To the exi
the Company enters into such hedge transactionsgtfair value hedges and the hedged debt aretedjtes current market values throi
interest expense.

The Company generally does not hedge its investimeits foreign operations. The Company does naéreimto derivative financi
instruments for trading or speculative purposesranditors the financial stability and credit starglof its counterparties.

Accounts receivable securitizatier The Company has an accounts receivable securiizagtiogram whereby the Company may
receivables in securitization transactions andmetasubordinated interest and servicing rightthtise receivables. The securitization prog
is accounted for as an on-balance sheet finanhigigh the securitization of accounts receivalge (dote 3).

Fiscal year— The Company operates on a “52/53 week” fiscal,yedich ends on the Saturday closest to June ¥osical 2012anc
2011 contained 52 weeks while fiscal 2010 conthibg weeks. Unless otherwise noted, all referetméfscal 2012 ” or any other “year”
shall mean the Company'’s fiscal year.

Management estimates- The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prires
requires management to make estimates and assmsphiat affect certain reported amounts of assetdsliabilities, disclosure of continge
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstialements and the reported amounts of revenukesxq@enses during the reporting period. Ac
results could differ from those estimates.
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Adoption of accounting standard Fhe Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBYued authoritative guidance that require:
issuer of certain convertible debt instruments thay be settled in cash (or other assets) on ceiweto separately account for the debt
equity (conversion option) components of the insteat. The Company adopted this standard durinditstequarter of fiscal 2010; howev
there was no impact to the fiscal 2010 consoliddiedncial statements because the Company’s G8favertible Senior Debentures (
“Debentures”) to which this standard applied, were extinguishretMarch 2009. Due to the required retrospectivdiegion of this standar
the Company adjusted the prior period comparativesclidated financial statements. The cumulatifectfof the change was recordec
certain components of equity as of the beginninghef earliest fiscal year presented in the conatdidl statements of shareholdezguity
which resulted in an increase of $43,190,@800Qhe previously reported June 27, 2009 additiguaadl in capital and a decrease of the ¢
amount in the previously reported June 27, 200&imetl earnings.

Recently issued accounting pronouncementdn June 2011, the FASB amended its guidance orpthsentation of comprehens
income in financial statements. The amended guel@fiminates the option to present componentsttgrotomprehensive income (“OCI&x
part of the statement of changes in equity. Insteatities can elect to present items of net incame OCI in one continuous statemer
“statement of comprehensive incomedy, can elect to present these items in two separsteonsecutive statements. The guidance, wh
effective beginning the Company’s fiscal year 204®, not have an impact on the Compasigonsolidated financial statements as the guic
only relates to changes in financial statementepriggion.
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2. Acquisitions and divestitures
Acquisitions
During fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company &ed22 businesses which are presented in theAifptable.

Approximate

Annualized

Revenues (1)
Group & Region (Millions)

Acquired Business Acquisition Date

Fiscal 2012

Ascendant Technology TS Americas & TS $ 86 April 2012
EMEA
Nexicore Services EM Americas 85 April 2012
Controlling interest in a non-wholly owned entity EM Americas 62 January 2012
Pinnacle Data Systems EM Americas 27 January 2012
Canvas Systems TS Americas & TS 11€ January 2012
EMEA
Unidux Electronics Limited (Singapore) EM Asia/Pac 14E January 2012
Round 2 Tech EM Americas 54 January 2012
DE2 SAS EM EMEA 11 November 2011
JC Tally Trading Co. & Shanghai FR Internationading EM Asia/Pac 99 August 2011
Prospect Technology EM Asia/Pac 142 August 2011
Amosdec SAS TS EMEA 83 July 2011
Fiscal 2011
itX Group Ltd. TS Asia/Pac 16C January 2011
Center Cell EM Americas 5 November 2010
Eurotone EM Asia/Pac 3C October 2010
Broadband EM Americas 8 October 2010
Unidux EM Asia/Pac 37C July 2010
Tallard Technologies TS Americas 25C July 2010
Bell Microproducts Inc. EM & TS 3,021 July 2010
Americas
TS EMEA
Fiscal 2010
Servodata HP Division TS EMEA 2C April 2010
PT Datamation TS Asia/Pac 9C April 2010
Sunshine Joint Stock Company TS Asia/Pac 3C November 2009
Vanda Group TS Asia/Pac 3C October 2009

(1) Represents the approximate annual revenue fhemacquired businessasost recent fiscal year end prior to acquisitionAwsnet ant
based upon average foreign currency exchangefratd®se periods.

Acquisition activity

During fiscal 2012 , the Company acquired elevesirmsses with aggregate annualized revenues obxpyately $900 millionfor ar
aggregate purchase price of $411,873,000 , whiclades $23,175,000 of contingent eaut-obligations that were recorded at their estit
fair values. The contingent eaoott obligations have been accrued for, but notpgéd, and can be earned based on future perfornnbe
acquired businesses. The Company also acquiredxpyately $75,016,000f cash associated with the acquisitions. As altiethe Compan

paid a total of $313,218,000 for acquisition, nietash acquired.
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The Company acquired 100% ownership for all oftihsinesses mentioned above, except for one in ih&lCompany acquiredGd%
controlling interest. The non-controlling inter@gs recorded at its estimated fair value but wasnaderial.

Gain on bargain purchase and other

In January 2012, the Company acquired Unidux EdedtrLimited ("UEL"), a Singapore publicly tradedrapany, through a tender ofi
After assessing the assets acquired and liabilitsssimed, the consideration paid was below boakevaven though the price paid per s
represented a premium to the trading levels atttived. Accordingly, the Company recognized a gainbargain purchase of $4,317,000 pre-
and after tax and $0.03 per share on a dilutedsbésiaddition, during fiscal 2012, the Companyogruzed a loss of $1,399,000 peex
$854,000 after tax and $0.@kr diluted share included in "Gain on bargain hase and other" on the consolidated statementperhtion
related to a write-down of an investment in a srtedhnology company and the writé-of certain deferred financing costs associatétl the
early termination of a credit facility (see Notéor further discussion of the credit facility).

During fiscal 2011, the Company acquired Unidux. IfUnidux”), an electronics component distributor in Japan, tviécreported ¢
part of the EM Asia region. Unidux was a publictgded company which shares were trading belowdtk lvalue for a period of time. Ir
tender offer, Avnet offered a purchase price perestor Unidux that was above the prevailing trgdprice at that time. Even though
purchase price was below book value, the Uniduxedtedders tendered their shares. As a result, trapany recognized a gain on barg
purchase of $30,990,000 pre- and after tax and0§fe? share on a diluted basis. Prior to recogniirggain, the Company reassessel
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in theisitign. Also during fiscal 2011 , the Company rgoized a loss of $6,308,000 pex,
$3,857,000 after tax and $0.02 per share on aedilbasis included in “Gain on bargain purchaseathdr” related to the writdown of prio
investments in smaller technology start-up compa(see Note 5 for other amounts included in “Gairbbargain purchase and other”).

Investments and divestitures

During fiscal 2011, the Company completed the dittgge of New ProSys Corp. (“ProSys”), a valadded reseller and provider of
infrastructure solutions. Avnet acquired ProSypad of the Bell acquisition on July 6, 2010. Tatahsideration included a cash payme
closing, a short-term receivable and a three-yaan-eut based upon ProSyamticipated results. As a result of the divestituhe Compan
received cash proceeds of $19,108,000 and wrotgoailwill associated with the ProSys business Kk#e 6). Nogain or loss was recordec
a result of the divestiture.

During fiscal 2010 , the Company recognized a gairthe sale of assets as a result of certain @arprovisions associated with the p
sale of the Company’s equity investment in Caldrlcg€. The gain on sale of assets was $8,751,00Qgx,e$5,370,000 after tax and $008
share on a diluted basis. Also during fiscal 20ths Company sold a cost method investment and vedeproceeds of approximat
$3,034,000 .

3. Accounts receivable securitization

In August 2011, the Company amended its accourdsiv@ble securitization program (the “Progranwjth a group of financii
institutions to allow the Company to sell, on aaking basis, an undivided interest of up to $780,000 ( 600,000,00f@rior to the
amendment) in eligible U.S. receivables while mdteg a subordinated interest in a portion of theeneables. The eligible receivables are
through a wholly-owned bankruptegmote special purpose entity that is consolidétedinancial reporting purposes. Such eligibleaigable:
are not directly available to satisfy claims of t@empany’s creditors. Financing under the Prograraesdnot qualify as offialance she
financing, as a result, the receivables and reld&dd obligation remain on the Compasigonsolidated balance sheet as amounts are dm
the Program. The Program has a one year term fipates at the end of August 20]12vhich is expected to be renewed for another pe
comparable terms. The Program contains certainnaos, all of which the Company was in compliandt &s of June 30, 2012. There w
$670,000,000 in borrowings outstanding under thagfm at June 30, 2012 and $160,000,000 as oR2J@§11. (See Note 7 for discussion
other short-term and long-term debt outstandingprest on borrowings is calculated usingage rate or a commercial paper rate plus a s
of 0.35% . The facility fee is 0.35%Expenses associated with the Program, which wetrenaterial in the past three fiscal years, ctedis
program, facility and professional fees recordedehing, general and administrative expensesénatttompanying consolidated statemen
operations.
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4. Shareholders' equity
Comprehensive income (loss)

The following table illustrates the accumulatedabaks of comprehensive income (loss) items at 3Qn2012, July 2, 2011, and Jul
2010:

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Thousands)
Accumulated translation adjustments, net $ 90,79¢ $ 461,21 $ 131,32¢
Accumulated pension liability adjustments, netrafdme taxes (136,63() (84,002 (103,96)
Total $ (45,837) $ 377,21 $ 27,36

Share repurchase program

In August 2011, the Board of Directors approved thpurchase of up to an aggregate of $500 millibshares of the Compary’
common stock through a share repurchase prograenCbmpany plans to repurchase stock from timane &t the discretion of managem
subject to strategic considerations, market comatiand other factors. The Company may terminatanit the stock repurchase progran
any time without prior notice. The timing and adtnamber of shares purchased will depend on atyaoiefactors such as price, corporate
regulatory requirements, and prevailing market @bres. Since inception of the program in August.2@hrough the end of fiscal 2012,
Company repurchased 11.3 million shares at avearagket price of $28.90 per share for total cos$2#25.9 million. This amount differs fro
the cash used for repurchases of common stockeondiisolidated statement of cash flows to the éxepurchases were not settled at the
of the fiscal year. Shares repurchased were retired

In August 2012, the Board of Director's approvediag $250 millionto the share repurchase program. With this increhgeCompan
may repurchase up to a total of $750 million of @@npany's common stock under the share repurghrageam.
5. Property, plant and equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are recorded atasubtonsist of the following:

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)

Land $ 19,91: $ 22,467
Buildings 102,39 112,07:
Machinery, fixtures and equipment 865,19¢ 805,09:
Leasehold improvements 92,13 92,72¢
1,079,63! 1,032,36!

Less — accumulated depreciation and amortization (618,406 (613,18)
$ 461,23( $ 419,17:

Depreciation and amortization expense related ¢penty, plant and equipment was $70,645,000 , $5/090 and $49,692,000 fisca
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In fiscal 2@h& Company recognized other charges of $1,96808-tax, $1,413,000 after tax ab@.0!
per share on a diluted basis primarily related rtarapairment of buildings in EMEA (see Notes 2 fither amounts included inGain or
bargain purchase and other”).
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6. Goodwill and intangible assets

The following table presents the carrying amourgaddwill, by reportable segment, for the periodsspnted:

Electronics Technology
Marketing Solutions Total
(Thousands)
Carrying value at July 2, 2011 $ 352,87( $ 532,20: $ 885,07:
Additions 180,75 74,48¢ 255,24
Adjustments 27,31: (27,317 —
Foreign currency translation (15,630) (24,069 (39,699
Carrying value at June 30, 2012 $ 545,30¢ $ 555,31 § 1,100,62

The goodwill additions are a result of businessepied during fiscal 2012 (see Note 2) and puretasounting adjustments during
purchase price allocation period. The adjustmergaodwill is a result of the transfer of previouslgquired businesses from TS Americe
EM Americas.

The following table presents the gross amount afdgoll and accumulated impairment as of July 2, 2@hd June 30, 2012All of the
accumulated impairment was recognized in fiscaB200

Electronics Technology
Marketing Solutions Total
(Thousands)
Gross goodwill at July 2, 2011 $ 1,397,980 $ 866,82t $ 2,264,801
Accumulated impairment (1,045,111 (334,629 (2,379,73)
Carrying value at July 2, 2011 $ 352,87( $ 532,20 $ 885,07:
Gross goodwill at June 30, 2012 $ 1,590,41 $ 889,93t $ 2,480,35!
Accumulated impairment (1,045,111 (334,62 (1,379,73)
Carrying value at June 30, 2012 $ 54530¢ § 555,31 § 1,100,62.

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairmist on the first day of its fiscal fourth quarter addition, if and when events
circumstances change that would more likely thanreduce the fair value of any of its reportingtarielow its carrying value, an interim
would be performed. Based upon the Company’s anmyzdirment tests performed for fiscal 2012 , 2@bdl 2010 , there was mmpairmen
of goodwill in the respective fiscal years.

Intangible assets

As of June 30, 2012 , “Other assets” included custorelationship and other intangible assets witamying value of $181,339,000
consisting of $260,667,000 in original cost valnd §79,328,000f accumulated amortization and foreign currenepgfation. These assets
being amortized over a weighted average life oheigears. During fiscal 2012 , the Company recognhi$93,291,000n intangible asse
associated with acquisitions completed during fi2€4 2 . Intangible asset amortization expense$245717,000 , $21,240,000 a$8,629,00
in fiscal 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively. Atimation expense for the next five years is expmbetebe approximately $32,000,0@act
year for fiscal 2013 and 201$30,000,000 for 2015, $25,000,000 for fiscal 2046 $23,000,000 for 2017.
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7. External financing
Short-term debt consists of the following:

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Bank credit facilities $ 201,39 $ 81,95:
Borrowings under the accounts receivable secutibizgprogram (see Note 3) 670,00( 160,00(
Other debt due within one year 1,01« 1,12¢
Short-term debt $ 872,40 243,07t

Bank credit facilities consist of various committadd uncommitted lines of credit with financialtibgions utilized primarily to suppc
the working capital requirements of foreign opemasi. The weighted average interest rate on the baatht facilities was 6.1% and 7.886the
end of fiscal 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

See Note 3 for the discussion of the accountsvabbg securitization program and associated borrgsvoutstanding.
Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)

5.875% Notes due March 15, 2014 $ 300,00 $ 300,00(
6.00% Notes due September 1, 2015 250,00( 250,00(
6.625% Notes due September 15, 2016 300,00( 300,00(
5.875% Notes due June 15, 2020 300,00( 300,00(
Other long-term debt 124,45¢ 126,51:
Subtotal 1,274,45i 1,276,51.
Discount on notes (2,477 (3,009
Long-term debt $ 1,271,98! % 1,273,50!

During fiscal 2012, the Company entered into a-frear $1,000,000,008enior unsecured revolving credit facility (the 120Credi
Facility") with a syndicate of banks, which expiiasNovember 2016 In connection with the 2012 Credit Facility, tBempany terminated
existing unsecured $500,000,000 credit facilitye(t2008 Credit Facility") which was to expire ingsember 2012 Under the 2012 Cre:
Facility, the Company may select from various iegtrrate options, currencies and maturities. ThE220redit Facility contains cert:
covenants, all of which the Company was in comgkawith as of June 30, 2012 . At June 30, 2012rethvere $110,072,0QG8 borrowing:
under the 2012 Credit Facility included in “Othengj-term debt” in the preceding table. In additidrere were $17,202,006tters of cred
issued under the 2012 Credit Facility, which repn¢s a utilization of the 2012 Credit Facility cajtya but are not recorded in the consolidi
balance sheet as the letters of credit are not dehiuly 2, 2011 , there were $122,093,@8(orrowings outstanding under the 2008 Ci
Facility included in “Other long-term debt” in timeeceding table and $16,602,000 in letters of tisslued.

As a result of the acquisition of Bell in July 20ltbe Company assumed 3.79%tes due March 2024, which had a fair valu
$110,000,000and that were convertible into Bell common stockwhver, as of the acquisition completion date, diebt was no long
convertible into shares. Under the terms of th&% Notes, the Company could have redeemed somkedfithe 3.75%Notes for cash anytin
on or after March 5, 2011 and the note holdersddave required the Company to purchase for caste swr all of the 3.75%Notes ol
March 5, 2011, March 5, 2014 or March 5, 2019 aédemption price equal to 10086 the principal amount plus interest. During tlirst
quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company issued a tentfer for the 3.75% Notes for which $5,205,008s tendered and paid in September Z
During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the notdders tendered substantially all of the remaimioges for which $104,395,000as paid il
March 2011. The remaining $400,000 of outstandioigs are included in “other long-term debt” in freceding table.
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Aggregate debt maturities for fiscal 2013 througi 2 and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2013% 872,40!

2014 313,17!

2015 821

2016 360,40¢

2017 300,05:

Thereafter 300,00(
Subtotal 2,146,86!
Discount on notes (2,47])
Total debt $ 2,144,38

At June 30, 2012 , the carrying value and fair gabfi the Company’s debt was $2,144,389,000 and79%81,000 respectively. Fa
value was estimated primarily based upon quotedeharices.
8. Accrued expenses and other

Accrued expenses and other consist of the following

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Payroll, commissions and related accruals $ 279,45 §$ 320,95¢
Income taxes (Note 9) 85,02t 72,49¢
Other® 331,00 279,56
$ 695,48. $ 673,01t

(1) Includes restructuring reserves recorded tiinquurchase accounting and through “restructuiittggration and other chargeseg Not
17). Amounts presented in this caption were indiglty not significant.

9. Income taxes

The components of the provision for income taxesiadicated in the table below. The tax provision deferred income taxes res
from temporary differences arising principally franventory valuation, accounts receivable valuatitet operating losses, certain accruals
depreciation, net of any changes to the valuatilowance.

Years Ended

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011 July 3, 2010
(Thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 94,237 $ 64,47¢ $ 61,89:
State and local 19,46¢ 11,72« 9,78¢
Foreign 98,27¢ 109,73: 56,60¢
Total current taxes 211,98: 185,93: 128,28
Deferred:
Federal 6,89¢ 41,02¢ 24,25
State and local 75¢ 5,27: 1,29(
Foreign 4,12¢ (30,33¢) 20,88:
Total deferred taxes 11,78 15,96¢ 46,42¢
Provision for income taxes $ 223,760 § 201,89 % 174,71
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The provision for income taxes noted above is caepbibased upon the split of income before incomestdrom U.S. and forei
operations. U.S. income before income taxes wa®,833,000 , $273,287,000 and $241,029,800 foreign income before income taxes
$470,449,000 , $597,679,000 and $344,054,000¢alf8012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Reconciliations of the federal statutory tax rat¢he effective tax rates are as follows:

Years Ended

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011 July 3, 2010
Federal statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefi 1.8 15 1.2
Foreign tax rates, net of valuation allowances (5.9) (5.9 (6.6)
Release of valuation allowance, net of U.S. taxeesp (as discussed below) (2.9 (7.4 —
Change in contingency reserves 0.t 1.4 2.6
Tax audit settlements (2.0 (0.9 (1.6
Other, net 0.2 (2.6) (0.7)
Effective tax rate 28.5% 23.2% 29.€%

Foreign tax rates generally consist of the impdahe difference between foreign and federal steyutates applied to foreign inco
(losses) and also include the impact of valuatimwances against the Company's otherwise reabztaokign loss carry-forwards.

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before incoraees was 28.3% in fiscal 2012 as compared witeféactive tax rate of 23.2%n
fiscal 2011 . Included in the fiscal 2012 effectitax rate is a net tax benefit of $8,616,00@hich is comprised of (i) a tax benefit
$30,785,0000r the release of tax reserves (valuation allowgragainst deferred tax assets that were deterntineée realizable, primari
related to a legal entity in EMEA (discussed furthelow), partially offset by (ii) a tax provisiaf $22,170,00Gelated to changes in exist
tax positions, withholding tax related to legalignteorganizations, the establishment of tax nesglgainst certain deferred tax assets anc
tax expense associated with the release of thatiatuallowance, partially offset by net favorabledit settlements. The fiscal 2012 effec
tax rate is higher than the fiscal 2011 effectie tate primarily due to a lower amount of tax reseeleased in fiscal 2012 as compared
the amount released in fiscal 2011, as discusselefubelow, and, to a lesser extent, a more fdlerampact from audit settlements
changes to existing tax positions in fiscal 201Z@®pared with fiscal 2011. These favorable impaatse partially offset by the withholdi
tax mentioned above.

During fiscal 2012, the Company had a partial viduaallowance against significant tax assets eeldd a legal entity in EMEA due
among several other factors, a history of lossethé entity. Since fiscal 2010, the entity hasrbegperiencing improved earnings wt
required the partial release of the valuation adloee to the extent the entity has projected taxalleme. In each of fiscal 2012 and 2011,
Company determined a portion of the valuation adlnee for this legal entity was no longer requires do the expected continuatior
improved earnings in the foreseeable future andg assult, the Company's effective tax rate wastipely impacted (decreased) upon
release of the valuation allowance, net of the th$.expense. In fiscal 2012 and 2011, the taxrvesereleased associated with this EN
legal entity were $22,127,000 and $64,215,00@spectively, net of the U.S. tax expense asttiwith the release. The Company
continue to evaluate the need for a valuation alove against these tax assets and will adjustahmtion allowance as deemed approp
which, when adjusted, will result in an impact be effective tax rate. Factors that are considerexdich an evaluation include historic le
of income, expectations and risk associated wittmases of future taxable income and ongoing prui@deml feasible tax planning strateg
Excluding the benefit in both fiscal years relatedthe release of the tax valuation allowance daset with the EMEA legal entity, t
effective tax rate for fiscal 2012 would have b8&r % as compared with 30.6% for fiscal 2011.

Avnet’s effective tax rate on income before incorages was 23.2% in fiscal 2011 as compared witkeféettive tax rate of 29.9%n
fiscal 2010. As compared with fiscal 2010, the fiscal 201%kefive tax rate was primarily impacted by a nettiarefit related to the release
a tax valuation allowance on certain deferred &sets which were determined to be realizable @udsed above) and, to a lesser exter
favorable tax audit settlements, partially offsgichanges to existing tax positions.

The Company is in the final stages of two auditsh®/ U.S. Internal Revenue Service, one of whidates to the Company and one
which relates to the pre-acquisition period of aguared entity. As a result, it is reasonably polesthat within the

54




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

next twelve months, the Company may record a taretiteof $30.0 million to $35.0 million which would favorably impact the effective
rate in the period in which the matter is effedjveettled. This estimated benefit is comprisedngarily of the recognition of additional t
operating losses as well as the release of retatsives, partially offset by unfavorable audiuatipents.

The significant components of deferred tax assedsliabilities, included primarily in “other assétsn the consolidated balance she
are as follows:

June 30, July 2,
2012 2011
(Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory valuation $ 13,29¢ % 13,68(
Accounts receivable valuation 29,98 27,91¢
Federal, state and foreign tax loss carry-forwards 304,41( 394,09:
Various accrued liabilities and other 88,79: 57,68¢
436,48 493,37!
Less — valuation allowance (244,09) (310,777
192,39: 182,60:
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, plard aquipment (54,74 (43,309
Net deferred tax assets $ 137,64t $ 139,30:

The change in the valuation allowance from fis€lRto fiscal 2012 was a combination of (i) a reducof $30,785,00@rimarily due t
the previously mentioned release of valuation adloee in EMEA, $26,231,000f which impacted the effective tax rate while tieenainde
was offset in deferred income taxes, and (ii) arelese of $35,894,00frimarily related to the translation impact of figre currency exchani
rates.

As of June 30, 2012 , the Company had foreign petating loss carry-forwards of approximately $4,296,000 , of whicl$44,225,00
will expire during fiscal 2013 and 2014 , substalhi all of which have full valuation allowances2%4,742,00thave expiration dates rang
from fiscal 2015 to 2032 and the remaining $795,380 have no expiration date. The carrying valuthefCompany’s net operating loss carry-
forwards is dependent upon the Compangbility to generate sufficient future taxablednme in certain tax jurisdictions. In addition,
Company considers historic levels of income, exqémts and risk associated with estimates of futaxable income and ogwing prudent ar
feasible tax planning strategies in assessing aahsation allowance.

Accruals for income tax contingencies (or accrdi@atsunrecognized tax benefits) are included in faed expenses and other” arattie
long term liabilities”on the consolidated balance sheet. These contiggeserves relate to various tax matters that résarh uncertainties
the application of complex income tax regulationghie numerous jurisdictions in which the Compapgrates. The change to continge
reserves during fiscal 2012 is primarily due todiable non-cash audit settlements which are indudéhe ‘feductions for tax positions tak
in prior periods” caption in the following tablesfof June 30, 2012 , unrecognized tax benefits B&46,626,00Q of which approximate
$126,933,000 if recognized, would favorably impact the effeetitax rate and the remaining balance would betanbally offset by valuatic
allowances. As of July 2, 2011 , unrecognized temefits were $175,151,000 , of which approximat&ly1,299,00Q if recognized, woul
favorably impact the effective tax rate, and thmaing balance would be substantially offset bjpation allowances. In accordance with
Company's accounting policy, accrued interest amljpies, if any, related to unrecognized tax hiénafe recorded as a component of inc
tax expense. The accrual for unrecognized tax srin€luded accrued interest expense and penaiti§24,664,000 and $24,640,000et o
applicable state tax benefit, as of the end o&fig012 and 2011 , respectively.
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Reconciliations of the beginning and ending accbadnces for unrecognized tax benefits are asvistl

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 175,15. $ 132,82¢
Additions for tax positions taken in prior periods;luding interest 19,26: 40,21¢
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periadsluding interest (35,899 (16,83Y)
Additions for tax positions taken in current period 8,17¢ 11,04:
Reductions related to cash settlements with taairtorities (7,460 (61€)
Reductions related to the lapse of statute of éitiths (3,810 (1,56%)
Additions (reductions) related to foreign curreti@nslation (8,799 10,08
Balance at end of year $ 146,62¢ $ 175,15

The evaluation of income tax positions requires agament to estimate the ability of the Companyugian its position and estimate
final benefit to the Company. To the extent thatsth estimates do not reflect the actual outconmme twuld be an impact on the consolid
financial statements in the period in which theifi@s is settled, the statute of limitations expimenew information becomes available as
impact of these events are recognized in the pémiachich they occur. It is difficult to estimatieet period in which the amount of a tax posi
will change as settlement may include administeatind legal proceedings whose timing the Compangatacontrol. The effects of settling
positions with tax authorities and statute expinagi may significantly impact the accrual for incotag contingencies. Within the next twe
months, management estimates that approximately968®00of tax contingencies will be settled primarily tbgh agreement with the 1
authorities for tax positions related to valuatioatters and positions related to acquired entisesh matters are common to multinatis
companies. The expected cash payment related settlement of these contingencies is $12,925,000 .

The Company conducts business globally and conséguées income tax returns in numerous jurisitins including those listed in t
following table. It is also routinely subject todiuin these and other countries. The Company idomger subject to audit in its ma
jurisdictions for periods prior to fiscal year 200%1e open years, by major jurisdiction, are akved:

Jurisdiction Fiscal Year

Singapore 2005 -2012
Hong Kong 2006 —2012
United States (federal and state), United Kingdowh Baiwan 2007 —2012
Netherlands 2008 —2012
Belgium and Germany 2010 -2012

10. Pension and retirement plans
Pension Plan

The Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pengblan (the “Plan”)covers substantially all domestic employees. Engssyar
eligible to participate in the Plan following thiest year of service during which they worked asel,000hours. The Plan provides defir
benefits pursuant to a cash balance feature whexgdarticipant accumulates a benefit based upogr@eptage of current salary, which va
with age, and interest credits. The Company usee 30 as the measurement date for determining geesipense and benefit obligations
each fiscal year. Not included in the tabulationd discussions that follow are pension plans ofag@mony.S. subsidiaries, which are
material.
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The following tables outline changes in benefitigétions, plan assets and the funded status oPldre as of the end of fiscal 2012
2011:

June 30, July 2,
2012 2011
(Thousands)
Changes in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year $ 297,52° % 276,93
Service cost 28,38( 23,87
Interest cost 14,92t 13,91¢
Plan amendments 3,36( —
Actuarial loss 48,62( 5,16¢
Benefits paid (17,65¢) (22,37))
Benefit obligations at end of year $ 375,15¢ % 297,52
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 324,75. $ 278,96:
Actual return on plan assets (5,647 67,65¢
Benefits paid (17,65¢) (22,37
Contributions — 50C
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 301,44¢ % 324,75.
Funded status of the plan recognized as a non+duasset (liability) $ (73,707 $ 27,22¢
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprelienscome:
Unrecognized net actuarial loss $ 218,83 $ 147,31:
Unamortized prior service credit (9,19¢) (14,43)
$ 209,64: $ 132,88(
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligatiecognized in other comprehensive income:
Net actuarial (gain) loss $ 81,20t $ (34,93)
Prior service cost 3,36( —
Amortization of net actuarial loss (9,680) (8,93¢)
Amortization of prior service credit 1,87¢ 1,87¢
$ 76,76, % (41,999

The Plan was amended effective June 1, 2012 tooweppre-retirement death benefits so that thergtieement death benefits will
payable without regard to marital status, and Wwél based on 100%f the participant's vested cash account. The @&sadn liability i
recognized as a prior service cost and will be &mext staring in fiscal year 2013.

Included in “accumulated other comprehensive incoatddune 30, 2012 is a pre-tax charge of $218(&8¥of net actuarial losses whi
have not yet been recognized in net periodic pansast, of which $14,899,006 expected to be recognized as a component gberéidic
benefit cost during fiscal 2013 . Also includedhipre-tax credit of $9,196,0@8 prior service credit which has not yet been geiped in ne
periodic pension costs, of which $1,573,000 is etgreto be recognized as a component of net pertmehiefit costs during fiscal 2013 .

Weighted average assumptions used to calculataréatpresent values of benefit obligations aréofews:

2012 2011
Discount rate 4.00% 5.25%
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Weighted average assumptions used to determirtzenefit costs are as follows:

2012 2011
Discount rate 5.25% 5.25%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50%

The Company bases its discount rate on a hypothgiartfolio of bonds rated Aa by Moodylnvestor Services or AA by Standari
Poor's. The bonds selected for this determinatierbased upon the estimated amount and timingreices of the pension plan.

Components of net periodic pension costs durindaiethree fiscal years are as follows:

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Thousands)

Service cost $ 28,38( $ 23,87 $ —
Interest cost 14,92t 13,91¢ 15,74¢
Expected return on plan assets (26,939 (27,560 (30,13
Recognized net actuarial loss 9,68( 8,93¢ 5,68
Amortization of prior service credit (1,875 (1,875 (4,889
Net periodic pension cost $ 2417:  § 17,29 § (13,586

The Company made no contributions in fiscal 2012 $$00,000 in 2011 .

Benefit payments are expected to be paid to ppaits as follows for the next five fiscal years ahd aggregate for the five ye
thereafter (in thousands):

2013% 28,39¢
2014 24,03t
2015 24,90:
2016 28,74:
2017 31,971
2018 through 2022 218,67:

The Plan’s assets are held in trust and were aidcas follows as of the June 30 measurement dafes¢al 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
Equity securities 75% 76%
Debt securities 24 24
Cash and receivables 1 —
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The general investment objectives of the Plan aren&ximize returns through a diversified investmpnttfolio in order to eal
annualized returns that meet the long-term codtioding the Plars pension obligations while maintaining reasonald prudent levels
risk. The target rate of return on Plan assetsiireatly 8.5% , which represerttee average rate of earnings expected on the fundsted or t
be invested to provide for the benefits includedha benefit obligation. This assumption has beeterchined by combining expectati
regarding future rates of return for the investmantfolio along with the historical and expectdstdbution of investments by asset class
the historical rates of return for each of thosseaislasses. The mix of equity securities is typiadiversified to obtain a blend of domestic :
international investments covering multiple indiestr The Plan assets do not include any matenasiments in Avnet common stock. °
Plan’s investments in debt securities are alsordified across both public and private fixed incoseeurities. The Compars/current targ
allocation for the investment portfolio is for etyusecurities, both domestic and internationakejoresent approximately 7666 the portfolic
with a policy for minimum investment in equity seities of 60% of the portfolio and a maximum of 92%he majority of the remainii
portfolio of investments is to be invested in fixadome securities.

As of June 30, 2012, the market value of plan askgtinvestment category was: U.S. Equity ( $178ilion ); U.S. Bonds $72.¢
million ); International Equity ( $46.9 million )na cash and receivables ( $3.0 milliprAsset values are Level 1 for all asset categageth
fair values are based upon quoted market pricegdémtical assets. The pension assets were highéraified to reduce the potential risk
significant concentrations of credit risk.

11. Long-term leases

The Company leases many of its operating faciliies is also committed under lease agreementsrdasgortation and operati
equipment. Rent expense charged to operationsgitinlast three years is as follows:

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Thousands)
Buildings $ 84,53: $ 78,37 % 59,047
Equipment 8,09¢ 8,33: 5,44(
$ 92,62: $ 86,70: $ 64,48’

The aggregate future minimum operating lease comerits, principally for buildings, in fiscal 2013¢luigh 2017 and thereafter (thror
2028), are as follows (in thousands):

2013 $ 95,78¢
2014 67,92¢
2015 42,10¢
2016 29,72(
2017 22,45¢
Thereafter 36,54¢

Total $ 294,53t

The preceding table includes operating lease comenits that have been reserved for as part of tep@oys restructuring activitie
(see Note 17).
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12. Stock-based compensation plans

The Company measures all shhssed payments, including grants of employee stptions, at fair value and recognizes related esg
in the consolidated statement of operations oves#hvice period (generally the vesting period)ilufiscal 2012 , 2011 , 201,adhe Compar
expensed $35,737,000 , $28,931,000 and $28,363/@8pectively, for all stock-based compensatioardsa:

Stock plan

The Company currently has one stock compensatimm plirsuant to which it can issue new awards. TH® Stock Compensation P
(2010 Plan”) was approved by the shareholderssicaf 2011. The 2010 Plan has a termination datdoeEmber 4, 2020 and 4,956,18%are
were available for grant at June 30, 2012 . At Bhe2012 , the Company had 11,047,86@res of common stock reserved for stock o
and stock incentive programs.

Stock options

Option grants under the 2010 Plan have a contrelifei®f ten years , vest 25% on each anniversdirghe grant date commencing wit
the first anniversary, and provide for a minimunemise price of 100%f fair market value at the date of grant. Comptosaexpens
associated with stock options during fiscal 202211 and 2010 were $3,147,000 , $3,499,000 and$®60 , respectively.

The fair value of options granted is estimated lo@ dlate of grant using the Bla8icholes model based on the assumptions i
following table. The assumption for the expectedtés based on evaluations of historical and exqaetiture employee exercise behavior.
risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasueg &t the date of grant with maturity dates apiprately equal to the expected term ai
grant date. The historical volatility of Avnet’sk is used as the basis for the volatility assimnpt

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
Expected term (years) 6.0C 6.0C 6.0C
Risk-free interest rate 1.2% 1.8% 3.C%
Weighted average volatility 33.7% 33.7% 34.2%

Dividend yield — — —

The following is a summary of the changes in outdtag options for fiscal 2012:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Shares Exercise Price  Contractual Life
Outstanding at July 2, 2011 3,059,21! $ 21.7¢ 59 Months
Granted 332,47¢  $ 27.9¢ 109 Months
Exercised (486,30) $ 14.0¢ 6 Months
Forfeited or expired (23,47) $ 23.9( 73 Months
Outstanding at June 30, 2012 288191 % 23.7¢ 61 Months
Exercisable at June 30, 2012 1,994,62. g 22.6¢ 45 Months

The weighted-average grant-date fair values ofkstgtions granted during fiscal 2012 , 2011 , afdi®were $9.67 , $8.72 and $9.58
respectively. There were no intrinsic values ofrefaptions outstanding or exercisable at June @02 2 July 2, 2011 or July 3, 2010.
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The following is a summary of the changes in nostee stock options for the fiscal year ended Jin@12:

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested stock options at July 2, 2011 919,29: $ 9.6¢
Granted 332,47¢  $ 9.67
Vested (345,259 $ 10.4:
Forfeited (19,22) $ 9.3C
Non-vested stock options at June 30, 2012 887,29 g 9.41

As of June 30, 2012 , there was $1,808,000 of tote¢cognized compensation cost related tovested stock options, which is expet
to be recognized over a weighted-average periotl bfyears. The total fair values of shares vestethg fiscal 2012 , 2011 and 20ere
$3,599,000 , $3,425,000 , $3,293,000 , respectively

Cash received from option exercises during fis€dl22, 2011 and 2010 totaled $2,405,000 , $3,506,G0@ $4,134,00Qrespectively
The impact of these cash receipts is included ithé® net” in financing activities in the accompamyconsolidated statements of cash flows.

Incentive shares

Delivery of incentive shares, and the associatenpsmsation expense, is spread equally over a faaeperiod and is generally subjec
the employee’s continued employment by the Compéasyof June 30, 2012 , 1,749,54Bares previously awarded have not yet been detd
Compensation expense associated with this program$20,978,000 , $17,008,000 and $14,614,000 doalfiyears 2012 , 2011 and 2010
respectively.

The following is a summary of the changes in nost@e incentive shares for the fiscal year ended 30n 2012:

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested incentive shares at July 2, 2011 1,414,78. $ 26.41
Granted 1,114,511 $ 27.9¢
Vested (704,22) % 27.71
Forfeited (75,559 $ 26.3¢
Non-vested incentive shares at June 30, 2012 1,749,51" ¢ 26.82

As of June 30, 2012 , there was $36,092,000 of toteecognized compensation cost related to vesied incentive shares, whicl
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagediof 2.9 years. The total fair values of skarested during fiscal 2012 , 2011 &i.(
were $19,516,000 , $15,916,000 , $14,301,000 ertisely.

Performance shares

Eligible employees, including Avnet's executiveioffrs, may receive a portion of their long-term iggbased incentive compensal
through the performance share program, which allfmvshe award of shares of stock against perfocadrased criteria Performance Sha
Program”). The Performance Share Program provioiethé issuance to each grantee of a number oéslmirAvnets common stock at the €
of a three-year period based upon the Commaaghievement of performance goals establishethdyCbmpensation Committee of the B
of Directors for each thregear period. The performance goals have recenthgisted of measures of economic profit and totakeimolde
return.
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During fiscal 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , the Compamntgd 349,070 , 380,200 and 242,p@dformance shares, respectively, to be aw:
to participants in the Performance Share Progrdmyhich 6,800cumulatively have been forfeited. The actual amafrperformance shar
issued at the end of the thrgear period is determined based upon the levecbfeaement of the defined performance goals andraage
from 0% to 200% of the initial award. The Compamyi@pates issuing 355,484 shares in the first guaof fiscal 2013dased upon the go.
achieved during the three-year performance peribithwended June 30, 2012. During fiscal 2012 , 281d 2010, the Company recogni
compensation expense associated with the Perfoerimare Programs of $10,502,000 , $7,374,000 add 900 , respectively.

Outside director equity compensation

Non-employee directors are awarded shares equadfited dollar amount of Avnet common stock upoeittihe-election each year, as f
of their director compensation package. Directoay mlect to receive this compensation in the fofrmoonmon stock or they may elect to di
their compensation to be paid in common stock kter date. During fiscal 2012 , 2011 and 2Ql®mpensation cost associated with
outside director stock bonus plan was $1,110,680050,000 , $1,020,000 , respectively.

Employee stock purchase plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase PI@P@Bunder the terms of which eligible employees of @mpany are offere
options to purchase shares of Avnhet common stoek @ice equal to 95%f the fair market value on the last day of eachthly offering
period. Based on the terms of the ESPP, Avnettisatuired to record expense in the consolidatestents of operations related to the E!

The Company has a policy of repurchasing shareth@ropen market to satisfy shares purchased uhdeESPP, and expects fut
repurchases during fiscal 201@ be similar to the number of shares repurchaseihgl fiscal 2012, based on current estimates aigyaatior
in the program. During fiscal 2012 , 2011 and 201lfere were 64,187 , 62,329 and 67,%B8res, respectively, of common stock issued 1
the ESPP program.

13. Commitments and contingencies
Bell

During fiscal 2011, the Company recognized a contingent liability patential unpaid import duties associated with dabquisition ¢
Bell Microproducts Inc. (“Bell”). Prior to the acaition of Bell by Avnet, Customs and Border Prdimc (“CBP”) initiated a review of tF
importing process at one of Bal'subsidiaries and identified compliance deficieaciSubsequent to the acquisition of Bell by Avi@i®F
began a compliance audit. The Company evaluatgdqtea duties, interest and penalties that potintizay be imposed as a result of the a
and recognized a contingent liability of $10,00@,@¢hich was recorded to goodwill in fiscal 201Depending on the ultimate resolution of
matter with CBP, the Company estimates that thgeaof the potential exposure associated with thkility may be up to $73,000,0Q0
however, the Company believes the contingent lighiecorded is a reasonable estimate of the lighilased upon the facts available at
time.

Other

During fiscal 2012, the Company recorded $6,665,@0(i) a legal claim associated with an acquiresibess for a potential roya
claim related to periods prior to acquisition byn&t and (ii) a legal claim associated with an indéication of a prior divested business.

From time to time, the Company may become a partptt otherwise involved in various lawsuits, clajnmvestigations and other le
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of catidg its business. While litigation is subjectibberent uncertainties, management doe
anticipate that any ongoing matters will have aerial adverse effect on the Company’s financialditton, liquidity or results of operations.
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14. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed based on d¢fghted average number of common shares outstargidgexcludes any poten
dilution. Diluted earnings per share reflect pot@rdilution from the exercise or conversion of settes into common stock.

Numerator:

Net income for basic and diluted earnings per share

Denominator:

Weighted average common shares for basic earnegshare
Net effect of dilutive stock options and performarstare awards
Weighted average common shares for diluted earmiegshare

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Years Ended

June 30,
2012

July 2,
2011

July 3,
2010

(Thousands, except per share data)

$ 567,01¢ $ 669,06¢ $ 410,37(
147,27¢ 152,48 151,62¢

2,27¢ 1,85¢ 1,46¢

149,55¢ 154,33 153,09¢

$ 38t $ 43¢ $ 2.71
$ 3.7¢ ¢ 43.  § 2.6¢

Options to purchase 238,000 shares of the Compatgtk for both fiscal 2012 and 2011 and 700,88@res for fiscal 2010, we
excluded from the calculations of diluted earnipgs shares because the exercise price for thogmneptas above the average market prit
the Company’s stock during those periods. Inclusibithese options in the diluted earnings per skateulation would have had an anti-

dilutive effect.

15. Additional cash flow information

Other non-cash and reconciling items consist ofeHewing:

Provision for doubtful accounts
Periodic pension (income) costs (Note 10)
Other, net

Total

Years Ended

Interest and income taxes paid during the lasetlgears were as follows:

Interest
Income taxes

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Thousands)
$ 35,63: $ 39,25¢ % 33,82t
24,17: 17,29¢ (13,58¢)
6,45¢ 29¢ (4,859
$ 66,26: $ 56,84t $ 15,38t
Years Ended
June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Thousands)
$ 89,52¢ $ 91,94¢ $ 60,55¢
$ 192,717  $ 158,37. % 92,56¢

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2012 included amourdgsarded through comprehensive income and, therefwesnot included in tl
consolidated statement of cash flows. Fiscal 20f2uded an adjustment to pension liabilities (idahg nony.S. pension liabilities)
$85,010,000 which was recorded net of related dedetax benefit of $32,382,000 other comprehensive income (see Notes 4 andCibg
non-cash activities included assumed debt of $H00® and assumed liabilities of $214,325,@80a result of the acquisitions complete

fiscal 2012 (see Note 2).

63




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2011 included amourdgsorded through comprehensive income and, therefwesnot included in tl
consolidated statement of cash flows. Fiscal 20tiuded an adjustment to increase pension liadsli{including nord.S. pension liabilitie:
of $31,987,000 which was recorded net of relateférded tax benefit of $12,022,000 other comprehensive income (see Notes 4 ant
Other non-cash activities included assumed deb$4#0,259,000 and assumed liabilities of $509,812.88 a result of the acquisitic
completed in fiscal 2011 (see Note 2).

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2010 included amourdgsarded through comprehensive income and, therefweenot included in tl
consolidated statement of cash flows. Fiscal 20tuded an adjustment to increase pension liadsli{including nord.S. pension liabilitie:
of $50,502,000 which was recorded net of relateférded tax benefit of $19,287,000 other comprehensive income (see Notes 4 ant
Other non-cash activities included assumed def5@58,000 and assumed liabilities of $35,913 &9@ result of the acquisitions complete
fiscal 2010 (see Note 2).

16. Segment information

Electronics Marketing and Technology Solutions thiee overall segments upon which management priynavidluates the operations
the Company and upon which management bases itatojgedecisions. Therefore, the segment datafdtiatvs reflects these two segments.

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercanpassive and electromechanical devices and emsblepicbducts. EM markets ¢
sells its products and services to a diverse custdrase serving many emgarkets including automotive, communications, cotephardwar
and peripheral, industrial and manufacturing, maldéguipment, military and aerospace. EM also effar array of valuadded services tf
help customers evaluate, designand procure electronic components throughoutlifieeycle of their technology products and systs
including supplyehain management, engineering design, inventorieméghment systems, connector and cable assemblys@miconduct
programming.

TS markets and sells mid- to higind servers, data storage, software, and the ssrkgguired to implement these products and sok
to the value-added reseller channel. TS also fecwsethe worldwide original equipment manufactur@@EM”) market for computin
technology, system integrators and rfe@-OEMs that require embedded systems and soluitmhsding engineering, product prototypi
integration and other value-added services.
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Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Millions)
Sales:
Electronics Marketing $ 14,933 $ 15,066.: $ 10,966.!
Technology Solutions 10,774. 11,468.. 8,193.
$ 25,707.! % 26,534« % 19,160..
Operating income (loss):
Electronics Marketing $ 751.2 % 832t % 491.¢
Technology Solutions 319.: 286. 251.7
Corporate (112.9 (112.0 (82.9)
957.¢ 1,007.: 661.(
Restructuring, integration and other charges (N@be (73.¢) (77.2) (25.9)
$ 884.2 $ 930.C $ 635.€
Assets:
Electronics Marketing $ 6,024.0 % 5890.¢ $ 4,441.¢
Technology Solutions 3,738.! 3,765.: 2,553.¢
Corporate 405.1 249.t 786.¢
$ 10,167.¢ $ 9,905.t $ 7,782.
Capital expenditures:
Electronics Marketing $ 58t % 69.6 % 30.1
Technology Solutions 41.3 57.¢ 17.2
Corporate 28.¢ 21.t 19.€
$ 128.¢ $ 148.7 $ 66.¢
Depreciation & amortization expense:
Electronics Marketing $ 38.¢ % 28.2 % 24.¢
Technology Solutions 39.2 30.C 15.7
Corporate 23.2 23.1 20.5
$ 101.: $ 81 $ 60.€
Sales, by geographic area, are as follows:
Americas®) $ 11,499.: % 11,518 $ 8,367.:
EMEA @ 7,408.¢ 8,393. 5,948.!
Asia/Pacific® 6,799. 6,622.! 4,844
$ 25,707.! $ 26,534 $ 19,160..
Property, plant and equipment, net, by geograptea:a
Americas® $ 278t % 242t % 182.2
EMEA ® 150.¢ 150.¢ 98.t
Asia/Pacific 31.C 26.1 21.¢
$ 4612 $ 4192 % 302.¢

(1) Includes sales in the United States of $1@li@Mm , $10.0 billion and $7.6 billion for fiscglear 2012 , 2011 and 201 @espectively

(2) Includes sales in Germany and the United Kimycbf $2.6 billion and $1.4 billion , respectivelfigr fiscal 2012. Includes sales
Germany and the United Kingdom of $3.1 billion &1d7 billion , respectively, for fiscal 2011ncludes sales in Germany and the Ur
Kingdom of $2.1 billion and $1.1 billion , respesily, for fiscal 2010 .

65




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

(3) Includes sales of $1.9 billion , $2.3 billiand $1.2 billionin Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singapaespectively, for fisc
2012 . Includes sales of $1.8 billion , $2.4 billiand $1.2 billionin Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singapaespectivel
for fiscal 2011 . Includes sales of $1.3 billio$2.0 billion and $1.0 billiorin Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singag
respectively, for fiscal 2010 .

(4) Includes property, plant and equipment, ne$266.7 million , $231.3 million and $178.2 miltidn the United States for fiscal 2012
2011 and 2010, respectively.

(5) Includes property, plant and equipment, nét$20.6 million , $26.4 million , and $17.3 million Germany, Belgium and the Uni
Kingdom, respectively, for fiscal 2012 . Fiscal 20ihcludes property, plant and equipment, net, @.& million in Germany$23.<
million in Belgium and $16.4 million in the Unite€ingdom. Fiscal 2010 includes property, plant agdipment, net, of $48.0 milliom
Germany, $20.4 million in Belgium and $13.4 millionthe United Kingdom.

The Company manages its business based upon thetingeesults of its two operating groups bef@stnucturing, integration and ot
charges (see Note 17). In fiscal 2012 , 2011 ariD 20presented above, the unallocatedtarerestructuring, integration and other cha
related to EM and TS, respectively, were $27,537,80d $22,716,000 in fiscal 2012 , $27,879,000 $88,146,000 in fiscal 201&nc
$14,701,000 and $10,579,000 in fiscal 2010he remaining restructuring, integration and otbearges in each year relate to corpc
activities.

Listed in the table below are the major productégaties and the Company’s approximate sales of @adhg the past three fiscal years:

Years Ended

June 30, July 2, July 3,
2012 2011 2010
(Millions)

Semiconductors $ 13,461.( $ 14,149.: $ 10,098.
Computer products 9,984.« 10,284. 7,302.¢
Connectors 667.t 1,041.. 841.¢
Passives, electromechanical and other 1,594.( 1,059.: 917.:
$ 25,707.! $ 26,534.: $ 19,160..

17. Restructuring, integration and other charges
Fiscal 2012

During fiscal 2012, the Company initiated actiongéduce costs in both operating groups in resptmseirrent market conditions ¢
incurred acquisition and integration costs assediatith acquired businesses. As a result, the Coynpecurred restructuring, integration
other charges as presented in the following table.

Year Ended

June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Restructuring charges $ 50,25:¢
Integration costs 9,39:
Acquisition costs 10,56
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring reserve (3,286
Other 6,66¢
Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other charge $ 73,58t
After tax restructuring, integration and other gesr $ 52,96:
Restructuring, integration and other charges paresbn a diluted basis $ 0.3t
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The activity related to the restructuring chargesiired during fiscal 2012 is presented in theofsihg table:

Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Fiscal 2012 pre-tax charges $ 33,20t $ 11,99¢ $ 5,04¢ $ 50,25
Cash payments (23,05Y) (4,366 (1,889 (29,310
Non-cash write-downs — (2,947 (1,76%) (4,71))
Other, principally foreign currency translation (405) (14¢€) (44) (59%)

Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 9,74¢ % 4,54¢  $ 1347 $ 15,637

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2012 relatestér 800employees in sales, administrative and financetfons in connection wit
the cost reduction actions taken in all three negjiim both operating groups with employee redustiohapproximately 480 in EM and 320
TS. Facility exit costs for vacated facilities reld to 12 facilities in the Americas, 5 in EMEA ah8in the Asia/Pac region and consiste
reserves for remaining lease liabilities and thiéeadown of leasehold improvements and other fixedtas§her restructuring charges rel:
primarily to other onerous lease obligations thatéhno on-going benefit to the Company. Of the #58,000 preax restructuring charg
recorded during fiscal 2012, $27,537,000 relate&Nb and $22,716,00€elated to TS and the remaining related to corpocaiarges. As
June 30, 2012, management expects the majorityeofdmaining severance and other reserves to lpgedtby the end of fiscal 2015 and
remaining facility exit cost reserves to be utitizgy the end of fiscal 2016.

Integration costs incurred related to the integratf acquired businesses and incremental costsrett as part of the consolidation
closure of certain office and warehouse locatidngegration costs included IT consulting costs $gstem integration assistance, fac
moving costs, legal fees, travel, meeting, marketind communication costs that were incrementaltyired as a result of the integra
activity. Also included in integration costs areremental salary costs associated with the coregainl and closure activities as well as c
associated with acquisition activity, primarily atdd to the acquired businesses' personnel who neti@med by Avnet following the close
the acquisitions solely to assist in the integratié the acquired businesses' IT systems and asimative and logistics operations into thos
Avnet. These identified personnel have no othermimggdul day-to-day operational responsibilitiessidé of the integration effort.

Acquisition transaction costs incurred during fls@@12 related primarily to professional fees falvigory services and legal
accounting due diligence procedures and other lagtb associated with acquisitions.

During fiscal 2012, the Company recorded creditsefstructuring, integration and other charges eelldb the reversal of restructur
reserves established in prior years that were dédolee no longer required.

In addition, the Company recorded $6,665,000(i) a legal claim associated with an acquiretsibess and a potential royalty cli
related to periods prior to acquisition by Avnetdi) a legal claim associated with an indemnifica of a prior divested business.
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Fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011, the Company incurred chargésted primarily to the acquisition and integratiactivities associated with acqui
businesses (see Note 2) and also recorded crefiitsd to prior restructuring reserves and acqoisadjustments.

Year Ended

July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Restructuring charges $ 47,76
Integration costs 25,06¢
Acquisition costs 15,59°
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring reserve (6,07¢)
Prior year acquisition adjustments (5,176
Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other charge $ 77,17¢
After tax restructuring, integration and other cfew $ 56,16¢
Restructuring, integration and other charges paresbn a diluted basis $ 0.3¢

The fiscal 2012 activity related to the remainiegtructuring reserves from fiscal 2011 is preseinteéde following table:

Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at July 2, 2011 $ 9,80: $ 829 $ 1,03¢ $ 19,13t
Cash payments (8,110 (3,545 (463) (12,119
Adjustments (800) (1,139 (31€) (2,249
Other, principally foreign currency translation (60¢) (34%) (32 (98%)
Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 28§ 3271 § 221§ 3,78t

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2011 relatquetsonnel reductions of over 58fhployees in administrative, finance and ¢
functions primarily in connection with the integoat of the acquired Bell business into the existidd Americas, TS Americas and TS EM
regions and, to a lesser extent, other cost restuctctions. Facility exit costs consisted of lebakilities, fixed asset writelowns and oth
related charges associated with 50 vacated fasili23 in the Americas, 25 in EMEA and two in theiafPac region. As of June 30, 2012
management expects the majority of the remainingrs@ce reserves to be utilized by the end of [fi88a3 and the remaining facility exit ¢
reserves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2015.

Integration costs included professional fees aasetiwith legal and IT consulting, facility moviegsts, travel, meeting, marketing .
communication costs that were incrementally inalige a result of the integration efforts of acqiiibeisinesses. Also included in integra
costs are incremental salary and employee beradiscprimarily of the acquired businessgstsonnel who were retained by Avnet follow
the close of the acquisitions solely to assishim integration of the acquired businels’systems, and administrative and logistics openg
into those of Avnet. These identified personnelehaw other meaningful day-to-day operational resiilities outside of the integration effort.

Acquisition costs incurred during fiscal 2011 retaprimarily to professional fees for advisory dmdker services, legal and accoun
due diligence, and other legal costs associatdutivt acquisition.

During fiscal 2011, the Company recorded crediteegiructuring, integration and other charges eellab (i) the reversal of restructur
reserves established in prior years that were déamée no longer required, (ii) acquisition adjoshts for which the purchase alloca
period had closed and (iii) exit-related reservegioally established through goodwill in prior ysdhat were deemed no longer required.
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Fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2010, the Company recognized restmiing, integration and other charges related toaieing cost reduction actio
announced in fiscal 2009 which were taken in respdn market conditions as well as integrationsassociated with acquired business
addition to a value-added tax exposure and actprisielated costs partially offset by a credit tethto prior restructuring reserves.

Year Ended

July 3, 2010

(Thousands)
Restructuring charges $ 15,99
Integration costs 2,931
Value-added tax exposure 6,47
Other 3,261
Reversal of excess restructuring reserves recandedor periods (3,24))
Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other charge $ 25,41¢
After tax restructuring, integration and other dew $ 18,78¢
Restructuring, integration and other charges paresbn a diluted basis $ 0.1z

Restructuring charges incurred in fiscal 2010 cstesl of severance, facility exit costs and othergbs. Severance charges were re
to personnel reductions of over 1&Mployees in administrative, finance and salestfons in connection with the cost reduction actionsll
three regions. Facility exit costs consisted ofséediabilities and fixed asset write-downs asseciawith severnvacated facilities in tt
Americas, one in EMEA and four in the Asia/Pac oegiOther charges consisted primarily of contrdotiéigations with no orgoing benef
to the Company.

During fiscal 2010, the Company incurred integnatimsts for professional fees, facility moving soshd travel, meeting, marketing .
communication costs that were incrementally inaias a result of the integration efforts of pregiguacquired businesses.

Also during fiscal 2010, the Company recognizedharge for a valuadded tax exposure in Europe related to an augitiof years an
other charges related primarily to acquisiti@tated costs which would have been capitalizedeundior accounting rules. In addition,
Company recognized a credit to reverse restrugueserves which were determined to be no longezssary.

Fiscal 2010 and prior year reserve activ

In addition to the fiscal 2010 restructuring adiiyithe Company incurred restructuring charges uséearate restructuring plans.
fiscal 2012 activity related to the remaining ressrassociated with these restructuring actiopseisented in the following table:

Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at July 2, 2011 $ 31 $ 6,63 $ 1,96¢ $ 8,91«
Cash payments (92) (4,189 (1,09¢) (5,370
Adjustments (36) (664) (59) (759)
Other, principally foreign currency translation (32) (79 (133 (243)

Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 15¢  $ 1,70 $ 67¢  $ 2,542

As of June 30, 2012, management expects the majafrithe remaining severance and other reservée totilized by the end of fisc
2014 and the remaining facility exit cost resemeebe utilized by the end of fiscal 2016 .
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18. Summary of quarterly results (unaudited):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year(a)
(Millions, except per share amounts)
(b) 2012
Sales $ 6,426.C % 6,693.¢ $ 6,280.! $ 6,307.. $ 25,707.!
Gross profit 753.¢ 784.1 753.¢ 759.( 3,050.!
Net income 139.( 147.( 147.¢ 133.¢ 567.(
Diluted earnings per share 0.9C 0.9¢ 1.0C 0.91 3.7¢
(c) 2011
Sales $ 6,182.. % 6,767.t $ 6,672.. $ 6,912.0 $ 26,534.
Gross profit 723.1 773.2 786.¢ 824.¢ 3,107.¢
Net income 138.2 141.C 151.C 238.¢ 669.1
Diluted earnings per share 0.9C 0.91 0.9¢ 1.54 4.34

(@) Quarters may not add to the year due to roun

(b) Second quarter of fiscal 2012 results wereaioted by restructuring, integration and other ceamgf $34.5 million pre-tax$23.6 millior
after tax and $0.16er share on a diluted basis. The charges consi§teelverance, facility exit costs, integrationtspsransaction cos
other restructuring charges, and a credit to agjtist year restructuring reserves. During the adoguarter, the Company also recol
$1.4 million pre-tax, $0.9 million after tax and.®0 per share on a diluted basis related to theesddwn of a small investment and
write-off of deferred financing costs associatethvihe early retirement of a credit facility, amdliacome tax adjustment 0.5 millior
primarily related to the combination of a favorakledit settlement and release of a valuation allmseon certain deferred tax as
which were determined to be realizable, mostly eiffsy changes to existing tax positions primardy fransfer pricing. Third quart
results were impacted by restructuring, integratiod other charges of $18.6 million pre-tax, $18ilfion after tax and $0.1@er shar
on a diluted basis. The charges consisted of severdacility exit costs fixed asset wrilewns, integration costs, transaction costs,
charges, and a reversal to adjust prior year refstring reserves. During the third quarter, the @any recognized a gain on the bar
purchase of $4.5 million pre- and after tax and$@er share on a diluted basis related to the aduisdf Unidux Electronics Limite
(Singapore), and an income tax adjustment of $5libomand $0.04per share on a diluted basis related primarilyh dombination ¢
favorable audit settlements, certain reserve refeasd the release of a valuation allowance orrreeféeax assets which were determ
to be realizable. Fourth quarter results were irtgghby restructuring, integration and other chafe&20.5 million pre-tax$15.7 millior
after tax and $0.1per share on a diluted basis. These charges irtlseleerance, facility exit costs, integration cosensaction cosi
other restructuring charges and other chargeseretatlegal claims. During the fourth quarter, @@mpany recognized a small adjustn
to the gain on bargain purchase related to thenbasiin Japan acquired in the third quarter; amek séax benefit of $4.0 million arfD.0:
per share on a diluted basis which is comprisd@) af tax benefit of $26.3 milliofor the release of tax reserves against deferseddset
that were determined to be realizable during thetfoquarter of fiscal 2012, partially offset by) (@ tax provision 0f$22.3 millior
primarily related to the impact of withholding talated to legal entity reorganizations and thetdisthment of tax reserves aga
deferred tax assets that were determined to belimable during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012.

(c) First quarter of fiscal 2011 results were iicted by restructuring, integration and other changhich totaled $28.1 million pre-ta%20.2
million after tax and $0.1®er share on a diluted basis. Restructuring chacgasisted of severance costs, facility exit castd othe
charges resulting from acquisition related intagrafctivities. In addition, the Company recognizedain on bargain purchase$#1.(
million pre- and after tax, and $0.2@r share on a diluted basis in connection wittJitédux acquisition. Second quarter results \
impacted by restructuring, integration and othearghs which totaled $29.1 million pre-tax, $20.8iom after tax and $0.1per share ¢
a diluted basis incurred primarily in connectiorthwthe acquisitions anidtegrations of acquired businesses. The Compasuyratorded
reversal of $3.5 million préax primary related to the reversal of restructynieserves established in prior years which weréonge
needed. Third quarter of fiscal 2012 results warpdcted by restructuring, integration and othergbds which totaled $16.3 million pre-
tax, $11.9 million after tax and $0.@&r share on a diluted basis incurred primarilgannection with the acquisitions and integratiof
acquired businesses. In addition, the Company rézed a loss of $6.3 million pre-tax, $3.9 milliafter tax and $0.0per share on
diluted basis related to the write-down of investitsén smaller technology start-up companies.
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Fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 results were impadtgdestructuring, integration and other chargeglvtotaled $7.3 million pre-tax5.€
million after tax and $0.04 per share on a dilutedis. The Company also reversed $3.6 million axe-$2.5 million after tax anfl0.0z
per share on a diluted basis for restructuring jamehase accounting reserves determined not tcebded. In addition, fourth quat
results included a tax benefit of $52.7 millionr,%9.34 per share on a diluted basis, primarily relatedht release of a tax valuat
allowance for which the tax asset was determindskteealizable.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended June 30, 2012, July 2, 2011 and JulyZ)10

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Charged to
Balance at Charged to Other Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Accounts — Deductions — End of
Description Period Expenses Describe Describe Period
(Thousands)
Fiscal 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 107,73¢ % 35,63: $ — $ (37,05) (&) $ 106,31¢
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 310,77. (30,78Y) (b) (35,899 (c) — 244,09:
Fiscal 2011
Allowance for doubtful accounts 81,197 39,25¢ — (12,719 (@) 107,73¢
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 331,42 (76,05Y (d) 55,40 (e) — 310,77.
Fiscal 2010
Allowance for doubtful accounts 85,471 33,82t — (38,109 (a) 81,197
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 315,02( (1,339 17,747 (f) — 331,42:

Uncollectible accounts written @

(@)
(b)

Represents a reduction primarily due to thease of valuation allowance in EMEA, of which $2&],000impacted the effective tax ri

and $4,554,000f which did not impact the effective tax rate hesmdeferred taxes and income tax payables asseiéth the release
the valuation allowance were recorded which ofésportion of the benefit as a result of the reldase Note 9).

(€)
(d)

Primarily relates to the translation impact of ojpes in foreign currency exchange re
Represents a reduction primarily due to thease of valuation allowance in EMEA, of which $845,000impacted the effective tax ri

and $11,840,000f which did not impact the effective tax rate bhesm deferred taxes and income tax payables assoeidgth the relea:
of the valuation allowance were recorded, whiclseiffa portion of the benefit as a result of theasé (see Note 9).

()
(f)

Primarily relates to the translation impact of ojpesin foreign currency exchange rates and acquakghtion allowance
Includes the impact of deferred tax rate chandestranslation impact of changes in foreign curyeexchange rates and the increas

valuation allowance against associated deferred¢gnefits as it was determined the related opeydtn loss carryerward cannot

utilized.
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Exhibit

Restated Certificate of Incorporation & @ompany (incorporated herein by reference t@mpany’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated February 12, 2001, Exhibit 3(i)).

By-laws of the Company, effective August 2011 (incorporated herein by reference to the @om’'s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated August 16, 2011 (Exhibit 3.1).

Indenture dated as of March 5, 2004, bytmtdieen the Company and JP Morgan Trust Compaatyodl Association
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated March 8, 2004,ilixH.1).

Officers’ Certificate dated August 19, 2p85tablishing the terms of the 6.00% Notes dué Zibicorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Foithdaited August 19, 2005, Exhibit 4.2).

Officers’ Certificate dated September 1)@, establishing the terms of the 6.625% Notes2\1& (incorporated herein
by reference to the Company’s Current Report omR&4K dated September 12, 2006, Exhibit 4.2).

Officers’ Certificate dated March 7, 20@%tablishing the terms of the 5 7/8% Notes due ZDbrporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Foithd&ited March 7, 2007, Exhibit 4.2).

Indenture dated as of June 22, 2010, bettveeCompany and Wells Fargo Bank, National Asgmm, as Trustee,
providing for the issuance of Debt Securities i on more series (incorporated herein by referémtiee Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 22, 2010jtibdh.1).

Officers’ Certificate establishing the terof the 5.875% Notes due 2020 (incorporated hédrgieference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Jun&@20, Exhibit 4.2).

Note: The total amount of securities authedimnder any other instrument that defines thesighholders of the
Company'’s long-term debt does not exceed 10% oftizd assets of the Company and its subsidiaries consolidated
basis. Therefore, these instruments are not redjtirbe filed as exhibits to this Report. The Conypagrees to furnish
copies of such instruments to the Commission upgnest.

Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements

2011 Amended and Restated Employment Awggaedated February 11, 2011 between the CompahiRan Vallee
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated February 14, 2@&khjbit 10.1).

2011 Amended and Restated Employment Awggaedated February 11, 2011 between the CompahiRietard
Hamada (incorporated herein by reference to thepfamyis Current Report on Form 8-K dated February?2041,
Exhibit 10.2).

Form of Change of Control Agreement dd&elruary 11, 2011 between the Company and eacby¥#Rllee and
Richard Hamada (incorporated herein by referen¢bedCompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated ety 14,
2011, Exhibit 10.3).

Form of Employment Agreement dated DecerhiBe2008 between the Company and each of itsiixecOfficers
(other than Roy Vallee and Richard Hamada) (incaisal herein by reference to the Company’s CuiReqiort on
Form 8-K dated December 22, 2008, Exhibit 10.2).

Form of Change of Control Agreement d@edember 19, 2008 between the Company and eable &xecutive
Officers (other than Roy Vallee and Richard Hamddeorporated herein by reference to the CompaBysent Report
on Form 8-K dated December 22, 2008, Exhibit 10.3).

Avnet 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporatectimeby reference to the Company’s Current Repofform 8-K dated



February 12, 1996, Exhibit 10).

Avnet 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorpodaterein by reference to the Company’s Registrefitatement on

10.7
Form S-8, Registration No. 333-17271, Exhibit 99).

Amended and Restated Avnet 1997 Stock Option Rteorporated herein by reference to the Companyisebit Report

10.8
on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.1).
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10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Exhibit

Retirement Plan for Outside Directors of Avnet,.Jifémended and Restated Effective Generally amofiary 1, 2009)
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 202Milkt 10.1).

Avnet, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Out&ditectors (Amended and Restated Effective Geneeallpf
January 1, 2009) (incorporated herein by referémdlee Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K datedust 13, 2010,
Exhibit 10.2).

Avnet Supplemental Executive OfficerstiRement Plan (2012 Restatement).
Avnet Restoration Plan (Effective Genlgrak of January 1, 2012).

Avnet 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdference to the Company’s Current Report on Féhdated
August 29, 2006 Exhibit 10.2).

Avnet, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan (incorporakedtein by reference to Appendix A to the Compa®raxy Statement
dated September 28, 2007).

Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan (AmendetRestated Effective Generally as of January Q90
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 202kt 10.4).

Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan:

(@) Form of nonqualified stock option agneait

(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agrest for non-employee director
(c) Form of incentive stock option agreetmen

(d) Form of performance stock unit termethe

(incorporated herein by reference to the Camyfs Current Report on Form 8-K dated August Z8& Exhibit 10.3).

Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan (AmendetRestated Effective Generally as of January Q90
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 202Milkt 10.5).

Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan:

(@) Form of nonqualified stock option agneait

(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agrest for non-employee director

(c) Form of performance stock unit termetHeevised effective August 13, 2009 by (f) below)
(d) Form of incentive stock option agreemen

(e) Long Term Incentive Letter

(incorporated herein by reference to the Camy{s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 16, 2@Xhibit 99.1).

() Form of performance stock unit term sheet@iporated herein by reference to the Company’sebtiReport on
Form 8-K dated August 19, 2009, Exhibit 99.1).

Avnet, Inc. 2010 Stock Compensation Plan (incorfgatderein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Canys
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration3$8-171291).

Avnet, Inc. 2010 Stock Compensation Plan:
(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreete
(b) Form of incentive stock option agreement
(c) Form of performance stock unit term sheet
(d) Form of restricted stock unit term sheet



(incorporated herein by reference to the Camyfs Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 0,2 Exhibit 10.1).
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10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

Exhibit

Avnet Deferred Compensation Plan (Amended and RekEffective Generally as of January 1, 2009)diporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated August 13, 2010, Exhibit 10.6).

Amendment No. 1 to Avnet Deferred Compensation Pdanended and Restated Effective Generally as mfidiy 1,
2009) (incorporated herein by reference to the Gomijs Annual Report on Form 10-K dated August 024,12 Exhibit
10.21).

Form of Indemnity Agreement. The Compenters into this form of agreement with each oflitectors and officers
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yiarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated May 8, 2006)ikik10.1).

Form option agreements for stock opti@amg (incorporated herein by reference to the CayigeCurrent Report on
Form 8-K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 10.4).

(a) Non-Quialified stock option agreementX69 Stock Option Plan
(b) Incentive stock option agreement for 1$88ck Option Plan
(c) Incentive stock option agreement for 1$8éck Option Plan
(d) Non-Quialified stock option agreementI885 Stock Option Plan

Bank Agreements
Securitization Program

(a) Receivables Sale Agreement, dated dargé 28, 2001 between Avnet, Inc., as Originatod, Avnet Receivables
Corporation as Buyer (incorporated herein by refeegto the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-edlat
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10J).

(b) Amendment No. 1, dated as of Februa3082, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.2%@ya (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Reproform 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10K)

(c) Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 2622to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.25(a) @fiocorporated herein
by reference to the Company’s Current Report omF#K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10L).

(d) Amendment No. 3, dated as of NovemI3e2R02, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.2&{aye (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10B).

(e) Amendment No. 4, dated as of DecemBeRQ02, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.28{aye (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10E).

(H Amendment No. 5, dated as of August2()3, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.25(@yekincorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Regroform 8-K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10C)

() Amendment No. 6, dated as of Augug()5, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.25(ayealiocorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Regroform 8-K dated September 13, 2005, Exhibit)10.1

(h) Amendment No. 7, dated as of AugustZZ®7, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.25(@y&lincorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated August 13, 2010, Exhibit 10.7).

(i) Amendment No. 8, dated as of AugustZBl0, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.25(@yeakincorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated September 1, 2010, Exhibit 10.2)

() Second Amended and Restated Receigdhlechase Agreement dated as of August 26, 20b0@#hvnet
Receivables Corporation, as Seller, Avnet, IncSewicer, the Financial Institutions party theratml JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as Agent (incorporated herein by refeeeto the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K di&eptember 1,
2010, Exhibit 10.1).



(k)  Amendment No. 1, dated as of Decen2812010, to the Second Amended and Restated Réxdes/Purchase
Agreement in 10.25(j) above (incorporated hereimdfgrence to the Company’s Quarterly Report omFbd-Q dated
January 28, 2011, Exhibit 10.2).
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12.1

21
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32.1

32.2

101.INS

101.SCH
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Exhibit

() Amendment No. 2, dated as of August 25, 2@dthe Second Amended and Restated Receivabiehdde
Agreement in 10.25(j) above (incorporated hereimdfgrence to the Company's Current Report on RKrdated
August 26, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).

(m) Amendment No. 3 dated as of March 7, 2012hé&Second Amended and Restated Receivables Purkbesssment
in 10.25(j) above (incorporated herein by referetocte Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-@aitpril 27,
2012, Exhibit 10.1).

Credit Agreement dated as of NovembeR@81 among Avnet, Inc., Bank of America, N.A. AgBninistrative Agent,
and each lender thereto (incorporated herein greate to the Company’s Current Report on Formdatéd November
22, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

List of subsidiaries of the Company as ai€30, 2012.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Certification pursuant to Section 302 loé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 302 loé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 906tlbé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 906tlbé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculationrikbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbaf&®cument.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentationkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Libase Document.

* Filed herewith.

*x Furnished herewith.
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AVNET SUPPLEMENTAL
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN

(2012 Restatement)

ARTICLE 1
HISTORY, PURPOSE AND EFFECTIVE DATE

Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation (ti€ompany” ), previously established a program to provide supplaai life
insurance and retirement income benefits for ElggiBxecutives (as defined herein), known as theeAExecutiv
Officers’ Supplemental Life Insurance and RetiretriBdanefits Program (th#rogram” ) effective July 1, 1979 (tl
“Original Effective Date” ). The Program was amended and restated in 2008tiefgenerally as of January 1, 2C
to comply with changes made to the Code (as defirezdin) through the enactment of Code Section 4B9Ahe
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and to incorpoiertain other changes. The Program is herebyhdedean
restated to implement changes pursuant to resnkitbthe Board of Directors of the Company.

The Plan is intended to be a nonqualified defewedhpensation plan under the Code that provides|soygmta
retirement income to a select group of managemertighly compensated employees. Accordingly, then@an
intends that the Plan will not be a qualified etent plan under Code Section 401(a), and tha®idoe will be exem;
from the requirements of parts 2, 3 and 4 of Titeé ERISA. Moreover, the Company intends thattérens of this Ple
document and the administration of the Plan shealhlcompliance with the applicable requiremenideurCode Sectic
409A. Prior to the Final Section 409A Effective Bdas defined herein), the Company administeredPtiogram ii
accordance with a good faith interpretation of C8éetion 409A. Any provision in the Program or Bian that cann
be construed consistent with such intent shall raatwally be deemed to be severable from the pianssof the
Program or this Plan document and shall have reefor effect.




ARTICLE 2
DEFINITIONS

2.1 Definitions .

Whenever the following words and phrases are usékis Plan, with the first letter capitalized, yh&hall hav
the meanings specified below:

(@) “ Active Participant ” shall mean a Participant who, for a particular Pfaar, is an Eligible Executi
and received Compensation from an Employer.

(b) “ Actuarial Equivalent ” shall mean the present value of a Participantipaid Total Retirement Ben:
(as defined in Section 4.1) determined by usingRtesent Value Interest Factor in effect on tha fiusiness day of t
month preceding the Participasiapplicable Payment Calculation Date and no chiamgeortality factors. No actuar
increase will be provided for benefit payments maftler age 65 except as otherwise specifically idex\ herein.

(c) *“ Affiliate ” means the Company and any other entity that isyauld be, aggregated and treated
single employer with the Company under Code Sestti(b) (controlled group of corporations) or 4)4@ group ¢
trades or businesses, whether or not incorporateder common control); provided, however, that amershij
threshold of at least 50% shall be used hereunugead of the 80% minimum ownership threshold thatld
otherwise apply under such Code sections.

(d) *“ Avnet Pension Plan” shall mean the Avnet Pension Plan, as amendednagifiecct from time to tim
and any successor qualified retirement plan thexgtdesignated by the Company from time to time.

(e) “ Beneficiary ” or “ Beneficiaries” shall mean the person or persons, including adeygpberson
representative or other fiduciary, last designatedriting by a Participant in accordance with prdares established
the Committee to receive the benefits specifiecelneder in the event of the Participgntdeath. No Beneficia
designation shall become effective until it is dileith the Committee. If there is no Beneficiarsidmation in effec
then the Participard’ surviving spouse shall be the Beneficiary. Ifr¢his no surviving spouse to receive any ber
payable in accordance with the preceding sentdheeduly appointed and currently acting personptegentative (
the Participant’s estate (which shall include eithe Participans probate estate or living trust) shall be the Heraey.
In any case where there is no such personal regegse of the Participarg’estate duly appointed and acting in
capacity within 90 days after the Participardeath (or such extended period as the Commiétegndines is reasonal
necessary to allow such personal representatile appointed, but not to exceed 180 days aftelPénicipants death
then a Participand’ Beneficiary shall mean the person or persons edw verify by affidavit or court order to 1
satisfaction of the Committee that they are legalfiitled to receive the benefits specified hereunth the event ai
amount is payable under the Plan to a minor, paystel not be made to the minor, but instead dfefpaid (a) to th
person’s living parent(s) to act as custodianjf(b)at persons parents are then divorced, and one parent isaleeo
primary custodial parent, to such custodial pacerft) if no parent of that person is then




living, to a custodian selected by the Committedtul the funds for the minor under the Uniformt&ifo Minors Ac
(or similar statute) in effect in the jurisdiction which the minor resides. If no parent is liviagd the Committe
decides not to select another custodian to holduhés for the minor, then payment shall be madééaduly appointe
and currently acting guardian of the estate forrtieor or, if no such guardian is duly appointed auarrently actin
within 60 days after the date the amount becomgalpe, payment shall be deposited with the couwrirtggjurisdictior
over the estate of the minor.

(H “ Board of Directors” or “ Board ” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.
(g) *“ Change of Control” means the date of the earliest to occur of tleviong events:

(1) the acquisition by any individual, entity or gro(within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)

(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ataedn(the “Exchange Act”) (a “ Person”) of beneficia
ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13dsromulgated under the Exchange Act) of 50% oravadreither
(A) the then outstanding shares of common stodk®iCompany or (B) the combined voting power of tther
outstanding voting securities of the Company exditio vote generally in the election of memberthefBoar:
of Directors; provided, however, that the followitrgnsactions shall not constitute a Change of ©bonde
this subsection (1): (x) any acquisition directtprfi the Company (excluding an acquisition by virtbfethe
exercise of a conversion privilege), (y) any actjois by the Company, or (z) any acquisition by amgploye
benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maiethby the Company or any Affiliate;

(2) the individuals who, as of the Effective Date, ddnte the Board (the Incumbent Board ") are
replaced during any twelve- (127)onth period by new Board members whose appointmenbmination we
not endorsed by a majority of the Incumbent Boardyided, however, that any individual becomingractol
subsequent to the Effective Date whose electionparnination for election by the Compasystockholders, w.
approved by a vote of at least a majority of theeabrs then comprising the Incumbent Board she
considered as though such individual was a memibgredncumbent Board, but excluding for this pwspan
such individual whose appointment or nominatiortte Board occurs as a result of an actual or tenes
election contest with respect to the election aroeal of any member of the Board, or other actuahoeatene
solicitation of proxies or consents, by or on béb&h Person other than a majority of the theruibent Boarc
or

(3) approval by the stockholders of the Company of mplete liquidation or dissolution of t
Company or the sale or other disposition of alsabstantially all of the assets of the Companyo(ia or mor
transactions) and, in either case, the consummatisach transaction.

(h) “ Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 198@nasnded.

(i) “ Committee” shall mean the Committee appointed by the Boaatitninister the Plan in accordance \
Article 7. As of the date hereof, the Committethis Compensation




Committee of the Board.

() “ Company” shall mean Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation, a&augcessor corporation or entity
successor thereto) and its (or their) assigns.

(k) * Compensation” shall mean a Participast’Incentive Compensation, if any, and Salary, i, a&arne
during a Plan Year.

() * Covered Compensation’ means the average of the highest two (2) out ofrthst current five (5) fu
Plan Years of Compensation earned by a Participantetermined on the last day of the Fiscal Yeaorgprior to th
date that he ceases to be an Active Participant.

(m) *“ Death Benefit Earnings” shall mean the total amount of a Participar@ompensation for the last 1
Fiscal Year, as determined on or prior to the datbe Participant’s death.

(n) “ Disability ” means an event that would enable an Active Paaiitipp become eligible for a Disabil
Retirement Date under subsection 4.4 of the AveeisPn Plan or a similar provision of an amendediga of suc
plan. For purposes of this Plan, the ternSéction 409A Disability” means a Disability that also qualifies
“disability” under the Section 409A Rules.

(o) “ Early Retirement Date” means the date when a Participant has incurreghar&en From Service a
has attained age 55.

(p) “ Effective Date” means the date this restatement of the Plan pyaaed by the Board.

(q) “ Eligible Executive” means an executive officer of the Company who leg ldesignated as eligible
participate in the Plan by action of the Board, @mmmittee or the Avnet, Inc. Executive Committéeequested b
the Committee, such an officer will be an EligiErecutive only if he or she agrees, in writingtdaminate any prior
existing obligation of an Employer providing suppkental life insurance and/or nonqualified retiretmieenefits othe
than pursuant to the Avnet Deferred Compensati@n.PNo individual shall become an Eligible Execetiafte
December 31, 2011.

() “ Employer ” shall mean the Company and any Affiliate that hdapsed this Plan with the consent of
Board.

(s) *“ ERISA ” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Seciat of 1974, as amended.

() “ Final Section 409A Effective Dat€’ shall mean the date when a rule or requirement rutheefina
regulations issued by the Secretary of the Trealsecame effective under Code Section 409A, and ghakrally refe
to January 1, 2009.

(u) * Inactive Participant ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.




v) “ Incentive Compensation” shall mean any cash incentive compensation or b@aysble to
Participant by an Employer for a Plan Year in addito the Participant’ Salary, but determined prior to reductior
any salary deferral contributions to either a piescribed under Code Section 125 or 401(k) or tiaeef Deferre
Compensation Plan.

(w) “ Interim Section 409A Effective Date” shall mean the date when a particular provisiorrube
promulgated under Code Section 409A became effgctind shall generally mean January 1, 2005. The ‘ténterim
Section 409A Period’” means the period beginning on or after the Intesmation 409A Effective Date and enc
immediately before the Final Section 409A Effectivate.

(x)  “ Normal Retirement Date” shall mean the date when a Participant attains6&gand has incurrec
Separation From Service.

(y) “ Offset Plan Amount” shall mean, as of the date that any benefit paymsedtie under the Plan,
amount payable on such date under all Offset Rlasgefined below). For example, with respect t@aaticipants
Total Retirement Benefit, the Offset Plan Amountdach of the 24 monthly payments described ini@edt1(a) sha
be the amount payable under the Avnet Restoratim @nd any other Offset Plan) for each such manththe Offse
Plan Amount for the final lump-sum payment desdilie Section 4.1(a) shall be the amount of thelflaenp-sun
payment due under the Avnet Restoration Plan (agdther Offset Plan).

(z) “ Offset Plan” or “ Offset Plans” shall mean the Avnet Restoration Plan and any atbagualifie(
deferred compensation plan designated by the Cdeenivther than the Avnet Deferred Compensation)Pfaovided
however, that such other nonqualified deferred camsption plan shall constitute an Offset Plan ¢mlthe extent th.
it provides for payment at substantially the saime tand in substantially the same form as presagiyethis Plan.

(aa) “ Original Effective Date ” shall mean July 1, 1979.

(bb) * Participant ” shall mean any Eligible Executive who becomes ativAdarticipant in accordance w
Section 3.1.

(cc) * Payment Calculation Date” means, with respect to installment payments, thst fiusiness day of
month when such payments would begin without regarthe SixMonth Delay Rule and, with respect to a lump
payment, the first business day of a month wheh pagment is scheduled to be made under the terthe &lan.

(dd) “ Plan” shall mean the Avnet Supplemental Executive @ffi¢Retirement Plan, as set forth herein
amended from time to time.

(ee) * Plan Year” shall mean the fiscal year of the Company.

(f)  “ Present Value Interest Factor’ means an annual discount rate equal to the greb#é6 or the intere
yield reported in the Wall Street Journal (or aeotindependent source designated by the Commitbe® time to time
on 10-year United States Treasury Notes as




determined on the first business day of a monthquiag a Participant’s Payment Calculation Date.

(gg) “ Salary " shall mean the Participast’base salary payable by an Employer for a Plamr,Yias
determined prior to reduction for any salary deflecontributions to a plan described under Codédi@ec125 or 401(]
or the Avnet Deferred Compensation Plan.

(hh)  * Section 409A Change in Control’ means either a “change in the ownershgs”the Compan
“change in effective control” of the Company or &tye in the ownership of a substantial portiorhef dssetsbdf the
Company as determined in accordance with the Sedfi®A Rules. To the extent required under the iGeet09A
Rules, a Section 409A Change in Control shall herdgned by reference to an Affiliate instead & ompany.

(i) * Section 409A Rules’ mean regulations issued under Code Section 409%thar official and gener
guidance issued by the Secretary of the TreasheyCommissioner of the Internal Revenue Serviceitber of thei
delegates interpreting Code Section 409A.

() “ Separation From Service’ means the date when an Active Participant resigis @ismissed from tt
employment of the Company and all of its Affiliat@sd has incurred a “separation from servioedccordance with tl
Section 409A Regulation.

(kk) “ Six-Month Payment Delay Rule” means the requirement under Code Section 409Aatlsqtecifie
Employee must delay his or her distribution frorfnanqualified deferred compensation plamwithin the meaning «
the Section 409A Rules) for six (6) months aftegpa&ation From Service, but subject to applicableepkons under tt
Section 409A Rules for distributions due to deatBgection 409A Disability or a Section 409A Chamg€ontrol.

()  “ Specified Employee” means a Participant who is considered to be & ‘&ployee”under Cod
Section 416(i) determined in accordance with pracesl consistent with the Section 409A Rules. WitHimoiting the
generality of the foregoing, a Participanstatus as a key employee shall be based onralealgear, beginning with t
calendar year preceding the Interim Section 409fedilve Date and, if the Participant is then a leeyployee, th
Participant shall be considered to be a SpecifimglByee for the 12nonth period beginning on the April 1st follow
the end of the calendar year when he or she wasndigied to be a key employee.

(mm) “ Termination of Employment ” means the date on which a Participant leaves asémgce with a
Employers under the employment policies of the Camyp

(nn) “ Trust " shall mean any irrevocable rabbi trust that magdtablished from time to time relating to
Plan; provided, however, that the terms of suckttrnay provide that after all liabilities to Paipiants have bet
satisfied under this Plan, as certified in writing all Participants, any remaining assets undetrtist may be return
to the Company.

(00) “ Years of Service” means each full 12-month period (based on a ¢patnt's anniversary date of hii
that a Participant has worked for an Employer,dxaiuding service with an entity that has been aeduor purchase
by an Employer. If a Participant incurs a Termioatiof Employment, is then rehired by an Employed agai
becomes an Active Participant, he or she




will be given credit for all full Years of Serviaeompleted prior to the Termination of EmploymetftalParticipar
ceases to be an Active Participant prior to inogra Termination of Employment, he or she will aotumulate ar
additional Years of Service under the Plan pridoéooming an Active Participant again.




ARTICLE 3
PARTICIPATION

3.1 Participation .

An Eligible Executive shall become an Active Pap@nt in the Plan by completing such forms or agresmt:
that the Committee, in its sole discretion, mayurexy; and passing any physical examination requfoeda life
insurance policy relating to the Participant. AtRgrant who no longer meets the definition of digible Executive
shall become an “Inactive Participanti the Plan if he or she is vested under Sectittin Blotwithstanding ar
provision contained herein to the contrary, an tinacParticipant who incurs a Termination of Emptent o
Disability may not continue participation in theaRIwith respect to the Death Benefit describedeictin 4.4.




ARTICLE 4
PLAN BENEFITS

4.1 Calculation of Retirement Benefits.

Subject to the vesting and other requirements oclar5 hereof and the provisions of Sections 4é 4.3,
Participant’s “Total Retirement Benefit” means the ParticipastBasic Annual Retirement Benefit (as defined bg
payable for ten (10) years (with the amount paidhegear being equal to the Basic Annual Retirentgemefit)
provided, however, that if an Offset Plan exidt® Total Retirement Benefit shall be offset by ligsmg@ayable und:
the Offset Plans. Such offset shall be applieddducing each payment of the Total Retirement Bebgfithe Offse
Plan Amount (as described in Section 4.2(b)).

A Participant's“Basic Annual Retirement Benefit” shall mean an amount determined under the follo
formula:

(@) First, the Participant’'s age (based on full yeatsYermination of Employment plugears of Servic
(based on full years) at Termination of Employmsmall be dividedby 80; provided that this shall not exceed one
and

(b) Second, the figure determined in subparagraphl{ayeashall be multiplied by 36% of a Participant’
Covered Compensation.

For the avoidance of doubt, a ParticiparBasic Annual Retirement Benefit is calculatedhestotal amount payalt
over a 12-month period. The timing and methodsaying a Participans Total Retirement Benefit shall be determ
in accordance with the foregoing applicable pransiof this Plan document.

4.2 Normal Retirement; Form of Payment.

Subject to the provisions and requirements of Agt&cof the Plan and Section 4.3 below, a Partrdipall begir
receiving payment of his or her Total Retiremenn&é effective on the first business day of thenthoafter th
Participant’'s Normal Retirement Date; provided, bwer, that, if the Participant is subject to thg-Blonth Paymer
Delay Rule, payment will not commence until on fielathe first business day of the seventh (7thitindollowing the
date when the Participant has incurred a Separ&tiom Service. Payment of a Participantotal Retirement Bene
shall be made in accordance with the following:

(@) Retirement Before Final Section 409A Effective Daté a Participant retires before the Final Sec
409A Effective Date (including during the Interine@ion 409A Period), then his or her Total Retiratr@enefit will
be made in 120 equal monthly installments effectivieh the first month for which payment is madeeafthe
Participants retirement date and ending on the 120th monttedlfter; provided, however, that the first paymeaide
to a Specified Employee will include payments twauld have otherwise been made but for the Ndonth Paymer
Delay Rule. If a Participant dies after becomingraactive Participant, but prior to receiving 120mthly payments, t
remaining portion of his or her Total RetiremennBg&t shall be paid to the




Participant’s Beneficiary in the same time and neairas if the Participant had not died.

(b) Retirement on or After the Final Section 409A Effee Date. If a Participant retires on or after the F
Section 409A Effective Date, then his or her T&atirement Benefit will be paid as follows:

(1) First, the Participant will receive 24 equal mowthistallments, each equal to (i) oh20th of th
Participants Total Retirement Benefit, minus (ii) the Offséafi® Amount for the applicable month (to the ex
that an Offset Plan exists). If the ParticipanaiSpecified Employee and the 3#enth Payment Delay Ru
applies, the first payment made will include thgmants that would have been due before the datieeofirs
payment if not for the Six-Month Payment Delay Rule

(2) Second, the Participant will receive a lusyomn payment within 90 days after the first busirdes
of the 25th month following the Participant’s retment date. Such lumgum payment shall be equal to (i)
Actuarial Equivalent of the remaining 96 monthlypeents, minus (ii) the applicable Offset Plan Amb(ta the
extent that an Offset Plan exists).

If a Participant dies after becoming an InactivetiBipant, but prior to receiving his or her 24 niidg payments
lump sum payment, as the case may be, all remapayments shall be made to the ParticimaBéneficiary in th
same time and manner as if the Participant hadliedt

4.3 Early Retirement .

A Participant who has incurred an Early RetiremBate will begin receiving payment of his or her &l
Retirement Benefit on the first business day ofrttenth coincident with, or next following, his ocetEarly Retiremel
Date; provided, however, that, if the Participatsubject to the Sikdonth Payment Delay Rule, payment will
commence until the first business day of the sévérth) month on or after the date when the Paditi has incurrec
Separation From Service. A Participant may makewrigen election with the Committee to defer paynsebeyon
his or her Early Retirement Date provided that ehection is filed with the Committee at least orealy before tr
Participants Early Retirement Date, payments are delayed tfdeast five (5) years after that date and thetwla
applies to both this Plan and any Offset Plan. Ai€lpant’s Total Retirement Benefit payable in connectiothvhis o
her Early Retirement Date shall be payable in ataoce with the applicable provisions of subpardgr@) or (b) ¢
Section 4.2 above and shall be reduced by: (A)%.25 each of the first 60 months by which the caneement «
retirement payments precedes the first businessfdédne month coincident with or next following tRarticipants 65t
birthday and (B) 0.50% for each of the next 60 rheni.e., the 61 through 120" ) months by which tf
commencement of retirement payments precedesrgtebfisiness day of the month coincident with ott riellowing
the Participant’s 6%8birthday. Such reduction shall be applied befot®ragtion of any Offset Plan Amount.

4.4 Death Benefit.

If an Active Participant dies before incurring arfénation of Employment, his or her
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Beneficiary shall be entitled to receive, in liduadbenefit under Section 4.1, a lump sum paymeguékto 200% of tr
amount of the Participant’'s Death Benefit Earnitihe “ Death Benefit”) within 90 days following the Participamst’
death (and the Beneficiary may not determine thHencir year when the lump sum payment is made)iged
however, that if an Offset Plan exists, such Dé&ghefit shall be reduced by the Participar®ffset Plan Amou
(expressed as a lump sum payable on the same dég &eath Benefit). The Company may maintain a&unanc
policy (or policies) on the life of the Participatat pay the Death Benefit. Any payment of insuraposceeds to tt
Beneficiary (whether paid directly by the insureratherwise) shall be treated as a payment maderuhé Plan ar
shall count toward satisfying all obligations undee Plan. If the proceeds under any insurancecyakceed tr
amount of the Death Benefit (or any other bengfétyable under the Plan, the excess proceeds gisalbé applie
toward payment of the Participasithenefit under the Avnet Restoration Plan (asd¢hsexcess had been paid unde
Avnet Restoration Plan) and any remaining procebdi be paid to the Company.

45 Disability Benefit .

An Active Participant who becomes unable to worle do Disability may be eligible to receive a Didip
Pension (as defined below). To be eligible to nez@i Disability Pension, a Participant must have:

(@) completed at least five (5) Years of Service adlaifne employee of an Employer;

(b) ceased working for the Company due to Disabilityoke his or her Normal Retirement Date ol
applicable, Early Retirement Date; and

(c) filed an application for disability benefits undée Avnet Pension Plan, any disability plan spoadar
maintained by an Employer or, for Participants veine not covered under any such plan and residecouatry othe
than the United States of America, a disabilitygoeon established or maintained under the natiaves lof his or he
resident country.

A Participant’s annual Disability Pension” shall be equal to 13% of his or her Death Bendgtérmined as
the Participant had died on the date he or shessdonsidered to be Disabled under the Planhéf Participant
Disability qualifies as a Section 409A Disabilityis or her Disability Pension will be paid overea {(10) year peric
(220 monthly payments) commencing on the first iess day of the month on or after the ParticigaDisability date
If the Participant Disability does not qualify as a Section 409AdDisity, his or her Disability Pension shall be ghai
the time and in the form prescribed by Sectiongb).Retirement on or After Final Section 409A Etige Date) an
4.3 (Early Retirement). If an Offset Plan existacle Disability Pension payment shall be reducedheyapplicabl
Offset Plan Amount.

If a Participant dies prior to receiving all of theonthly payments required by this Section 4.5, rdraaining
payments shall be paid to the Participant’s Berafjcas follows: (i) if the Participarg’Disability qualifies as a Secti
409A Disability, in a lump sum equal to the ActahrEquivalent of the remaining monthly paymentshwi 90 day
following the Participans death (and the Beneficiary may not determinecétendar year when the lump sum payr
is made); or (i) if the Participant’s Disabilitypds not qualify as a Section 409A Disability, ic@cance
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with the schedule prescribed by Section 4.2.

Payments made under this Section 4.5 shall beein df any payment that a Participant or Beneficiagy
otherwise be entitled to under the preceding Sestaj this Article 4; provided, however, that ietRarticipant is 100
vested in his or her Total Retirement Benefit dmel Actuarial Equivalent of his or her Total Retieamh Benefit (befor
application of the required offset) is greater thha Actuarial Equivalent of his or her DisabiliBension (befol
application of the required offset), the Actuafauivalent of his or her Disability Pension (befeygplication of th
required offset) shall be increased to be equ#ie¢cActuarial Equivalent of his or her Total Retent Benefit (befol
application of the required offset).

4.6 Interest Adjustment For Six-Month Delay Rule.

Any payments that are delayed under the Plan duthd@oSixMonth Delay Rule will include interest
accordance with this Section 4.6. The interesefwh delayed monthly payment will be calculatechssply, but in a
cases will be based on the Present Value InteegdbfFin effect on the ParticipagtPayment Calculation Date. Inte
on each delayed monthly payment will be calculated daily basis starting with the date that thgnpent would hav
otherwise been made (if not for the S#onth Delay Rule) and ending with the day priothe actual payment date,
a per annum basis and based on a 365 day yeartfwitictual number of days elapsed).

4.7 Minimum and Maximum Benefits Payable Under the Plan

Effective June 1, 2012, notwithstanding any oth@vision of the Plan, the sum of (i) the Actuarajuivalen
of a Participans total benefit payable under this Plan (after wppl the required offset), plus (ii) the Actua
Equivalent of the Participargt'total benefit payable under the Offset Plans ¢thin the case of the Avnet Restora
Plan, shall be the balance of the Particimiéstoration Account under the Avnet Restoratiam)Pshall not excet
$10 million.
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ARTICLE 5
VESTING; NON-COMPETE REQUIREMENTS

5.1 Vesting of Total Retirement Benefit.

Subject to Section 5.2, a Participant will be 1008éted in his or her Total Retirement Benefit bynpteting a
least 5 Years of Service as an Eligible Executive lay meeting the requirements set forth in thigtiSe 5.1 (a), (b) «
(c). Alternatively, if a Participant fails to metbte requirements set forth in this Section 5.1ghsghe will be 0% vest:
in his or her Total Retirement Benefit and, acaogty, not entitled to receive retirement paymentgonnection wit
his or her a Normal Retirement Date or Early Reteat Date. The requirements of this Section 5.aar®llows:

(@) If the Participant incurs a Termination of Employrhdefore attaining age 50, he or she must
completed at least 20 Years of Service;

(b) If the Participant incurs a Termination of Employrhafter attaining age 50, but prior to attaining &5
he or she must have completed at least 15 Yed@sroice; or

(c) If the Participant incurs a Termination of Employrhen or after attaining age 55, he or she must
completed 10 Years of Service.

5.2 Impact of Confidentiality, Non-Compete and NonSolicitation Provisions.

(@ Application of Employment Agreement Provisiondf at any time before or after Termination
Employment, the Committee determines that a Ppamti has violated any of the terms and conditiohsan
employment agreement that is in place between tbepany (or an Affiliate) and a Participant prohifmt the
Participant from disclosing any confidential infation of the Company (or an Affiliate), competingiwthe Compan
(or an Affiliate) or soliciting employees of the @pany (or an Affiliate), then all of the Particigembenefits under tl
Plan (including his or her Total Retirement Benditsability Pension and Death Benefit) shall bedibed. In suc
case, no payments, or further payments, will beertadhe Participant or his or her Beneficiary unthe Plan. To tt
maximum extent permitted under applicable law,@oenpany shall have the right to recover (in eqoityat law) an
payments made to, or on behalf of, a Participatitisf Section 5.2 is violated including, but noniied to, an action fi
restitution for unjust enrichment for improperlyigpdenefits under the Plan, and any payments natiget Participal
shall be deemed to be held in a constructive tmst recovered by the Company.

(b) Provisions Not Contained in Employment Agreemetit a Participant does not have an employr
agreement with the Company (or an Affiliate), orsifch as agreement does not contain a prohibitrodisclosin
confidential information of the Company (or an Ate), competing with the Company (or an Affiliater soliciting
employees or customers of the Company (or an Afé), then the benefit forfeiture and benefit paynrestoratio
provisions of subparagraph (a) above shall applyafCommittee determines that the Participantiaated one of tr
following provisions that is not otherwise addresseParticipant’'s employment agreement:
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(1) Non-Competition. While employed by the Company or an Affiliateg tRarticipant shall nc
without the written consent of the Chief ExecutW#icer of the Company (the “CEO”Jirectly or indirectl
(whether through his spouse, child or parent, diggail entity or otherwise): own, manage, opeilaia, control
participate in, invest in, or otherwise be connédcteth, in any manner, whether as an officer, dog
employee, partner, investor, shareholder, condultander or otherwise, any business entity whelengage
in, or is in any way related to or competitive withe business of the Company or any of its Afi@dg providec
however, notwithstanding the foregoing the Paréinipshall not be prohibited from owning, directly
indirectly, up to 5% of the outstanding equity metgts of any company or entity the stock or othouitg
interests of which is publicly traded on a natiosaturities exchange or on the NASDAQ overdbante
market.

(2) Non-Solicitation. The Participant will not, at any time while emy#ad by the Company or
Affiliate and for a period of one year after Ter@iion of Employment, without the written consentdogctly ol
indirectly, on the Participard’ behalf or on behalf of any person or entity, celwor attempt to induce &
employee of the Company or an Affiliate, or anyiwdual who was an employee of the Company c
Affiliate, during the one (1) year period prior tbe date of such inducement, to leave the employhe
Company or an Affiliate, or to become employed hy person other than the Company or an Affiliateofber
or provide employment to any such individual.

(3) Use and Nondisclosure of Confidential Information

(A) For purposes of this subparagraph 5.2(b)(3), thewng terms shall apply:

M “ Confidential Information means that confidential busin
information of the Company or an Affiliate, whether not discovered, developed,
known by the Participant as a consequence of hgayment with the Company or
Affiliate. Without limiting the generality of theofegoing, Confidential Information sh
include information concerning customer identitgeds, buying practices and patte
sales and management techniques, employee effeetiseand compensation informat
supply and inventory techniques, manufacturing @sees and techniques, product de
and configuration, market strategies, profit andslanformation, sources of supj
product cost, gross margins, credit and other s@eas and conditions. Confiden
Information shall also include, but not be limite information contained in manus
memoranda, price lists, computer programs (sudhwvestory control, billing, collectiol
etc.) and records prepared by, or on behalf of Gbmpany (or an Affiliate), whether
not designated, legended or otherwise identifiedth®y Company (or an Affiliate)
Confidential Information.

(i)  “ Developments’ mean those inventions,

14




discoveries, improvements, advances, methods, ipeacand techniques, concepts
ideas, whether or not patentable, relating to priesed prospective activities and prod
of the Company (or an Affiliate).

(B) A Participant will be in violation of this subparagh 5.2(b)(3) if he violates or does
comply with either (i), (ii) or (iii) below:

(i)  Assignment of DevelopmentsAny and all Developments develo)
by the Participant (acting alone or in conjunctiwith others) during the period of 1
Participants employment with the Company (or an Affiliate) khiae conclusivel
presumed to have been created for or on behatfeoCompany (or an Affiliate) as part
the Participans obligations to the Company (or an Affiliate). 8ugevelopments shall
the property of and belong to the Company (or afilidte) without the payment
consideration therefor in addition to the Participg Compensation or benefits hereur
and the Participant hereby transfers, assigns andeys all of the Participastright, title
and interest in any such Developments to the Cognfaman Affiliate) and shall exect
and deliver any documents that the Company deesssary to effect such transfer
the demand of the Company.

(i)  Restrictions on Use and Disclosur&he Participant shall not to t
or disclose at any time, except with the prior tentconsent of the CEO, any Confider
Information which is or was obtained or acquiredlg Participant while in the employ
the Company (or an Affiliate); provided, howevdrat this provision shall not preclt
the Participant from (y) the use or disclosure o€ls information which presently
known generally to the public or which subsequentynes into the public domain, ot
than by way of disclosure in violation of this pigien or in any other unauthoriz
fashion, or (z) disclosure of such information rieggd by law or court order; provided t
prior to such disclosure required by law or couden the Participant will have given
Company at least three (3) business daygten notice (or, if disclosure is required tc
made in fewer than three (3) business days, thelm isatice shall be given as promptly
practicable after determination that disclosure mm@yequired) of the nature of the lav
order requiring disclosure and the disclosure tonbéde in accordance therewith.

(i)  Return of Documents Upon Termination of Employment with f
Company (and all of its Affiliates), the Participashall forthwith deliver to the CEO
documents,
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customer lists and related documents, price andegire manuals and guides, catal
records, notebooks and similar repositories of ontaining Confidential Informatic
and/or Developments, including all copies then isa possession or control whet
prepared by him or others.
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ARTICLE 6
DISTRIBUTION PROCEDURES

6.1 Distribution of Benefits .

Benefits under the Plan shall not be paid until Pagticipant or Beneficiary files any written dibtrtion forms
required by the Committee with the Company, anddbmmittee approves the distribution. If such foans not timel
filed or there is an administrative delay in makihg payment, then payment will be made at a id&te within th
same taxable year as the originally scheduled paymate under the Plan (and, if this occurs aftétagticipants
Normal Retirement Date and was not due to the fzfute Participant or Beneficiary, he or she waiteive retroacti
payments with interest calculated in accordancé ®#ction 4.6). Payments delayed due to an admatist delay o
behalf of the Company or the Committee will commeemo later than the 15th day of the third calenaantt
following the originally scheduled payment date enthe Plan (and the first payment will include tletayed paymer
with interest calculated in accordance with Sectidhexcept as provided in Section 6.3 below); jged, however, th
if the calculation of the amount of payment undex Plan is not administratively practicable (duevents beyond tl
control of the Participant or Beneficiary), the pagnt will be made in the first calendar year inathihe calculation «
the amount of the payment is administratively pcattie (and the first payment will include the geld payments wii
interest calculated in accordance with Sectionefd&ept as provided in Section 6.3 below). No priovi®f this Sectio
6.1 shall be construed as permitting a Participar®@eneficiary to directly or indirectly designdtee taxable year of
payment described in this Section, and this Sediidnshall be construed and limited as necessasfféztuate th
intent to comply with Code Section 409A.

6.2 No Loans or Financial Hardship or In-Service Withdrawals.

The Plan does not permit loans or financial hagshiin-service distributions.

6.3 Inability to Locate Participant .

In the event that the Committee is unable to loed®articipant or Beneficiary within two (2) yedofowing the
Participants 65th birthday, no payment will be made of hider Total Retirement Benefit. However, if Partiaipar
Beneficiary later claims such benefit prior to theiration of a ten (10) year period from the Rgsant’s 65th birthday
such benefit shall be reinstated without interestasnings.

6.4 Trust.

In the event that a Change of Control occurs (oimminent), a Participant may direct that the Cony
establish a Trust with a financial institution oudt company and deposit into the Trust cash, ntaioke securities
insurance policies in an amount sufficient to fumd or her vested Total Retirement Benefit. The Gany ma
establish separate Trusts for each ParticipanterToust for all Participants, in its discretion.
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ARTICLE 7
ADMINISTRATION

7.1 Committee.

A Committee shall be appointed by, and serve apteasure of, the Board of Directors to adminiser Plar
The number of members comprising the Committed bleadietermined by the Board which may from timére var
the number of members. A member of the Committeg rasign by delivering a written notice of resigoatto the
Board. The Board may remove any member by deligeaircertified copy of its resolution of removalsioch membe
Upon his or her Termination of Employment or adfiion with the Company, as the case may be, a peskal
automatically cease being a Committee member. \G@esumn the membership of the Committee shall bedfpromptly
by the Board.

7.2 Committee Action.

The Committee shall act at meetings by affirmatreée of a majority of the members of the Committ@ry
action permitted to be taken at a meeting may kentavithout a meeting if, prior to such action, @tten consent to tt
action is signed by all members of the Committeg surch written consent is filed with the minutedhed proceeding
of the Committee. A member of the Committee shatlvote or act upon any matter which relates sdielizimself o
herself as a Participant. The Chairman or any ati@mber or members of the Committee designatethdhairma
may execute any certificate or other written di@ctton behalf of the Committee. Notwithstanding tbeegoing, th
Committee may delegate specific functions or duties specific Committee member or members.

7.3 Powers and Duties of the Committee

The Committee shall enforce the Plan in accordangé its terms, shall be charged with the ger
administration of the Plan and shall have all p@aegcessary to accomplish its purposes, includingnot by way ¢
limitation, the following:

(@) to construe and interpret the terms and provisainthis Plan and to remedy or correct any ambigs
omissions or inconsistencies contained therein;

(b) to compute and certify to the amount and kind ofdfiés payable to Participants and their Benefiegr
(c) to maintain all records that may be necessaryh@matiministration of the Plan;

(d) to provide for the disclosure of all informationdatie filing or provision of all reports and statams t
Participants, Beneficiaries or governmental agenageshall be required by applicable law;

(e) to promulgate, administer and enforce such ruleste regulation of the Plan and procedures fo
administration of the Plan as are not inconsisigttit the terms hereof;
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) to appoint an administrator or any other agent, amdielegate to them such powers and duti
connection with the administration of the Plantess €Committee may from time to time prescribe;

(g) to take all actions, and provide any necessaryasdar directions, with respect to any insuraraeies
obtained by an Employer relating to the Plan; and

(h) to take all actions set forth in a Trust agreement.

7.4 Construction and Interpretation .

The Committee shall have full discretion to constend interpret the terms and provisions of thaPhicl
interpretation or construction shall be final andding on all parties, including but not limited &m Affiliate or an
Participant or Beneficiary. The Committee shall adster such terms and provisions of the Plan coetdance with ar
and all laws applicable to the Plan.

7.5 Information .

To enable the Committee to perform its functiohg, Company shall supply full and timely informatitnthe
Committee on all matters relating to the Compengatif all Participants, their death or other capfseermination, an
such other pertinent facts as the Committee mayineq

7.6 Compensation, Expenses and Indemnity

(@ The members of the Committee shall serve withoatpensation for their services hereunder.

(b) The Committee is authorized at the expense of thagany to employ such legal counsel as it may «
advisable to assist in the performance of its dutereunder. Expenses and fees in connection kgthdministration
the Plan shall be paid by the Company, to the éxteat the Committee does not authorize paymemn faoTrust (il
accordance with the terms of a Trust).

(c) The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless tben@ittee and each member thereof, the Boa
Directors and any delegate of the Committee whansemployee of the Company against any and all resqs
liabilities and claims, including legal fees to eledl against such liabilities and claims arising @iutheir discharge
good faith of responsibilities under, or incideat the Plan, other than expenses and liabilitiesngr out of willful
misconduct. This indemnity shall not preclude sdietther indemnification as may be available undesuranc
purchased by the Company or provided by the Compamyer any bylaw, agreement or otherwise, as
indemnification is permitted under applicable law.

7.7 Disputes.

(@) Initial Claim and Decision .

A person who believes that he or she is being demigenefit to which he or she is entitled
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under this Plan (hereinafter referred td'@aimant” ) may file a written request for such benefit witle @ommittee
setting forth his or her claim.

Upon receipt of a claim, the Committee shall adwmse Claimant that a reply will be forthcoming witminety
(90) days and shall, in fact, deliver such replyhwi such period. The Committee may, however, aktae reply perio
for an additional ninety (90) days for special girtstances.

If the claim is denied in whole or in part, the Quittee shall inform the Claimant in writing, usitenguag
calculated to be understood by the Claimant, sefiinth: (1) the specified reason or reasons fahstenial; (2) th
specific reference to pertinent provisions of thenFor Plan rules on which such denial is baseda @escription of ar
additional material or information necessary foag tblaimant to perfect his or her claim and an exgian why suc
material or such information is necessary; (4) appate information as to the steps to be takehafClaimant wishe
to submit the claim for review; and (5) the tinmilis for requesting a review under paragraph (l)vee

(b) Request for Appeal of Initial Claim Decision.

Within sixty (60) days after the receipt by the i@lant of the written denial of his or her claim engaragrag
(a) above, the Claimant may request in writinghe Committee or, if the Committee does not corwisharily of
outside members of the Board of Directors, thethto full Board (in either case, the body designdtetiandle th
appeal is referred to as theAppeals Committee”) an appeal of its prior determination with respecthte Claiman
Such request must be addressed directly to the gpgeommittee or to a senior executive officer led Compan
designated to act on behalf of the Appeals Comenifgéed who is a person other than the Claiman®. Claimant ¢
his or her duly authorized representative may,naad not, review the pertinent Plan documents ahthi issues ar
comments in writing for consideration by the Apge@bmmittee. If the Claimant does not request g&vewithin sucl
sixty (60) day period, he or she shall be barredl @stopped from challenging the Commitgedetermination, whic
shall then become final and conclusive.

Within sixty (60) days after the Appeals Committe®s received a request for review, after consideailt
materials presented by the Claimant, the Appeafar@ittee will inform the Claimant in writing, in aanner calculate
to be understood by the Claimant, of its decisietiirey forth the specific reasons for the decisémd containin
specific references to the pertinent provisionsh& Plan or Plan rules on which the decision issbasf specie
circumstances require that the sixty (60) day tipegiod be extended, the Appeals Committee will stifyh the
Claimant and will render the decision as soon a&sipte, but no later than one hundred twenty (H2@)s after recei
of the request for review.

(c) Limitations on Bringing a Legal Action .

A legal action relating to a claim or right to béteeunder the Plan may be brought by, or on betfl& Participant «
Beneficiary only during a certain period. This peribegins after the appeal process has ended padegraph (t
above and ends 120 days thereafter. However, @vant may a legal action be brought by, or on betiah Participar
more than one (1) year after the date
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when the Participant knows (or should have knowirthe existence of, or the underlying facts alldgestipporting th
claim or right which is the basis of his or heriiaor assertion for benefits or payments undergetating to, the Pla
provided, however, that, if the formal claim or appis pending under paragraph (a) or (b) abotkeaénd of the ot
(1) year period, then such 120-day limitation rshell apply.

(d) Impact of Delayed Payments under Code Section 409A

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Claimant fileslaim within 90 days after the latest date onchwta payment cou
be made to him or her under the Plan and the $edi®A Rules, and the claim or appeal has not besalve
favorable to the Claimant by the 160th day aftehdatest date, the Claimant may take further eefment measures
collect payments which the Claimant asserts aredowehim or her under the Plan; provided, howettea, if sucl
action is not taken within 180 days after suchsatiate, the Claimargt’action will not be presumed to be prompt u
the Section 409A Rules and this paragraph (d) siwalapply.
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ARTICLE 8
MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 Unsecured General Creditor.

Participants and their Beneficiaries, heirs, susmes and assigns shall have no legal or equitaddiés, claims
or interests in any specific property or assetthefCompany. No assets of the Company shall be uredér any tru:
(other than a Trust), or held in any way as calidteecurity for the fulfilling of the obligationsf the Company und
this Plan. Except as provided in a Trust, any dhofadhe Companys assets relating to the Plan shall be, and rertia
general unpledged, unrestricted assets of the Coynpde Company obligation under the Plan shall be merely th
an unfunded and unsecured promise of the Compapgiytanoney in the future, and the rights of theiBipants an
Beneficiaries shall be no greater than those oécured general creditors. It is the intention & @ompany that tk
Plan (and any Trust) be unfunded for purposesefbde and Title | of ERISA.

8.2 Restriction Against Assignment.

The Company shall pay all amounts payable hereunrgrto the person or persons designated by the &h
not to any other person or corporation. No paradParticipans benefits hereunder shall be liable for the d
contracts or engagements of any Participant, hiseoBeneficiary, or successors in interest. Exaspinay be requir
by a valid and recognizable qualified domestictrets order under ERISA, a Participanbenefits hereunder shall
be subject to execution by levy, attachment, onigament or by any other legal or equitable prooepdA Participar
or Beneficiary shall not have any right to alienasticipate, sell, transfer, commute, pledge, srimer or assign al
benefits or payments hereunder in any manner weetsoIf any Participant, Beneficiary or successomterest i
adjudicated bankrupt or purports to anticipatesradte, sell, transfer, commute, assign, pledgejmeber or charge a
distribution or payment from the Plan, voluntardy involuntarily, the Committee, in its discretiomay cancel sut
distribution or payment (or any part thereof) tdarthe benefit of such Participant, Beneficiarysaccessor in intere
in such manner as is consistent with applicable law

8.3 Withholding .

There shall be deducted from each payment made timel€lan or Trust or any other Compensation pay&
the Participant (or Beneficiary) all taxes whicle aequired to be withheld by the Company in respestuch payme
or this Plan. The Company shall have the rightegduce any payment (or Compensation) by the amoluchst
sufficient to provide the amount of said taxes.

8.4 Amendment, Modification, Suspension or Termination

The Board of Directors may amend, modify, suspenteoninate the Plan in whole or in part by adopte
written instrument, except that no amendment, nicatibn, suspension or termination shall have atgoactive effe
to reduce the amount of a Participantested Total Retirement Benefit that has accraedf the date of tl
amendment. In addition, the Committee
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has the right to amend any Plan provision as lengny such amendment does not cause a materieasgm the cos
incurred by the Company in connection with the Planthe event that this Plan is terminated, ai€lpant’s veste
Total Retirement Benefit shall be distributed te ®articipant under the terms of the Plan in entsteas of the date
termination and in compliance with the Section 40R4es.

8.5 Governing Law .

This Plan shall be construed, governed and adraneidtin accordance with the laws of the State dtoha
without regard to its conflict of law provisionsdaexcept to the extent that its laws are preemptethe laws of th
United States of America and, where applicable Sthetion 409A Rules.

8.6 Receipt or Release

Any payment to a Participant or the Participam@eneficiary in accordance with the provisionshef Plan sha
to the extent thereof, be in full satisfaction df daims against the Committee and the Compangl{aing claim:
unrelated to this Plan). The Committee may regsireh Participant or Beneficiary, as a conditioncpdent to suc
payment, to execute a receipt and release to sfedt.e

8.7 Notices.

All notices or other communications by a Participtm the Company in connection with the Plan sha
deemed to have been duly given when received bgéueetary of the Company or by any other perseigdated b
the Company for the receipt of such notices or rottmenmunications, in the form and at the locatipecified by th
Company.

8.8 Headings and Gender.

The headings to Sections in the Plan have beemdeadl for convenience of reference only. The mase
pronoun shall include the feminine and the singtier plural, whenever appropriate. Except as otiserexpress
indicated, all references to Sections in the Phadl $e to Sections of the Plan.

8.9 Plan Not a Contract of Employment.

The Plan does not constitute a contract of employraad participation in the Plan does not give Ehgible
Executive or Participant the right to be retainedhie employ of, or in a particular position widm Employer or a rig
or claim to any benefit under the Plan, unless sigttt or claim was specifically achieved under tdwens of the Plan.

8.10 Construed as a Whole

The provisions of the Plan shall be construedabae in such manner as to carry out the provistbeseof an
shall not be construed separately without relattotine context.

8.11 Severability .
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If any provision of this Plan unrelated to its sgatnder Title | of ERISA as an unfunded plan naaired for :
select group of management or highly compensateglogees is held to be invalid or unenforceable bgoart o
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not imipthe validity or enforceability of the remainipgovisions of th
Plan.

8.12 Successors

The terms and condition of the Plan and any Trhatl e binding on the Employers and their sucassaal
assigns.
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Article 1
Introduction

About the Plan

() Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation, wishes to bfith the Avnet Restoration Plan effective Janudarg012, tc
restore certain retirement benefits that canngirbeided under the Avnet Pension Plan, by reasdhefimits
required by Sections 401(a)(17) and 415 of the Code

(b) The Plan is unfunded and is maintained primarihtii@ purpose of providing deferred compensatiorafselec
group of management and highly compensated em@ayf@e Company. The Plan shall not be subjetti¢o
participation and vesting, funding, or fiduciargugrements (Parts 2, 3, and 4 of Title I) of ERISA.

(©) Benefits due under the Plan shall be payable ft@general assets of the Company or, in the seteadion of
the Plan Committee, from the assets of the EmployerTrust. All benefits under the Plan are sutiie@the
claims of the Company's general creditors in treneof the Company's bankruptcy or insolvency.

Effective Date
Except as otherwise expressly provided, the Plaffestive as of January 1, 2012.
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Article 2
Definitions

Definitions

For purposes of the Plan, unless the context gleamhecessarily indicates the contrary, the foltmywvords and
phrases shall have the meaning set forth in thaitdehs below. Capitalized terms that are not iedi herein shall hay
the same meaning as under the Avnet Pension Plan.

(@)

(b)
(©)
(d)
(€)

(f)

9)
(h)
(i)

“Affiliate” means the Company and any other entity that wooitd be, aggregated and treated as a single
employer with the Company under Section 414(brpof the Code; provided, however, that an owngrshi
threshold of at least 50% shall be used hereundé&zad of the 80% minimum ownership threshold wwatld
otherwise apply under such sections of the Code.

“Avnet Pension Plan” means the Avnet Pension Plan, as in effect and @aaefnom time to time
“Beneficiary” means the Participant's beneficiary under the Aeeision Pla
“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Comp

“Cause” means, for a Participant, the Participant's grassenduct; breach of any material term of any
employment agreement with the Company or an Atélianaterial violation of the Company's or an A#fié's
code of conduct; willful breach, habitual neglectv@anton disregard of his duties; or convictioraaf/ criminal
act.

“Change of Control” means the occurrence of any of the following evemisvided that such event constitutes
a change in ownership or control under Section 468the Code:

(1) The acquisition by any individual, entity or gro(wathin the meaning of Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-3(iN%)
(B)) of stock of the Company that, together withagher stock held by such individual, entity oogp,
constitutes more than 50% of either: (A) the toeitstanding shares of common stock of the Compa
(B) the combined voting power of the then outstagdioting securities of the Company entitled tcevot
generally on the election of members of the Boprdyided, however, that the following transactions
shall not constitute a Change of Control under plisagraph (1): (x) any acquisition directly frone t
Company (excluding an acquisition by virtue of &xercise of a conversion privilege), (y) any
acquisition by the Company, and (z) any acquisibigrany employee benefit plan (or related trust)
sponsored or maintained by the Company or an Atéli

) The individuals who constitute the Board are repdaduring any 12-month period by new Board
members whose appointment or nomination was naireed by a majority of the individuals who were
members of the Board immediately before such 12tmpariod; or

3) The sale or other disposition of substantiallyoélihe assets of the Compa

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as am

“Company” means Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation, and sugcessor there

“Eligible Employee” means an individual who (1) is an “eligible empleY{ander the Avne
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Pension Plan and (2) is part of a select groupafagement and highly compensated employees who are
designated by the Plan Committee as eligible tougcbenefits under the Plan.

()] “Employer” means the Company and any Affiliate that has adbojbie Plan with the consent of the Bo.
(k) “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security At9d4, as amende

() “Interest Credit” means the interest credited to a Participant'soRasin Account for a Plan Year, as descr
in Section 4.01(b).

(m)  “Interest Crediting Rate” means, for any Plan Year, the annual interest ttngdoercentage for such Plan Y
for Post-2010 Balances under the Avnet Pension. PAenof January 1, 2012, the Interest CreditingeR£14%
per year.)

(n) “Participant” means an individual who has commenced, and noedeparticipation in the Plan in accordance

with Section 3.01.

(0) “Payment Date” means, for a Participant, the date as of whichPdmgicipant's benefit under the Plan is
scheduled to be paid, as prescribed by Section Bd)2a Participant who is also a participant m 8ERP, the
Payment Date shall be the “payment calculation”dddermined under the SERP.

(P) “Plan” means this Avnet Restoration Plan, as set forthihemd amended from time to tir

(a) “Plan Committee” means the committee responsible for administehieg™an, as described in Section £

(n “Plan Year” means the plan year under the Avnet Pension

(s) “Qualified Plan Limits” means the limits on benefits that may accrue qreie under a tax-qualified defined

benefit plan pursuant to Section 401(a)(17) ofGloele and Section 415 of the Code.

(t) “Restoration Account” means, for each Participant, the book-entry accdestribed in Section 4.01. The
establishment of a Restoration Account shall netllten assets being set aside for the benefingfiadividual.
Immediately after the Participant's Payment Ddie [dalance of his Restoration Account shall be.zero

(u) “Restoration Contribution Credit” means the amount contributed to a Participant'solResn Account each
Plan Year as described in Section 4.01(a).

(v) “Separation from Service” means the date of an individual's “separation fsgmvice” (within the meaning of
Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Code) with the Emopér and its Affiliates, as determined by the Conypia
accordance with Treas. Reg. 8 1.409A-1(h)(1). wppses of the Plan:

() An individual who is on a leave of absence (with &xpectation that he will return) and does noehav
statutory or contractual right to reemployment sbhaldeemed to have had
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(w)

)

a Separation from Service on the first date thatase than six months after the commencement df suc
leave of absence. However, if the leave of absendee to any medically determinable physical or
mental impairment that can be expected to lash fowntinuous period of six months or more, and such
impairment causes the individual to be unable téope the duties of his position of employment aya
substantially similar position of employment, thegeding sentence shall be deemed to refer to a 29-
month period rather than to a six-month period; and

) A sale of assets to an unrelated buyer that resuéts individual working for the buyer or one t i
affiliates shall not, by itself, constitute a Seggaon from Service for such individual unless theany
with the buyer's written consent, so provides iitimg 60 or fewer days before the closing of suale s

“SERP” means the Avnet Supplemental Executive Officerir&aent Plan, as in effect and amended from
time to time.

“Trust” means a grantor trust established pursuant tesaagreement or other written instrument that (@es
that the assets of such trust are subject to clafraseditors of the Company in the event of itakraptcy or
insolvency, (b) states that such trust shall vocable until all claims for benefits under thard, programs,
agreements, and other arrangements covered bytrsistinave been satisfied, and (c) complies wi¢h th
applicable provisions of Section 409A of the Code.

Rules of Construction

(@)

(b)
(©

(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)

Gender and NumberWords used in the masculine gender shall be de¢onefer to females as well as males.
Unless otherwise expressly provided, words usékarsingu-lar form shall include the plural form,
where appropriate, and vice versa.

Include. The words “include” and “includingShall mean including, but not limited

Statutes and Regulation&ach reference to a statute or regulation ordattory or regulatory provision shall
refer to that provision (or to a successor provisibsimilar import) as currently in effect, as arded, or as
reenacted, and to any regulations and other fogmdbance of general applicability issued thereunder

Laws. Each reference to a law shall include any statetgulation, rule, court case, or other requiremen
established by an exchange or a governmental atytiooragency, and applicable law shall include tayylaw
that imposes requirements in order to avoid advarseonsequences.

Headings Headings at the beginning of articles and sesti@reof are for convenience of reference, shalbe
considered a part of the text of the Plan, and siealinfluence its construction.

Context. The provisions of the Plan shall be construed ahole in such manner as to carry out the prowssio
and purpose thereof, and shall not be construeatatsgty without relation to the context.

Timing of Payments
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) The phrase “as soon as practicable after” or anylagi phrase shall mean the earliest administritive
practicable date after the relevant date or ey®wot/ided that, in accordance with Treas. Reg. 89443
(b), such date shall be no later than the lat€n) dfie last day of the calendar year in whichrilevant
date or event occurs or (ii) the 90th day followthg occurrence of the relevant date or event.

2 To the extent that any payment under the Plan reapdde within a specified number of days, or as
as practicable, on or after any date or the ocnag®f any date or event, the date of payment bleall
determined by the Company or the Plan Committets isole discretion, and not by any Participant,
Beneficiary, or other individual.
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Article 3
Eligibility, Participation, and Vesting

Eligibility and Participation

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

Eligibility to participate in the Plan shall be lited to a select group of management and highlypessated
employees of the Company who are identified anslsdi@d by the Plan Committee as Eligible Employees

An individual who is designated as an Eligible Eaygle shall enter the Plan as of the date deternfipéide
Plan Committee; provided that such date shall beanber than the later of (1) January 1, 201329the
Participant's most-recent entry date under the AReasion Plan. The entry date for each Participhall be as
reflected in the Plan's records, unless the PlanrGittee or the Board determines that such receaflisct an
administrative error.

If a Participant is entitled to benefits under bibtis Plan and the SERP, his benefit under the SgEREBther a
retirement benefit, disability benefit, or deatmé#t) shall be offset by his benefit under thiaRISuch offset
shall be determined in accordance with the ternte®@SERP.

An individual who becomes a Participant shall cmundi to be a Participant until all benefits payalsider the
Plan to him and his Beneficiaries have been pafdlinlf a Participant's Separation from Serviazors before
his benefit under the Plan has become vested,dlecglase to be a Participant upon such Separtton
Service.

Vesting

(@)

(b)

()

No benefit shall be payable under the Plan untdsas become vested under this Section 3.02 oroBet02
(relating to termination of the Plan).

Except as provided in subsection (c), below, otiBe@.02 (relating to termination of the PlanRarticipant
shall be vested in his benefit under the Plan drilis Retirement Income under the Avnet Pensi@ani$
vested. If the Participant is not vested at theetohhis Separation from Service, his Restoraticnodint shall b
forfeited.

If a Participant's employment with the Company Affidiates is terminated involuntarily and witho@ause
within two years after a Change of Control, hiséférunder the Plan shall be vested.
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Article 4
Amount and Payment of Benefits

Amount of Benefits

A Participant's benefit under the Plan is expressetthe balance of his Restoration Account. Sutdnba shall equal
the sum of the Participant's accumulated Restor&mntribution Credits and Interest Credits, asdeed in this
Section 4.01.

(a) Restoration Contribution Credit#A Restoration Contribution Credit shall be adtiedach Eligible Employee's
Restoration Account for each Plan Year in whichEligible Employee is both an Eligible Employee and
Participant in the Plan. Such Restoration Contrdnu€redit shall be added as of the same timeeas th
Contribution Credit for such Plan Year is addeth®Eligible Employee's Cash Balance Account utiaer
Avnet Pension Plan, and shall be equal to the exdesny, of--

1) The Contribution Credit that would be added toHEltigible Employee's Cash Balance Account under the
Avnet Pension Plan for such Plan Year if not fa& Qualified Plan Limits, less

%) The actual Contribution Credit added to the Eligigimployee's Cash Balance Account under the Avne
Pension Plan for such Plan Year.

(b) Interest Credits

1) For each Plan Year that ends before a ParticipBayment Date, an Interest Credit shall be addédsto
Restoration Account as of the last day of such Fksar. Such Interest Credit shall be equal to the
Interest Crediting Rate for such Plan Year timesltalance of the Participant's Restoration Accasrdi
the first day of such Plan Year.

) For the Plan Year in which the Participant's Paynbate occurs, an Interest Credit shall be addéniisto
Restoration Account immediately before his Paynidate. Such Interest Credit shall be equal to the
amount described in paragraph (1), above, multdhe a fraction, the numerator of which is the nemb
of full calendar months elapsed during such PlaarYsefore the Participant's Payment Date and the
denominator of which is 12.

Form and Time of Payment
A Participant's vested benefit under the Planr(if)ahall be paid as follows:

(a) Except as required by subsection (b), below (redgtid participants in the SERP), such Participareti&ted
benefit shall be paid in a lump sum on the later of

() The first business day of the seventh calendar Imibrait begins after the Participant's Separatiom fr
Service, or

) The first business day of the first calendar mdh#t starts after the Participant's 55th birth

Avnet Restoration Plan
January 1, 2012 Page7




(b)

If the Participant is also a participant in the $ERis vested benefit under the Plan shall be atdile time and
in the form prescribed by the SERP. Except as wiilserprovided by the SERP in the case of disabtyd
subject to Section 4.04 (Death Benefits)), suchecebenefit shall be paid as follows:

)

2

@)

The balance of the Participant's Restoration Actehall be converted to an actuarially equivalentes

of 120 equal monthly installments, payable oveyd8@rs, commencing as of the Participant's “payment
calculation date” under the SERP. The amount df snonthly installments shall be calculated usirgy th
“present value interest factor” prescribed by tER®E as of the “payment calculation date” under the
SERP.

The Participant shall receive 24 monthly paymesaish equal to the monthly amount calculated under
paragraph (1), above, commencing at the time ghestby the SERP. The smonth delay rule require

by Section 409A of the Code shall be administenettié same manner as prescribed by the SERP: eac
monthly installment that is required to be delagbdll be paid at the time prescribed by the SER#, w
interest to the extent prescribed by the SERP.

On the date prescribed by the SERP, the presem whithe remaining 96 payments shall be paid in a
lump sum. Such present value shall be calculatégeimanner prescribed by the SERP, using the same
interest factor as is used for the calculation diesd in paragraph (1), above. (To the extent tifiat

SERP requires payment in the form of 120 monthéyaliments, the benefit under this Plan shall blso
paid in 120 monthly installments, and each instafitrshall be equal to the amount required by pap#
(1), above.)

Rehired Employees

The time of payment of benefits to any Participahb has had a Separation from Service shall naffieeted in any
way by a subsequent rehire by the Company. For pkanfi a Participant has a bona fide SeparatiomfGervice and
is subsequently rehired, the vested benefit (if) &ingt accrued before such rehire shall be palildeatime and in the
form prescribed by Section 4.02, above, withouarddo the Participant's rehire.

Death Benefits

If a Participant dies before his Payment Date pthlg benefit payable under the Plan shall be a ksonp
payment to the Participant's Beneficiary. Such paytnshall be equal to the vested balance, if ainheo
Participant's Restoration Account and shall be mvatleén 90 days after the Participant's death.

(@)

(b)

If a Participant is also a participant in the SERRJ such Participant dies after his Separatiam fée@rvice and
before the last payment required by Section 4.0&(bjade, the payments required by Section 4.4@¢b)f
such payments have already started, any remaigpig@nts) shall be paid to his Beneficiary at theetand in
the form prescribed by the SERP.
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Article 5
Plan Administration

Plan Administrator
The Plan shall be administered by the Plan Comeittdich shall be the Committee that is responddile
administering the Avnet Pension Plan (as prescrifyetthe Avnet Pension Plan) or its designee.

Authority, Powers, and Responsibilities of Plan Comittee

(@)

(b)

(€)

The Plan Committee shall have the same authomyeps, and responsibilities with respect to thenRlsthe
Committee responsible for administering the Avnetidton Plan has with respect to the Avnet Pendiam; P
provided, however, that obligations imposed by $23yt3, and 4 of Title | of ERISA (including ERISA'
fiduciary responsibilities) shall not apply withspect to the Plan. For the avoidance of doubt, authority,
powers, and responsibility include the power tostare and interpret the terms and provisions oPtla@ and t
remedy or correct any ambiguities, omissions, comsistencies contained therein. Any interpretatibtihe Pla
and any decision on any matter within the discretibthe Plan Committee that is made by the Plam@ittee
in good faith shall be binding on all persons.

Any question with regard to the Plan Committeethatity, power, or responsibilities shall be resaln a
manner consistent with the provisions of the AvPetsion Plan that set forth the authority and nesipdities
of the Committee responsible for administeringAlvaet Pension Plan (subject to this Plan's exemgtiom the
requirements of Parts 2, 3, and 4 of Title | of ER). Such provisions are incorporated into the Phkan
reference.

The Company and Affiliates shall indemnify the P@ommittee against any and all liabilities, setiens,
judgments, losses, costs, and expenses (includaspnable legal fees and expenses) of whatevegakit
nature that may be imposed on, incurred by, orrgssagainst the Plan Committee by reason of thermeance
or nonperformance of the Plan administration fuorctf such action or inaction did not constitutess
negligence or willful misconduct. The foregoinghigf indemnification shall be in addition to othreghts of
the Plan Committee by law or by reason of insurammserage of any kind, but shall not provide fopldtation.
The Company may, at its own expense, settle amy @aserted or proceeding brought against the Plan
Committee or any of its members when the Compalisraenes that settlement appears to be in the best
interests of the Company.

Claims, Appeals, and Litigation

(@)

(b)

Claims and Appeals Procedures

Claims and appeals related to participation or fiesnender the Plan shall be filed and resolveddnordance
with the procedures that apply for claims and algpgader the Avnet Pension Plan. Such procedueeséerre:
to herein collectively as the “claims procedure.”

Litigation .

() No Applicable Claim (as defined in subsection @low) may be filed in any court or
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any other forum until the claimant has exhaustedctaims procedure referenced in Section 5.03(ay. A
Applicable Claim shall be filed in a court descdla subsection (3), below, within the Applicable
Limitations Period prescribed by subsections (4) @), below. No Applicable Claim may be filed afte
such Applicable Limitations Period.

%) An “Applicable Claim”is:

(A) A claim or action to recover benefits allegedly duneler the provisions of the Plan or by reason
of any law;

(B) A claim or action to clarify rights to future beitefunder the terms of the PI
(®) A claim or action to enforce rights under the Plax

(D) Any other claim or action brought by a person whiseeks to be, or is a successor to a current
former (1) employee (within the meaning of Sect8{6) of ERISA) of an Employer or an
Affiliate, (Il) participant (within the meaning @ection 3(7) of ERISA), or (lll) beneficiary
(within the meaning of Section 3(8) of ERISA) that-

0] Relates to the Plan; a

(ii) Seeks a remedy, ruling, or judgment of any kindregjaan Employer, the Plan
Committee, the Plan, the trustee, or any othewiddal or entity involved with
administering or providing services to the Plan.

3) A court described in this subsection (3) shall be of the following court
(A) The United States District Court for the districtwhich the Plan is principally administer

(B) In the case of an action brought by an individdaintiff, the United States District Court for the
district in which such plaintiff resides; or

(C) In the case of an action brought by more than daiatgf, the United States District Court for t
district in which the largest number of plaintiftsr in the case of a putative class action, the
United States District Court for the district in isfh the largest number of putative class mem|
resides or is reasonably believed to reside.

If any Applicable Claim is filed in a court othdran a court described in this subsection (3), tahe,Rny
Plan affiliates, and all alleged Plan Participaartd Beneficiaries shall take all necessary stepsyve th
action removed to, transferred to, or refiled iwoart described in this subsection (3).

(4) The “Applicable Limitations Period” for any Applibe Claim shall begin on the following date (the
“Limitations Start Date”):

(A) In the case of an Applicable Claim to recover biseallegedly due to the claimant from the Plan
or to clarify the claimant's rights to future batefrom the Plan, the
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earliest of (i) the date the first benefit paymeat actually made, (ii) the date the first benefit
payment was allegedly due, or (iii) the date an Bygr, the Plan Committee, or the Plan first
repudiated the alleged obligation to provide suehdfits. A repudiation described in clause (iii)
may be made in the form of a direct communicatethe Participant or claimane(g., denial of
a claim under the administrative review referenice8ection 5.03(a)) or a more general oral or
written communication related to benefits payalvidar the Plan (for example, summary of the
Plan or provisions thereof, a benefit statemengmagreement or offer letter); or

(B) In the case of any other Applicable Claim, theieatldate on which the claimant knew or should
have known of the material facts on which suchnelar action is based, regardless of whethe
claimant was aware of the legal theory underlylmgApplicable Claim.

(5) The Applicable Limitations Period for any ApplicallClaim shall end on the second anniversary of the
Limitations Start Date for such Applicable Claimppided, however, that-

(A) If a request for administrative review pursuan$extion 5.03(a) is pending when the Applicable
Limitations Period expires, the deadline for filisgch Applicable Claim shall be extended to the
date that is 60 calendar days after the final démeluding a deemed denial) of such claim on
administrative review; and

(B) If paragraph (4)(B), above, applies, the Applicdblaitations Period shall end no later than six
years after (i) the date of the last action on Wwisach claim or action is based or (ii) in the oai
an omission, the latest date on which such omissooitd have been cured, without regard to
whether the claimant knew or should have knowmthé&erial facts on which the claim or action
is based.

(6) The Applicable Limitations Period described in tBisction 5.03(b) replaces and supersedes any
limitations period that otherwise might be deempgliaable under state or federal law in the abs@fice
this Section 5.03(b). A claim or action filed aftee expiration of the Applicable Limitations Petishall
be deemed time-barred; provided, however, thaPtae Committee shall have discretion to extend the
Applicable Limitations Period upon a showing of eptional circumstances that, in the opinion of the
Plan Committee, provide good cause for an exten3ibe exercise of this discretion is committed lsole
to the Plan Committee, and is not subject to review

) In the event of any Applicable Claim brought byoorbehalf of two or more claimants, the requirersent
of this Section 5.03(b) shall apply separately wéhpect to each claimant.
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Article 6
Payment Rules

Funding and Obligation to Pay

(@)

(b)

All benefits under the Plan shall be paid by thenPany; provided that the Company may, by actiothefPlan
Committee, cause benefits to be paid by an EmployarTrust. If a Participant also participateshia SERP
and the offset required by the SERP for benefiygpke under this Plan results in the net benefiapke under
the SERP being less than the proceeds of any msei@olicy under the SERP that are payable to #éingcipant
or his beneficiary, the excess of such insuranoeqads over the net benefit payable under the SBERIPbe
applied toward payment of the Participant's bergefitif applicable, the death benefit payable ehdif of the
Participant) under this Plan.

In the event that a Change of Control occurs onminent, the Company shall contribute, or caudeeto
contributed, to a Trust, cash, marketable secariteinsurance policies in an amount equal testhme of the
balances of all Restoration Accounts under the Btaof the date of the Change of Control (whetherobd
vested).

No Assignment or Alienation

(@)

(b)

No benefit payable under this Plan shall be voluigtar involuntarily assigned or alienated; prosd] however
that the Company and each Employer may reduce itenefier the Plan to the extent that they detegngn
necessary or appropriate to recover a debt owedeoarticipant or Beneficiary to the Company oAfiliate,
or to remedy any injury caused by the ParticiparBeneficiary to the Company or an Affiliate. Anffset shall
be applied in accordance with the applicable resuénts of Section 409A of the Code.

A Beneficiary who is entitled to receive a benafider the Plan may disclaim his right to such biebgffiling a
disclaimer that satisfies the requirements to tualified disclaimer” under Section 2518 of thedemo later
than nine months after the death of the Particigattie Plan Committee receives a qualified disotx (as
defined in Section 2518 of the Code) from any Bereafy, the Participant's Beneficiary under thenPaall be
determined as if the disclaiming Beneficiary haedeceased the Participant.

Withholding

All amounts payable under this Plan are subjeutitioholding for all federal, state, and local taxasd all other
amounts relating to tax or other payroll deductj@ssthe Company may reasonably determine shouldtbkeld.
Regardless of the amount withheld, the Particigaatl be solely responsible for paying all requitaxkes (other than
the employer's share of employment taxes) on glingats and other compensation (including imputedpensation)
and benefits provided under this Plan.

Payment Satisfies Claims
Any payment to a Participant or the Participangsdiciary in accordance with the provisions of Hien
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shall be, to the extent thereof, in full satisfantof all claims against the Plan Committee anddbmpany (including
claims unrelated to this Plan). As a condition pdant to any payment, the Plan Committee may redja@ recipient t
execute a receipt and release to such effect.

Payment to Minors and Incompetents

If any person is a minor or unable to care fordffairs because of illness or accident, unlesshaqlualified guardian ¢
other legal repre-sentative has been appointedpayyment due under the Plan to that person maaiak for the bene-
fit of such person, to his spouse, parent, brosister, or other person deemed by the Plan Coenitt have incurred
expenses for such pers-on. Such payment, to tleatektereof, shall discharge all liability for syasétyment under the
Plan.

Doubt as to Identity or Whereabouts

(a) If, after reasonable efforts, the Plan Committeenable to determine the whereabouts of any persbtied to
payment hereunder, the required payment to sudopeshall be deemed made at the Payment Datehand t
Plan Committee shall take (or cause to be takésjegs that it determines to be reasonably apatepio avoid
a violation of Section 409A of the Code.@., withholding income taxes at the time of each dedpayment,
and depositing the amount withheld with the InteRavenue Service). For purposes of the precedintesace,
notice by registered mail sent to such person'd rosnt address (as reflected in the Plan recstdsd) be
deemed to constitute reasonable efforts to loaatk person. Subject to the requirements of Sedid®A of the
Code, if such person subsequently makes a propien 6 the Company for such sum, the Company matg in
discretion pay to such person the net amount (aftbholding) of the deemed payment described i Sectior
6.06.

(b) If a payment is made to a Participant or Beneficas provided under the Plan, the payment is niotrred as
being undeliverable, and the check on which thergat is made is not presented for payment befaehleck
expires, then the amount of the check may be tedeHowever, if such Participant or Beneficiarpseguently
makes a proper claim for the amount of the uncabkeéfit check, the Company may in its discretgsue a
replacement check (net of withholding).

Discretion to Accelerate Payment
The Plan Committee shall have discretion to acatdgrayments of benefits under the Plan to thenef@ad only to th
extent) permitted by Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-3(j)(4).

Overpayments

If any overpayment of benefits is made under ttae Rhe recipient of the overpayment shall be reguio return the
overpaid amount plus reasonable interest. To theneihat the Company is unable to recover thepaygnent, any
future benefit payments shall be reduced untilaverpayment and reasonable interest are recoveradgded that any
offset shall be applied in accordance with the igpple requirements of Section 409A of the Code= fdnegoing
remedy is not intended to be exclusive.
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Article 7
Amendment and Termination

Amendment and Termination

(a) The Company may amend, modify, suspend, or termitiat Plan in whole or in part by resolution of Beard.
Any such resolution may designate authority toRFe Committee or an officer of the Company to adop
amendments that are consistent with the Boarddutésn. Except to the extent required by law oetfectuate
the intent that this Plan not provide benefits othan as required to restore amounts that carowoti@ under
the Avnet Pension Plan by reason of the Qualifiet Rimits, no amendment, modification, suspensarn,
termination shall have any retroactive effect uee the balance of a Participant's Restoratioroéat

(b) The Plan Committee is authorized to adopt any amend that it determines is necessary or appropidate
comply with an applicable law or to improve admiration of the Plan; provided that no such amendrsakall
cause a material increase in the Company's cgebefding benefits under the Plan.

Vesting and Payment Upon Termination

If the Plan is terminated, the Plan benefit of eRahticipant who is employed by the Company or ilidte on the
termination date shall be fully vested. The Plamn@uttee shall have discretion to liquidate all remreg benefits in
accordance with the applicable provisions of Tré&eg. § 1.409A-3(j)(4)(ix).
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Article 8
Miscellaneous

Plan Not a Contract of Employment

The Plan does not constitute a contract of employraed participation in the Plan does not give Basticipant the
right to be retained in the employ of, or in a maitar position with, an Employer or Affiliate orraght or claim to any
benefit under the Plan, except to the extent sigth or claim has accrued and is nonforfeitableauride terms of the
Plan.

Governing Law

This Plan shall be construed, governed, and adtares in accordance with the laws of the Stateradoha, without
regard to its conflict of law provisions and excepthe extent that its laws are preempted bydies lof the United
States of America.

Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code

(a) Intent to Comply With Section 409AThis Plan shall be construed and interpretedistarg with the intent to
comply with the requirements of Section 409A of @ade such that there are no adverse tax conseggjenc
interest, or penalties as a result of any amouidt guapayable under this Plan. Any ambiguity oransistency il
the provisions of this Plan shall be resolved cgtesit with such intent.

(b) No Liability . The Company makes no representation or warragigrding the Plan's compliance with the
requirements of Section 409A of the Code, eithdoim or in operation. None of the Company, itsilifes, or
any of its representatives, agents, or adviseltshaesponsible for any tax imposed on any irdireil under
Section 409A of the Code or any other tax law inrextion with benefits accrued or payable undePiae.

Severability

If any provision of this Plan is held to be invatidunenforceable by a court of competent jurisadingtsuch holding
shall not impact the validity or enforceability thie remaining provisions of the Plan; provided, beer, that if the
Plan's status as an unfunded plan maintainedgelezt group of management or highly compensatqoyees is
invalidated, the entire Plan shall be invalidated.

Successors
The terms and conditions of the Plan and any Tfali be binding on the Employers and their suarssand assigns.

Complete Statement of Plan

This instrument contains a document is a complaterment of the terms of the Plan and may be nemtjiBuspended,
revoked, or terminated only as provided in ArtiéléAn individual's right to any benefit under thlarPshall be
determined in accordance with the terms of thigumsent, as amended (and not any other documeatgement, or
understanding); provided, however, that this insgnt

Avnet Restoration Plan
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shall be applied and interpreted without regardry scrivener's error (as described in the neldiehg sentence) in
this instrument or any other document of the Pldre determination of whether a scrivener's errerdeurred shall £
made by the General Counsel of the Company inxteecise of his best judgment and sole discretiasel on his
understanding of the intent of the Company as ¢iidos of the Plan, and taking into account suddevce, written or
oral, as he deems appropriate or helpful. The Gé@munsel of the Company is authorized to coraegtscrivener's
error that he discovers in this instrument or ig ather document of the Plan. No person other tharBoard, the Plan
Committee, or a person to whom the Plan Commitéeedelegated interpretive authority shall haveartiority to
interpret this instrument or any other documerthefPlan.
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Earnings:

Income (loss) from continuing
operations before tax
Add fixed charges
Total Earnings (loss)

Fixed charges:
Interest on indebtedness
Amortization of debt expense
Interest component of rent expense

Total fixed charges

Avnet, Inc.

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Exhibit 12.1

June 30, July 2, July 3, June 27, June 28,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)

$ 790,78: $ 870,96t $ 58508 $ (1,094,96) $  693,40:
124,52: 123,98 85,56! 103,30« 111,12¢
$ 915300 $ 99494¢ $ 670,64 $ (991,66) $  804,52¢
$ 90,85¢ $ 92,45 $ 61,74¢ $ 78,66¢ $ 88,22«
2,78 2,62¢ 2,317 3,171 3,17¢
30,87t 28,90 21,49¢ 21,46 19,72t
$ 12452 $ 12398 $ 8556 $ 103,30: $ 111,12
74 8.C 7.8 * 7.2

* Earnings were deficient in covering fixed chardpys$1.09 billion for the fiscal year ended June 2009.



Avnet, Inc.

Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries

Company Name

Abacus Group Limited

Alpha 3 Manufacturing Ltd

Ascendant Software Technology (India) Private Ledit
Ascendant Technology B.V.

Ascendant Technology d.o.o. Beograd
Ascendant Technology Do Brasil Servicos Em Tecnial@s Informacéo Ltda. Epp.
Ascendant Technology Europe AG

Ascendant Technology Holdings UK Limited
Ascendant Technology Limited

Ascendant Technology, LLC

Atlantic Verwaltungs GmbH

Avnet (Asia Pacific Holdings) Limited

Avnet (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

Avnet (Holdings) Ltd

Avnet (N2)

Avnet (Shanghai) Limited

Avnet (Tianjin) Logistics Ltd.

Avnet Abacus Limited

Avnet AG

Avnet Asia Pte Ltd

Avnet ASIC Israel Ltd

Avnet Australia No. 2 Pty Ltd

Avnet B.V.

Avnet Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH

Avnet Chile S.A.

Avnet Components Brasil Participacdes Ltda.
Avnet Components Israel Limited

Avnet de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

Avnet de Puerto Rico, Inc.

Avnet Delaware Holdings, Inc.

Avnet Delaware LLC

Avnet do Brasil LTDA

Avnet Electronics Marketing (Australia) Pty Ltd
Avnet EM

Avnet EM Holdings Japan Kabushiki Kaisha
Avnet EM Sp. z.0.0.

Avnet EMG AG

Avnet EMG Elektronische Bauelemente GmbH
Avnet EMG France S.A.

Exhibit 21

Jurisdiction

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
India
Netherlands
Serbia, Republic of
Brazil
Switzerland
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Virginia
Germany

Hong Kong
Australia

United Kingdom
New Zealand
China

China

Hong Kong
Switzerland
Singapore
Israel

Australia
Netherlands
Germany

Chile

Brazil

Israel

Mexico

Puerto Rico
Delaware
Delaware

Brazil

Australia
Russian Federation
Japan

Poland
Switzerland
Austria

France




Avnet EMG GmbH

Avnet EMG ltaly S.r.l.

Avnet EMG Ltd

Avnet Erste Vermoegensverwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG
Avnet Europe Comm. VA

Avnet Finance B.V.

Avnet France S.A.S.

Avnet Holding Anonim Sirketi

Avnet Holding B.V.

Avnet Holding Europe BVBA

Avnet Holding Germany GmbH

Avnet Holding South Africa (Pty) Limited
Avnet Holdings (Australia) Pty. Limited
Avnet Holdings UK Limited

Avnet Holdings, LLC

Avnet Iberia S.A.

Avnet India Private Limited

Avnet Integrated Resources Reparo de Eletrénicda. Lt
Avnet International (Canada) Ltd.

Avnet International, LLC

Avnet Italy Srl

Avnet Japan Co., Ltd.

Avnet Kopp (Pty) Limited

Avnet Korea, Inc.

Avnet Limited

Avnet Logistics (Shenzhen) Ltd.

Avnet Logistics B.V.B.A.

Avnet Logistics do Brasil Ltda.

Avnet Logistics GmbH

Avnet Logistics Limited

Avnet Logistics Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Avnet Nortec A/S

Avnet Nortec AB

Avnet Nortec AS

Avnet Nortec Oy

Avnet Pacific Pty Limited

Avnet Partner Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Avnet Partner Solutions, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Avnet Philippines Pty Ltd., Inc.

Avnet Receivables Corporation

Avnet S.r.l.

Avnet s.r.o

Avnet Solutions Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Solutions Sdn. Bhd

Avnet Sp. z.0.0.

Germany
Italy

United Kingdom
Germany
Belgium
Netherlands
France
Turkey
Netherlands
Belgium
Germany
South Africa
Australia
United Kingdom
Delaware
Spain

India

Brazil
Canada
Delaware
Italy

Japan
South Africa

Korea, Republic of

Ireland
China
Belgium
Brazil
Germany
United Kingdom
Singapore
Malaysia
Denmark
Sweden
Norway
Finland
Australia
Malaysia
Mexico
Philippines
Delaware
Italy
Czech Republic
Singapore
Malaysia
Poland




Avnet Sunrise Limited

Avnet Technology (Thailand) Ltd.

Avnet Technology Electronics Marketing (Taiwan) Qdd.
Avnet Technology Hong Kong Limited

Avnet Technology Solutions (ASEAN) Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Technology Solutions (Australia) Limited

Avnet Technology Solutions (China) Ltd

Avnet Technology Solutions (India) Private Limited
Avnet Technology Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Avnet Technology Solutions (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Avnet Technology Solutions (Thailand) Ltd.

Avnet Technology Solutions (Tianjin) Ltd

Avnet Technology Solutions (Vietham) Company Lirdite
Avnet Technology Solutions Argentina S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions B.V.

Avnet Technology Solutions Brasil S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions Chile, S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions Colombia S.A.S.

Avnet Technology Solutions Ecuador, S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions GmbH

Avnet Technology Solutions Handelsgesellschaft F.b.
Avnet Technology Solutions Kft

Avnet Technology Solutions Ltd

Avnet Technology Solutions S.R.L.

Avnet Technology Solutions s.r.o.

Avnet Technology Solutions Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anor8irketi
Avnet Technology Solutions SAS

Avnet Technology Solutions Venezuela, C.A.

Avnet Trader S.A.

Avnet TS Ireland Limited

Avnet Verwaltungs GmbH

Beijing Vanda Suntech Software Engineering Comgamjted
Beijing Vanda Yunda IT Services Co., Ltd

Bell Microproducts Brazil Holdings, LLC

Bell Microproducts GmbH

Bell Microproducts Mexico Shareholder, LLC
BFI-IBEXSA International LLC

Canvas Systems B.V.

Canvas Systems UK Limited

Canvas Systems, LLC

Chinatronic Technology Limited

Client Solutions Limited

CM Satellite Systems, Inc.

Dritte TENVA Property GmbH Nettetal

EBV Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH

EBV Elektronik ApS

Hong Kong
Thailand
Taiwan
Hong Kong
Singapore
Australia
China
India
Malaysia
Singapore
Thailand
China
Vietnam
Argentina
Netherlands
Brazil
Chile
Colombia
Ecuador
Germany
Austria
Hungary
United Kingdom
Romania
Slovakia
Turkey
France
Venezuela
Chile
Ireland
Germany
China
China
Minnesota
Germany
Florida
Delaware
Netherlands
United Kingdom
Georgia
Hong Kong
Ireland
New York
Germany
Germany
Denmark




EBV Elektronik France SAS

EBV Elektronik GmbH & Co. KG

EBV Elektronik Kft

EBV Elektronik Limited

EBV Elektronik M

EBV Elektronik OU

EBV Elektronik S.r.1.

EBV Elektronik S.R.L.

EBV Elektronik s.r.o.

EBV Elektronik SAS

EBV Elektronik sp. z 0.0.

EBV Elektronik Spain S.L.

EBV Elektronik spol. s r.o.

EBV Elektronik Ticaret Limited Sirketi

EBV Elektronik TOV

EBV Elektronik, Druzba Za Posredovanje D.O.O.
EBV Elektronik, Unipessoal Lda,

EBV Management GmbH

EBV Vermoegensverwaltungs GmbH
EBV-Elektronik GmbH

Electrolink (PTY) Ltd

Electron House (Overseas) Limited

Enlaces Computacionales, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Erste TENVA Property GmbH Gruber Stral3e
Flint Distribution Holdings Limited

Flint Distribution Limited
Grundbesitzverwaltungsgesellschaft Berlin-Motzediealle mbH
Horizon Technology Group Limited

Import Holdings LLC

Instituto de Educacion Avanzada, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Interactive Technology Limited

J.C. Tally Trading Co., Ltd.

Kent One Corporation

Memec (Asia Pacific) Limited

Memec Group Holdings Limited

Memec Group Limited

Memec Holdings Limited

Memec Pty Limited

Mexico Holdings LLC

Net Storage Computers, Ltda

PDSI B.V.

PDSI Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Pinnacle Data Systems, Inc.

Pride Well Limited

Procurement Hub Pte Ltd

Prospect Technology Corp.

France
Germany
Hungary

Hong Kong
Russian Federation
Estonia

Italy

Romania
Slovakia
France

Poland

Spain

Czech Republic
Turkey

Ukraine
Slovenia
Portugal
Germany
Germany
Austria

South Africa
United Kingdom
Mexico
Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Germany
Ireland
California
Mexico

Virgin Islands, British
Taiwan
Delaware

Hong Kong
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia
California

Brazil
Netherlands
Singapore

Ohio

Virgin Islands, British
Singapore
Taiwan




PT Avnet Datamation Solutions

ROUND2 INC.

Round2 Technologies, Incorporated

SEC International Holding Company, L.L.C.

Shanghai FR International Trading Co., Ltd.

Société Civile Immobiliére du 22 rue de Dames
Soluciones Mercantiles, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Source Electronics (HK) Limited

Source Electronics Asia Limited

Telmil Electronics, Inc.

Tenva Belgium Comm. VA

Tenva Financial Management B.V.B.A.

Thomas Kaubisch GmbH

Unidux (HK) Ltd

Unidux (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Unidux (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Unidux (Thailand) Company Limited

Unidux Electronics Limited

Unidux Inc.

Vanda Computer & Equipment Company Limited
Vanda Computer Service (Hong Kong) Company Limited
Vanda Computer Service (Macau) Company Limited
Vanda Computer System Integration (Shanghai) Companited
Vanda Computer System Integration (Shenzhen) Gd., L
Vanda IT Solutions & Systems Management Limited
Vanda Software Engineering Company Limited
Vandasoft Technology Holdings Limited

WBT Systems Limited

WBT Systems, Inc.

Wiseasia Computer Service (Macau) Company Limited
WiseAsia.com Limited

YEL Electronics (China) Limited

YEL Electronics (Shanghai) Limited

YEL Electronics (Shenzhen) Ltd

YEL Electronics Hong Kong Limited

YEL Electronics Pte Ltd

YEL Electronics Sdn Bhd

ZWEITE TENVA Property GmbH Im Technologiepark

Indonesia
Delaware
Texas

New Hampshire

China
France
Mexico
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Delaware
Belgium
Belgium
Germany
Hong Kong
Malaysia
Singapore
Thailand
Singapore
Japan
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Macao
China
China

Virgin Islands, British

Hong Kong

Virgin Islands, British

Ireland
Delaware
Macao
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
China
China
Hong Kong
Singapore
Malaysia
Germany



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Avnet, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrédggstration statements Nos. 33-64765, 333-172323;45267, 333-45735, 333-55806, 333-
112057, 333-112062, 333-112063, 333-140903, 33297 And 333-177787 on Form8af Avnet, Inc. of our report dated August 10, 2|
with respect to the consolidated balance sheefsvoét, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2012 Jary 2, 2011, and related consolidi
statements of operations, shareholders' equity,castl flows for each of the years in the thyear period ended June 30, 2012, the re
financial statement schedule, and the effectivenéssternal control over financial reporting ashfne 30, 2012 which report appears ir
June 30, 2012 annual report on Form 10-K of Avimet,

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 10, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Richard Hamada, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on FormKLEf Avnet, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itsde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuncgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamid other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operetand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)l&itd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahoé@orting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) formbgistrant and have:

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared,;

designed such internal control over finanagarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogdiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligtdosure controls and procedures and presenttusi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaants procedures, as of the end of the period coumyelis report based on
such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahcgporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@fuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a.

all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslvnanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:August 10, 2012

/s RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Raymond Sadowski, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on FormKLEf Avnet, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itsde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuncgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamid other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operetand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)l&itd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahoé@orting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) formbgistrant and have:

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared,;

designed such internal control over finanagarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogdiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligtdosure controls and procedures and presenttusi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaants procedures, as of the end of the period coumyelis report based on
such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahcgporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@fuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a.

all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslvnanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:August 10, 2012

/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowski
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104¢ the year ended June 30, 2012 (the “Repott’Richard Hamada, Chief Execut
Officer of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby déytthat:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SéearExchange Act of 193
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company.

Date: August 10, 2012
/s/ RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10df the year ended June 30, 2012 (the “RepoktlRaymond Sadowski, Chief Financ
Officer of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby déytthat:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SéearExchange Act of 193
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company.

Date: August 10, 2012
/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowski
Chief Financial Officer




